
Distribution Date: July 7, 2023 

    
 
   AGENDA  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Friday, July 14 – 2:00 PM 

District Board Room, Community Services Building 
33540 Loop Road, Kirkwood, CA  95646 

               

                                                                         BOARD MEMBERS 
         Robert Epstein, President 
John Schroeder, Vice President                           Peter Dornbrook, Secretary 
Doug Mitarotonda, Treasurer                                                          Bertrand Perroud, Assistant Secretary 
               

 
IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING TELECONFERENCED MEETINGS:  

As authorized by Assembly Bill 361 and Governor Newsom’s Proclamation of Emergency dated 
March 1, 2023, this meeting will be held via video/teleconferencing with members of the Board 
attending from separate remote locations. This altered format is in observance of 
recommendations when state or local health officials have imposed or recommended measures to 
promote social distancing, during a proclaimed state of emergency held for the purpose of 
determining, by majority vote, whether meeting in person would present imminent risks to health or 
safety of attendees, and during a proclaimed state of emergency when the legislative body has 
determined that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees, as provided. 

HOW TO PARTICIPATE / OBSERVE THE MEETING: 
Public access is available at the physical location of the meeting. You may participate in person or 
via the Zoom Webinar.  
Telephone: Listen to the meeting live by calling Zoom at (669) 900-6833 and enter the Webinar 
ID# 874 0646 8432 followed by the pound (#) key.  Raise your hand to talk by pressing *9. 
Computer: Watch the live streaming of the meeting from a computer by navigating to   
 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87406468432 using a computer with internet access the meets 
Zoom’s system requirements (see https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/204003179-System-
Requirements-for-Zoom-Rooms)  Raise your hand to talk by clicking Participants/Raise Hand. 
Mobile: Login through the Zoom mobile app on a smartphone and enter Meeting ID# 874 0646 
8432 

HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Prior to the meeting, please mail comments to P.O. Box 247, Kirkwood, CA 95646, fax your 
comments to (209) 258-8727 Attn: Erik Christeson or email at echristeson@kmpud.com, write 
“Public Comments” in the subject line.  Include the agenda item number and title, as well as your 
comments. During the meeting, the Board President will announce the opportunity to make public 
comments.  Please utilize the “raise your hand” function via the Zoom application or your telephone 
if participating in this manner. 
 

ACCESSIBILITY INFORMATION: 
Board meetings are accessible to people with disabilities and others who need assistance.     
Individuals who need special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation 
(including auxiliary aids or services) to observe and/or participate in this meeting and access 
meeting-related materials should contact Brittnie Morris, Clerk of the Board, at least 48-hours 
before the meeting at (209) 258-4444 or bmorris@kmpud.com.  Advanced notification will enable 
the District to swiftly resolve such requests and ensure accessibility. 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87406468432
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/204003179-System-Requirements-for-Zoom-Rooms
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/204003179-System-Requirements-for-Zoom-Rooms
mailto:echristeson@kmpud.com
mailto:bmorris@kmpud.com


REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA – Friday, July 14, 2023 Page 2 

AGENDA 

1) CALL TO ORDER                   President Epstein 

2) ROLL CALL                         Secretary Dornbrook 

3) ANNOUNCEMENTS               General Manager Christeson 

4) CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA OR CONSENT CALENDAR (For purposes of the Brown 
Act, all Action and Consent items listed give a brief description of each item of business to be 
transacted or discussed.  Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board 
from taking other action.) 

5) COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE (This is an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the Board on any short non-agenda items that are within the subject matter jurisdiction 
of the District.  No discussion or action can be taken on matters not listed on the agenda, per the 
Brown Act.)  

6) WRITTEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC (This is an opportunity for Directors and Staff to 
share written comments received from the public. No discussion or action can be taken on 
matters not listed on the agenda, per the Brown Act.)  

7) ADOPTION OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR (Any item can be removed to be discussed and 
considered separately upon request.  Comments and questions from members of the public, 
staff or Board can be taken when the comment does not necessitate separate action.) 
a) Approve May 23, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes 
b) Approve June 9, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 
c) Approve June 21, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes 
d) Approve Current Consent for Claims 
e) Review Receivables/Shut Offs Report 
f) Re-Authorize AB 361 Teleconference Meetings. 

8) CONSENT ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD FOR SEPARATE DISCUSSION/ACTION 

9) ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

a) California Special District Association Legislative Update. Dane Wadle’ 

b) Finances. Discussion and possible action regarding the District’s financials. AM Baggett 

i) Overview & Budget Variances 

ii) May Financials 

iii) June Preliminaries 

iv) Cash Flow 

c) Annual Investment Policy 380 Review. Annual review & possible action. AM Baggett 

d) Schedule of Fees & Miscellaneous Fees. Discussion & possible action. AM Baggett 

e) KMPUD 2022 Power Source Disclosures. Annual review & possible action. OM Benson 

f) Employee Temporary Gas Stipend. Discussion and possible action. GM Christeson 

2



REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA – Friday, July 14, 2023 Page 3 

g) Performance Reporting & Aquifer Levels. Update. OM Benson 

h) Propane/Electric Meter Shed Status. Update. OM Benson 

i) WWTP Repair & Rehabilitation Project – Notice of Award. Discussion & possible action. 

GM Christeson 

j) Propane Master Plan & Intended Scope of Project. Discussion & possible action.  

GM Christeson 

k) Electric Master Plan / EV Charging. Discussion & possible action. GM Christeson 

l) Fiscal Year 2023/24 General Manager Goals & Objectives. Discussion & possible action. 

President Epstein 

m) Needs Assessment. Discussion & possible action. GM Christeson 

n) Ordinance 23-01 to Provide for Appeals of District Average Monthly Usage 

Calculations. Discussion & possible action. GM Christeson 

10) MAJOR PROJECT UPDATES (Discussion may take place; no action may be taken.) 

11) GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Discussion may take place; no action may be taken.) 

12) OPERATIONS REPORT (Discussion may take place; no action may be taken.) 

13) STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS (Discussion may take place; no action may be taken.) 

14) TEMPORARY ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORTS (Discussion may take place; no action may be taken.) 

15) GENERAL DISCUSSION Opportunity for the Board to ask questions for clarification, provide 
information to Staff, request Staff to report back on a matter, or to direct Staff to place a matter 
on a subsequent agenda. 

16) ADJOURNMENT 
The next Regular Board Meeting is scheduled for Friday, August 11, 2023 at 2:00 PM. 

 
The Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District Board of Directors regularly meets the second Friday of each month.  A complete Agenda packet 
is available for review at the meeting and at the District office during the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.  This 
meeting is recorded and broadcast over Volcano Community Channel 19 and on the internet at www.kmpud.com.  Items on the Agenda are 
numbered for identification purposes only and will not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear.  Designated times are for 
particular items only.  Public Hearings will not be called to order prior to the time specified but may occur slightly later than the specified time. 
 
Public participation is encouraged.  Public comments on items appearing on the Agenda will be taken at the same time the Agenda items are 
heard; comments should be brief and directed to the specifics of the item being considered.  Please provide the Clerk of the Board with a copy 
of all written materials presented at the meeting.  Comments on items not on the Agenda can be heard during “Comments from the Audience”; 
however, action cannot be taken on items not on the Agenda. 
 
Backup materials relating to an open session item on this Agenda, which are not included with the Board packet, will be made available for 
public inspection at the same time they are distributed or made available to the Board, and can be viewed at the District office, at the Board 
meeting and upon request to the Clerk of the Board. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability-related modification or 
accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the Brittnie Morris at (209) 258-4444, by email at bmorris@kmpud.com. Requests 
must be made as early as possible, and at least two business days before the meeting. 
 

 

3

http://www.kmpud.com/
mailto:bmorris@kmpud.com


REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA – Friday, July 14, 2023 Page 4 

The Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 

4



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

Tuesday May 23rd, 2023 – 4:00 PM 
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
               
 
 John Schroeder, Vice President          BOARD MEMBERS       Doug Mitarotonda, Treasurer 
 Peter Dornbrook, Secretary      Robert Epstein, President                 Bertrand Perroud, Asst. Secretary 
               

 
Under provisions of Assembly Bill No. 361 and authorization of the Kirkwood Meadows Public 
Utility District Board of Directors to hold meetings remotely, this meeting took place via 
video/teleconference. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER                          President Epstein 
 
Determining a quorum present, President Epstein called the meeting to order at 4:01 PM. 
 

2. ROLL CALL                 Secretary Dornbrook 
 
Board of Directors Present: None   
Board of Directors Present via Zoom: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, Perroud, 

Dornbrook.    
Board of Directors Absent:  None 
Staff Present: General Manager Christeson, Chief Ansel 
Others Present and via Zoom:  Terri Woodrow, Jason Ruben, Eric Richert, Allen Ablow, Chris 

Tucher, Joel Gomez, Scott Taylor, Anne-Flore Dwyer, Matt 
Jones, Thomas Harris, Bob Williams, Jack Longinotti, Art Taylor, 
Michael Leary, John Reiter, Sandy Goldberg.  

 
3. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

 
a. Future Direction for Fire Department. Informational presentations on Kirkwood Volunteer Fire 

Department and Measure E. No action will be taken.  
 

i. Current Level of service and budget. 
Director Schroeder gave an overview of the current budget; Assistant Manager Ansel 
gave an overview of the current level of service. Discussion ensued.  
  

ii. Options for future level of service. 
Chief Ansel gave an overview of the options for a future level of service. Discussion 
ensued. 

 
iii. Funding models for future consideration.  

Director Schroeder gave an overview of the funding models for future consideration.  
Discussion ensued.   

 
b. Community Comments. Opportunity for utility customers to comment on desired level of service 

and funding models. 
 
Comments and questions were received from the audience and were addressed. Discussion 
ensued. 

5



 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES – Tuesday May 23rd, 2023    Page 2 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:00 pm 

 

(The next Special Board Meeting is scheduled for Friday June 9th, 2023, at 2:00 PM) 

 
 
 
________________________________ 
Peter Dornbrook, Board Secretary 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 

      
 Brittnie Morris, Clerk of the Board  

6



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
Main Location: 

33540 Loop Rd., P.O. Box 247, Kirkwood, CA 95646 
Telephone (209) 258-4444 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Monday, June 9, 2023 – 2:00 PM 
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
               
 
 John Schroeder, Vice President          BOARD MEMBERS       Doug Mitarotonda, Treasurer 
 Peter Dornbrook, Secretary      Robert Epstein, President                 Bertrand Perroud, Asst. Secretary 
               

 
Under provisions of Assembly Bill No. 361 and authorization of the Kirkwood Meadows Public 
Utility District Board of Directors to hold meetings remotely, this meeting took place via a hybrid 
of in-person and video/teleconference. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER                          President Epstein 
 
Determining a quorum present, President Epstein called the meeting to order at 2:01 PM. 
 

2. ROLL CALL                 Secretary Dornbrook 
 
Board of Directors Present: President Epstein, Directors Perroud, Dornbrook    
Board of Directors Present via Zoom: Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda.    
Board of Directors Absent:  None 
Staff Present: General Manager Christeson, Assistant General Manager 

Ansel, Operations Manager Benson, Brittnie Morris.  
Others Present and via Zoom:  Peter Catalano, Andrew, Anne-Flore Dwyer, Colin Haubrich, 

Connie Benz, Jessica, Kacy Campbell, Ken Sorey, Larry Parker, 
Matt Jones, Pamela Hyde, Richard Kettles, Shery Boyd, Terry 
Woodrow, Bruce, Jack Longinotti, John Reiter, Norm, Dan 
Andes Eric Richert, Teola Tremayne, Sheryl Boyd, Sharon, 
Sandy Goldberg, Klaus Leitenbauek, Chris Tucher, Stuart 
Grunow, Rachel Reichenbach. 

 
   

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS                      General Manager Christeson 
 
General Manager Christenson welcomed everyone to the June 9th, 2023, Board meeting and noted that 
if anybody would like to comment during the meeting to please use the raise your hand function. 
 

4. CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA OR CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
None 
 

5. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
Jay Dwyer commented on Measure E.  
 
Lance Lewis commented on meter shed enclosures. 
 

7



 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES – Friday June 9th, 2023     Page 2 

 
6. WRITTEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Written comments from the public were acknowledged. 
 

7. ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

a. Approve May 1st, 2023, Board Meeting Minutes 
Approve May 1st, 2023, Board Meeting Minutes 

b. Re-Authorize AB 361 Teleconference Meetings.  
Re-Authorize AB 361 Teleconference Meetings.   

c. Approve Current Consent for Claims. 
Approve current consent for claims.  

 
Director Mitarotonda motioned to approve Item 7.a, 7b., 7.c., Director Dornbrook seconded the motion, 
and it carried by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, Perroud, Dornbrook.  
 
NOES: None 
 
ABSENT: None 
 
ABSTAINING: None 
 

8. CONSENT ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD FOR SEPARATE DISCUSSION / ACTION: 
 
None.  

 
9. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

 
 

a. FY 2023-24 Budget Assumptions. Discussion & possible Action                                      GM Christeson 
General Manager Christeson gave an overview of the budget assumptions. Discussion ensued. 

 
Director Mitarotonda made a motion to approve the FY 2023-2024 Budget Assumptions, Director 
Perroud seconded the motion, and it carried by the following roll call vote:  
  
 AYES: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, Perroud, Dornbrook. 
  
 NOES: None 
 
 ABSENT: None 
 
 ABSTAINING: None  

 
b. FY 2023-24 Operations Budget. Discussion & possible action.                                          GM Christeson  

General Manager Christeson brought forward the operations budget. Discussion ensued.  
 
Director Dornbrook Made a motion to approve the FY 2023-2024 Operations Budget, Director 
Schroeder seconded, and it carried by the following roll call vote: 
  
 AYES: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, Perroud, Dornbrook. 
  
 NOES: None 
 
 ABSENT: None 
 

8



 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES – Friday June 9th, 2023     Page 3 

 ABSTAINING: None  
 
  
 

c. FY 2023-24 Capital Budget. Discussion & possible action.                                                GM Christeson 
              General Manager Christeson Brought forward the 2023-2024 capital budget. Discussion ensued. 
  
  

President Epstein Made a motion to approve the FY 2023-2024 Capital Budget, Director 
Dornbrook seconded, and it carried by the following roll call vote: 
  
 AYES: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, Perroud, Dornbrook.  
 NOES: None 
 
 ABSENT: None 
 
 ABSTAINING: None  
 

 Item g. was brought forward for discussion at 3:32 PM. 
  

g. Measure E – Fire Department Staffing, Budget, & Survey Results. (To be heard at 3:30 PM, or as 
Reasonably close as can be accommodated.). Discussion & possible action            President Epstein 

President Epstein gave an overview of Measure E. Discussion ensued.  

The board consensus was to proceed with Option 3; commit to no more than 700,000 in Fiscal Year 

2024 if measure E passes; 1.1 million in Fiscal Year 2025; investigate an RMA amendment to 

reevaluate the benefit assessment methodology regarding parking and implement a policy for public 

participation in reviewing and setting the annual tax. 

Director Mitarotonda made a motion to proceed as noted above if Measure E passes. Director 

Schroeder seconded the motion, and it carried by the following row call vote: 

AYES: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, Perroud, Dornbrook. 
 

NOES: None  
 

ABSENT: None 
 

ABSTAINING: None 
 

 
d. FY 2023-2024 Snow Removal Budget and HOA Allocations. Discussion & possible action. GM 

Christeson            
General Manager Christeson Brought forward the 2023-2024 Snow Removal Budget and HOA 
Allocations. Discussion ensued. 
 
President Epstein Made a motion to approve the FY 2023-2024 Snow Removal Budget and HOA 
allocations using the 3-year average, Director Dornbrook seconded, and it carried by the following 
roll call vote: 
  
 AYES: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, Perroud, Dornbrook. 
  
 NOES: None 
 
 ABSENT: None 
 
 ABSTAINING: None  
          
 

9



 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES – Friday June 9th, 2023     Page 4 

e. Electric Interfund Fund Loans – Snow Removal. Discussion & possible action.            GM Christeson 
 

General Manager Christeson gave an overview of the Electric interfund fund loans. Discussion 
ensued.   
 
Director Dornbrook made a motion to approve the extension of the repayment period for the 
existing interfund loan. Director Mitarotonda seconded, and it carried by the following roll call 
vote:        

 
 AYES: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, Perroud, Dornbrook. 
  
 NOES: None 
 
 ABSENT: None 
 
 ABSTAINING: None  

  
All remaining agenda items were deferred to a subsequent meeting. 

 
   
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:47 pm 

 

(The next Special Board Meeting is scheduled for Friday, July 14th, 2023, at 2:00 PM) 

 
 
 
________________________________ 
Peter Dornbrook, Board Secretary 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 

      
 Brittnie Morris, Clerk of the Board  

10



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
Main Location: 

33540 Loop Rd., P.O. Box 247, Kirkwood, CA 95646 
Telephone (209) 258-4444 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Monday, June 21st, 2023 – 2:00 PM 
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
               
 
 John Schroeder, Vice President          BOARD MEMBERS       Doug Mitarotonda, Treasurer 
 Peter Dornbrook, Secretary      Robert Epstein, President                 Bertrand Perroud, Asst. Secretary 
               

 
Under provisions of Assembly Bill No. 361 and authorization of the Kirkwood Meadows Public 
Utility District Board of Directors to hold meetings remotely, this meeting took place via a hybrid 
of in-person and video/teleconference. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER                          President Epstein 
 
Determining a quorum present, President Epstein called the meeting to order at 2:01 PM. 
 

2. ROLL CALL                 Secretary Dornbrook 
 
Board of Directors Present: Directors Perroud and Dornbrook.   
Board of Directors Present via Zoom: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, and Mitarotonda.     
Board of Directors Absent:  None 
Staff Present: General Manager Christeson, Assistant General Manager 

Ansel, Administration Manager Baggett, Brittnie Morris.  
Others Present and via Zoom:  A, Cecile Cohen - Jonathan, Christian Bastoul, David McCullers, 

Ellen Chang, Eric Richert, Jay Dwyer, Marc Musgrove, Sandy 
Goldberg, Tapin Sharon, Taryn Shawstad,  

 
   

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS                      General Manager Christeson 
 
General Manager Christeson welcomed everyone to the June 21st, 2023, Special Board meeting and 
asked that if anybody would like to comment during the meeting to please use the raise your hand function. 
 

4. CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA OR CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
None 
 

5. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
None 
 

6. WRITTEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Written comments from the public were acknowledged. 
 

7. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

11



 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES – Wednesday June 21st , 2023     Page 2 

a. Resolution 23-06 Declaring a General District Election. Discussion & possible action. 
 
Clerk of the Board Brittnie Morris gave an overview of Resolution 23-06. Discussion ensued. 

 
Director Dornbrook made a motion to approve Resolution 23-06. Director Mitarotonda seconded, and 
it carried by the following roll call vote:  

 
AYES: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, Perroud, and Dornbrook.  

 
NOES: None 

 
ABSENT: None 

 
ABSTAINING: None 

 
 

b. Sun Meadows 3-4 Unit Loan repayment. Discussion and possible action. 
  
Administrative Manager Baggett gave an overview of the Sun Meadows unit Loan repayment. 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Director Perroud made a motion to move this item to a subsequent board meeting. Director Dornbrook 
seconded, and it carried by the following roll call vote:  

 
AYES: Directors Mitarotonda, Perroud, and Dornbrook.  

 
NOES: President Epstein, Director Schroeder. 

 
ABSENT: None 

 
ABSTAINING: None 

 
c. Measure E – Board Intentions and Resolution 23-07. Discussion and possible action. 

 
President Epstein gave an overview of Measure E - Board Intentions and Resolution 23-07. 
Discussion ensued. 
  
President Epstein recommends the following changes to resolution 23-07, Advance the KVFD from 
an all-volunteer operation to a contract service that is responsible to ensure that two certified fire 
fighters/EMTS are on duty at Kirkwood, 24 hours per day, complimented by trained volunteers.  
 
Director Mitarotonda made a motion to approve resolution 23-07 with the recommended 
amendments. Director Schroeder seconded, and it carried by the following roll call vote:  

 
AYES: President Epstein, Directors Schroeder, Mitarotonda, and Dornbrook.  

 
NOES: Director Perroud.  

 
ABSENT: None 

 
ABSTAINING: None 

 
8. GENERAL DISCUSSION: 

 
Director Schroeder, Perroud and Dornbrook would like to investigate options about reopening the CSB 
and putting it on a later agenda.  
 
 

12



 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES – Wednesday June 21st , 2023     Page 3 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:48 pm 

 

(The next Board Meeting is scheduled for Friday, July 14th, 2023, at 2:00 PM) 

 
 
 
________________________________ 
Peter Dornbrook, Board Secretary 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 

      
 Brittnie Morris, Clerk of the Board  

13



Consent for Claims

July 6th 2023

Stantec (WWTP Improvements Project) $58,717

OPERATING COSTS $1,624,623

TOTAL $1,683,340

14



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 1 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

A1CH001 A-#1 CHEMICAL INC

 19923 07/03/2023 2023-12 96631 AP006577 OFFICE SUPPLIES  498.35 23-373  0.00  38221 0.00

A1CH001 A-#1 CHEMICAL INC $498.35 $0.00 

ACES001 ACES WASTE SERVICES, INC

 19786 06/05/2023 2023-11 68691+6 AP006525 MAY SLUDGE REMOVAL  943.73  0.00  38155 0.00

 19824 06/09/2023 2023-11 686401 AP006531 MAY WASTE REMOVAL  7,786.87  0.00  38155 0.00

ACES001 ACES WASTE SERVICES, INC $8,730.60 $0.00 

ACTI001 ACTION GARAGE DOOR COMPANY, INC.

 19883 06/22/2023 2023-12 3218877 AP006559 SHOP DOOR REPAIR  730.00 23-512  0.00  38191 0.00

ACTI001 ACTION GARAGE DOOR COMPANY, INC. $730.00 $0.00 

ACWA001 ACWA/JPIA

 19906 06/28/2023 2023-12 O-0000010008 AP006568 AXCESS CRIME PROGRAM  782.00  0.00  38222 0.00

 19841 06/12/2023 2024-01 0699721 AP006533 JULY HEALTH INSURANCE  36,072.06  0.00  38156 0.00

ACWA001 ACWA/JPIA $36,854.06 $0.00 

AIRG001 AIRGAS USA, LLC

 19851 06/14/2023 2023-11 9997726877 AP006537 CYLINDER RENTAL  319.94  0.00  38192 0.00

AIRG001 AIRGAS USA, LLC $319.94 $0.00 

ALPI001 ALPINE CO. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

 19870 06/19/2023 2023-12 0031 AP006548 ALPINE COUNTY FEES FY 2023-2024  1,669.00  0.00  38193 0.00

ALPI001 ALPINE CO. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES $1,669.00 $0.00 

ALPI008 ALPINE CARPET ONE

 19785 06/05/2023 2023-11 CG202335 AP006525 OFFICE CARPET  10,418.00 23-233  0.00  38157 0.00

ALPI008 ALPINE CARPET ONE $10,418.00 $0.00 

15



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 2 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

ANSE001 RICK ANSEL

 19787 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  575.00  0.00  38142 0.00

 19800 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38158 0.00

 19937 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38223 0.00

ANSE001 RICK ANSEL $645.00 $0.00 

AQUA001 AQUA SIERRA CONTROLS, INC.

 19836 06/09/2023 2023-12 33491 AP006532 RADWELL VFD REPAIR  3,217.50 23-442  0.00  38159 0.00

AQUA001 AQUA SIERRA CONTROLS, INC. $3,217.50 $0.00 

AQUA002 AQUA-METRIC SALES, CO.

 19905 06/28/2023 2023-12 INV0095503 AP006568 WATER METER  3,152.28 23-506  0.00  38224 0.00

AQUA002 AQUA-METRIC SALES, CO. $3,152.28 $0.00 

AT&T001 AT&T

 19911 06/29/2023 2023-12 AP006570 LONG DISTANCE  161.14  0.00  38225 0.00

AT&T001 AT&T $161.14 $0.00 

AT&T002 AT&T

 19881 06/22/2023 2023-12 3150081530 AP006559 KM BLUE/GREEN BROADBAND  1,875.15  0.00  38194 0.00

AT&T002 AT&T $1,875.15 $0.00 

BAGG001 THOMAS BAGGETT

 19788 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  50.00  0.00  38143 0.00

 19809 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38160 0.00

 19946 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULLY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38226 0.00

BAGG001 THOMAS BAGGETT $120.00 $0.00 

16



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 3 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

BART001 BARTKIEWICZ KRONICK & SHANHAN

 19829 06/09/2023 2023-11 AP006531 MAY LEGAL FEES  3,325.00  0.00  38161 0.00

BART001 BARTKIEWICZ KRONICK & SHANHAN $3,325.00 $0.00 

BENS002 ED BENSON

 19807 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38162 0.00

 19944 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38227 0.00

BENS002 ED BENSON $70.00 $0.00 

BIRG001 BARON BIRGE

 19932 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006578 JULY GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38228 0.00

 19935 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38228 0.00

BIRG001 BARON BIRGE $95.00 $0.00 

BOTW001 BANK OF THE WEST

 19872 06/19/2023 2023-11 AP006553 MAY MASTERCARD PAYMENT  6,616.09  0.00  8801810 0.00

 19873 06/20/2023 2023-12 2310173477 AP006554 SM34 LOAN PAYMENT  972.49  0.00  8801809 0.00

BOTW001 BANK OF THE WEST $7,588.58 $0.00 

BURG001 BURGARELLO ALARM/MOUNTAIN ALARM

 19867 06/16/2023 2023-12 3668125 AP006546 FIRE ALARM INSPECTION  217.89  0.00  38195 0.00

 19910 06/29/2023 2024-01 3668356 AP006569 ALARM MONITORING PH  208.50  0.00  38229 0.00

BURG001 BURGARELLO ALARM/MOUNTAIN ALARM $426.39 $0.00 

CALP002 CALPERS

 19860 06/15/2023 2023-12 AP006538 PPE 06.10.2023 UNFUNDED CALPERS  8,649.42  0.00  8801804 0.00

 19861 06/15/2023 2023-12 AP006538 PPE 06.10.2023 UNFUNDED PEPRA  171.33  0.00  8801805 0.00

CALP002 CALPERS $8,820.75 $0.00 

17



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 4 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

CALP457 CALPERS SUPPLEMENTAL INCOME PLANS

 19778 06/01/2023 2023-11 AP006519 PPE 05.27.2023 #10000017182718  2,300.00  0.00  8801799 0.00

 19856 06/15/2023 2023-12 AP006538 PPE 06.10.2023 #1000001720094  2,300.00  0.00  8801802 0.00

 19918 06/29/2023 2023-12 AP006571 PPE 6.24.2023 #100000017211590  2,300.00  0.00  8801817 0.00

CALP457 CALPERS SUPPLEMENTAL INCOME PLANS $6,900.00 $0.00 

CAMP006 JON CAMPBELL

 19811 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38163 0.00

 19948 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38230 0.00

CAMP006 JON CAMPBELL $70.00 $0.00 

CANO001 CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

 19880 06/22/2023 2023-12 30722843 AP006559 PRINTER LEASE  374.74  0.00  38196 0.00

CANO001 CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. $374.74 $0.00 

CHRI001 ERIK CHRISTESON

 19934 07/05/2023 2023-01 AP006579 JULY HOUSING CREDIT  480.00  0.00  38231 0.00

 19950 07/05/2023 2023-12 AP006582 TRAVEL MEAL REIMBURSEMENT  312.10 24-01  0.00  38231 0.00

 19814 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006529 JUNE HOUSING CREDIT  480.00  0.00  38164 0.00

 19838 06/09/2023 2023-12 AP006532 BOOT REIMBURSEMENT  150.00  0.00  38164 0.00

CHRI001 ERIK CHRISTESON $1,422.10 $0.00 

CLOV001 CLOVIS POLYCON INC.

 19828 06/09/2023 2023-11 1021254 AP006531 3/4 COUPLING  143.02 23-216  0.00  38165 0.00

CLOV001 CLOVIS POLYCON INC. $143.02 $0.00 

COBA001 CoBANK

 19869 06/19/2023 2023-11 01 003505066 AP006547 INTEREST OWED  382.61  0.00  8801807 0.00

COBA001 CoBANK $382.61 $0.00 

18



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 5 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

DELT001 DELTA FIRE SYSTEMS

 19825 06/09/2023 2023-11 AP006531 ANNUAL SPRINKLER INSPECTION  10,890.00 23-432  0.00  38166 0.00

DELT001 DELTA FIRE SYSTEMS $10,890.00 $0.00 

DORN001 DEREK DORNBROOK

 19817 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006530 JUNE GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38167 0.00

 19802 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38167 0.00

 19939 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JUY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38232 0.00

 19927 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006578 JULY GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38232 0.00

DORN001 DEREK DORNBROOK $190.00 $0.00 

EDD001 EDD

 19913 06/29/2023 2023-12 AP006571 PPE 06.24.2023 SDI/PIT  8,931.73  0.00  8801813 0.00

 19915 06/29/2023 2023-12 AP006571 PPE 06.24.2023 SUTA  545.78  0.00  8801814 0.00

EDD001 EDD $9,477.51 $0.00 

EHSI001 EASY FLEET GPS, INC

 19770 06/01/2023 2023-12 1766 AP006517 GPS TRACKING  90.00  0.00  38128 0.00

EHSI001 EASY FLEET GPS, INC $90.00 $0.00 

ESQU001 CARLA  ESQUERRA

 19790 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  135.00  0.00  38144 0.00

ESQU001 CARLA  ESQUERRA $135.00 $0.00 

EVER001 EVERLEVEL

 19773 06/01/2023 2023-11 AP006518 HYDRANT METER REFUND  2,656.11  0.00  38129 0.00

EVER001 EVERLEVEL $2,656.11 $0.00 

19



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 6 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

FAST003 FAST PRINT

 19783 06/05/2023 2023-11 AP006525 ENVELOPE ORDER  1,795.46 23-398  0.00  38168 0.00

FAST003 FAST PRINT $1,795.46 $0.00 

FICH001 BRANDI BENSON

 19933 07/05/2023 2023-01 AP006579 JULY HOUSING CREDIT  480.00  0.00  38233 0.00

 19951 07/05/2023 2023-12 AP006582 TRAVEL METAL REIMBURSEMENT  340.92 23-533  0.00  38233 0.00

 19801 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38169 0.00

 19813 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006529 JUNE HOUSING CREDIT  480.00  0.00  38169 0.00

 19938 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38233 0.00

FICH001 BRANDI BENSON $1,370.92 $0.00 

FIRE001 FIRE RECOVERY USA

 19896 06/23/2023 2023-12 23-129 AP006564 ACCOUNT MAINT. FEE  250.00 23-434  0.00  38197 0.00

FIRE001 FIRE RECOVERY USA $250.00 $0.00 

FOWL001 AMANDA  FOWLER

 19818 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006530 JUNE GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38170 0.00

 19928 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006578 JULY GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38234 0.00

FOWL001 AMANDA  FOWLER $120.00 $0.00 

GOME001 GEORGE GOMEZ

 19791 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  1,595.00  0.00  38145 0.00

GOME001 GEORGE GOMEZ $1,595.00 $0.00 

20



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 7 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

GRAI001 GRAINGER

 19827 06/09/2023 2023-11 9718324529 AP006531 SWING CHECK VALVE  136.95 23-424  0.00  38171 0.00

 19853 06/14/2023 2023-11 972073789 AP006537 ABRASIVE ROLL KIT `  26.70 23-431  0.00  38198 0.00

 19854 06/14/2023 2023-11 9720321661 AP006537 SPRAY FOAM/ REDUCING ADAPTER  28.65 23-431  0.00  38198 0.00

 19879 06/22/2023 2023-12 9735387087 AP006559 PAINTING SUPPLIES  376.41 23-422  0.00  38198 0.00

 19904 06/28/2023 2023-12 9741499835 AP006568 HEX NIPPLE  5.73 23-507  0.00  38235 0.00

 19953 07/06/2023 2023-12 9752236092 AP006583 WHITE PAINT  57.38 23-501  0.00  38235 0.00

 19954 07/06/2023 2023-12 23-508 AP006583 FUNNEL SET  4.87 23-508  0.00  38235 0.00

GRAI001 GRAINGER $636.69 $0.00 

HARR002 THOMAS HARRIS

 19792 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  20.00  0.00  38146 0.00

HARR002 THOMAS HARRIS $20.00 $0.00 

HOLT001 HOLT OF CALIFORNIA

 19882 06/22/2023 2023-12 PS011094069 AP006559 PARTS FOR 924 AND 950GC  3,172.89 23-451  0.00  38199 0.00

HOLT001 HOLT OF CALIFORNIA $3,172.89 $0.00 

HOST001 CHRIS HOSTNIK

 19806 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38172 0.00

 19943 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38236 0.00

HOST001 CHRIS HOSTNIK $70.00 $0.00 

HUNT001 HUNT & SONS, INC.

 19843 06/14/2023 2023-12 159681 AP006536 UNLEADED DELIVERY 06.09.2023  579.13  0.00  38200 0.00

 19835 06/09/2023 2023-12 69190 AP006532 UNLEADED DELIVERY 0602023  2,550.97  0.00  38173 0.00

HUNT001 HUNT & SONS, INC. $3,130.10 $0.00 

21



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 8 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

HUNT002 HUNT PROPANE

 19949 07/05/2023 2023-12 943345 AP006581 PROPANE DELIVERY 06.16.2023  9,739.04  0.00  38237 0.00

HUNT002 HUNT PROPANE $9,739.04 $0.00 

INDE001 INDEPENDENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY INC.

 19924 07/03/2023 2023-12 S105980259.001 AP006577 PROPANE SUPPLIES  13,171.69 23-376  0.00  38238 0.00

INDE001 INDEPENDENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY INC. $13,171.69 $0.00 

IRS001 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE

 19779 06/01/2023 2023-11 AP006519 PPE 05.27.2023 PR TAX  14,067.30  0.00  8801800 0.00

 19855 06/15/2023 2023-12 AP006538 PPE 06.10.2023 PR TAX  13,880.18  0.00  8801801 0.00

 19914 06/29/2023 2023-12 AP006571 PPE 06.24.2023 PR TAX  13,848.74  0.00  8801815 0.00

IRS001 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE $41,796.22 $0.00 

KCA001 KIRKWOOD COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

 19894 06/23/2023 2023-01 10879 AP006563 KCA DUES SM34 #111  78.00  0.00  38201 0.00

KCA001 KIRKWOOD COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION $78.00 $0.00 

KENT001 IAN KENT

 19793 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  1,230.00  0.00  38147 0.00

KENT001 IAN KENT $1,230.00 $0.00 

KHAN001 TARIK KHANJARI

 19810 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38174 0.00

 19947 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38239 0.00

KHAN001 TARIK KHANJARI $70.00 $0.00 

22



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 9 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

KIVA001 KIVA ENERGY INC

 19780 06/02/2023 2023-11 KE1150195 AP006523 PROPANE DELIVERY 05.16.2023  10,589.81  0.00  38134 0.00

 19920 07/03/2023 2023-12 KE1153275 AP006577 PROPANE DELIVERY 06.26.2023  9,208.97  0.00  38240 0.00

KIVA001 KIVA ENERGY INC $19,798.78 $0.00 

KLAS001 TRISTAN  KLASKO

 19794 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  770.00  0.00  38148 0.00

KLAS001 TRISTAN  KLASKO $770.00 $0.00 

LAKE003 LAKESIDE GLASS INC.

 19902 06/28/2023 2023-12 45995 AP006568 WINDOW IN LAVA ROCK  463.26 23-527  0.00  38241 0.00

 19903 06/28/2023 2023-12 45996 AP006568 50835 MERRIL RD  570.14 23-527  0.00  38241 0.00

LAKE003 LAKESIDE GLASS INC. $1,033.40 $0.00 

LEA002 TERRI LEACH

 19819 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006530 JUNE GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38175 0.00

 19929 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006578 JULY GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38242 0.00

LEA002 TERRI LEACH $120.00 $0.00 

MCCU001 DAVID MCCULLERS

 19795 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  490.00  0.00  38149 0.00

MCCU001 DAVID MCCULLERS $490.00 $0.00 

MCGO001 TERRANCE MCGOVERN

 19796 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  420.00  0.00  38150 0.00

MCGO001 TERRANCE MCGOVERN $420.00 $0.00 

23



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 10 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

MEEK001 MEEK'S LUMBER & HARDWARE

 19823 06/09/2023 2023-11 05K5450 AP006531 CONCRETE & PAINT  974.68 23.421  0.00  38176 0.00

MEEK001 MEEK'S LUMBER & HARDWARE $974.68 $0.00 

MORR002 BRITTNIE MORRIS

 19820 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006530 JUNE GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38177 0.00

 19930 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006578 JULY GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38243 0.00

MORR002 BRITTNIE MORRIS $120.00 $0.00 

NEFF001 STEVEN NEFF

 19808 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38178 0.00

 19815 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006530 JUNE GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38178 0.00

 19925 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006578 JULY GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38244 0.00

 19945 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38244 0.00

NEFF001 STEVEN NEFF $190.00 $0.00 

NOSS001 ARYAH NOSSRAT

 19797 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  140.00  0.00  38151 0.00

NOSS001 ARYAH NOSSRAT $140.00 $0.00 

NV5001 NV5, INC.

 19897 06/23/2023 2023-12 336418 AP006565 QUARTERY WWTP MONITORING  1,000.00  0.00  38202 0.00

NV5001 NV5, INC. $1,000.00 $0.00 

PART001 THE PARTS HOUSE

 19784 06/05/2023 2023-11 91079 AP006525 NAPA AIR FILTER  226.20 23-354  0.00  38179 0.00

PART001 THE PARTS HOUSE $226.20 $0.00 

24



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 11 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

PATT001 SPENCER J PATTERSON

 19812 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38180 0.00

 19821 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006530 JUNE GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38180 0.00

 19931 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006578 JULY GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38245 0.00

 19936 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38245 0.00

PATT001 SPENCER J PATTERSON $190.00 $0.00 

PCS001 PROFESSIONAL COMPUTER SYSTEMS LLC

 19845 06/14/2023 2023-12 8241 AP006536 HOSTING FEES  605.00  0.00  38203 0.00

PCS001 PROFESSIONAL COMPUTER SYSTEMS LLC $605.00 $0.00 

PELL001 JOSEPH PELLERIN

 19816 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006530 JUNE GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38181 0.00

 19803 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38181 0.00

 19940 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38246 0.00

 19926 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006578 JULY GAS CREDIT  60.00  0.00  38246 0.00

PELL001 JOSEPH PELLERIN $190.00 $0.00 

PERR001 ANNE-FLORE DWYER

 19789 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  1,505.00  0.00  38152 0.00

PERR001 ANNE-FLORE DWYER $1,505.00 $0.00 

PERS001 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

 19776 06/01/2023 2023-11 AP006519 PPE 05.27.2023 #26403  3,839.87  0.00  8801798 0.00

 19777 06/01/2023 2023-11 AP006519 PPE 05.27.2023 #1765  5,618.99  0.00  8801798 0.00

 19916 06/29/2023 2023-12 AP006571 PPE 06.24.2023 #23403  3,930.92  0.00  8801816 0.00

 19917 06/29/2023 2023-12 AP006571 PPE 06.24.2023 #1765  5,705.68  0.00  8801816 0.00

 19858 06/15/2023 2023-12 AP006538 PPE 06.10.2023 #1765  5,705.68  0.00  8801803 0.00

 19859 06/15/2023 2023-12 AP006538 PPE 06.10.2023 #26403  3,878.36  0.00  8801803 0.00

PERS001 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM $28,679.50 $0.00 

25



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 12 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

PEZZ001 PEZZONI ENGINEERING, INC

 19844 06/14/2023 2023-12 22-863-002 AP006536 VAIL- BACKSIDE LINE PROJECT  220.00  0.00  38204 0.00

PEZZ001 PEZZONI ENGINEERING, INC $220.00 $0.00 

POLY001 POLYDYNE INC.

 19850 06/14/2023 2023-12 1745265 AP006536 450LB DRUM OF CLARIFLOC  3,796.34 23-449  0.00  38205 0.00

POLY001 POLYDYNE INC. $3,796.34 $0.00 

POST003 DAVID POSTE

 19805 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38182 0.00

 19942 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38247 0.00

POST003 DAVID POSTE $70.00 $0.00 

QUAD001 QUADIANT LEASING USA, INC.

 19907 06/28/2023 2023-12 N9996707 AP006568 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE  365.80  0.00  38248 0.00

QUAD001 QUADIANT LEASING USA, INC. $365.80 $0.00 

REMO001 REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT'L

 19833 06/09/2023 2023-12 00123488 AP006532 REMOTE SATALITE PHONE  69.95  0.00  38183 0.00

REMO001 REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT'L $69.95 $0.00 

REPU001 FORWARD, INC.

 19782 06/02/2023 2023-11 4204-000062297 AP006523 SLUDGE REMOVAL  663.45  0.00  38135 0.00

 19868 06/16/2023 2023-12 4204-000062414 AP006546 SLUDGE REMOVAL  677.68  0.00  38206 0.00

REPU001 FORWARD, INC. $1,341.13 $0.00 

26



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 13 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

ROBE001 TIMOTHY  ROBERTS

 19804 06/08/2023 2023-12 AP006528 JUNE CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38184 0.00

 19941 07/05/2023 2024-01 AP006580 JULY CELL PHONE  35.00  0.00  38249 0.00

ROBE001 TIMOTHY  ROBERTS $70.00 $0.00 

SCHR001 CRAIG SCHROEDER

 19798 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  995.00  0.00  38153 0.00

SCHR001 CRAIG SCHROEDER $995.00 $0.00 

SDRM001 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

 19842 06/12/2023 2023-12 73456 AP006534 WORKERS COMP. 2023-2024  82,984.13  0.00  38185 0.00

SDRM001 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY $82,984.13 $0.00 

SHAF001 SHAFER EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC

 19852 06/14/2023 2023-11 10030824 AP006537 PARTS FOR TRACKLESS  223.50 23-364  0.00  38207 0.00

SHAF001 SHAFER EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC $223.50 $0.00 

SHEL001 SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA (US), L.P.

 19874 06/20/2023 2023-11 2.2023 T+70B AP006557 FEB PURCHASED POWER (276.61)  0.00  8801811 0.00

 19875 06/20/2023 2023-11 05.2023 T+9B AP006557 MAY PURCHASED POWER  39,080.84  0.00  8801811 0.00

SHEL001 SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA (US), L.P. $38,804.23 $0.00 

SM34001 SUN MEADOWS 3/4 OWNERS ASSOCIATION

 19895 06/23/2023 2023-01 367 AP006563 SM34 #111 HOA DUES  564.00  0.00  38208 0.00

SM34001 SUN MEADOWS 3/4 OWNERS ASSOCIATION $564.00 $0.00 

STAN001 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC.

 19877 06/22/2023 2023-12 2094117 AP006559 LOW INCOME NEEDS ASSESSMENT  2,967.00  0.00  38209 0.00

 19878 06/22/2023 2023-12 2093886 AP006559 WWTP IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  58,716.52  0.00  38209 0.00

STAN001 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. $61,683.52 $0.00 

27



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 14 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

STAP002 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN

 19822 06/09/2023 2023-11 9912821195 AP006531 MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES  202.84 23-438  0.00  38186 0.00

 19908 06/28/2023 2023-12 9913199602 AP006568 STAMP/ NOTEPAD  21.32 23-518  0.00  38250 0.00

STAP002 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN $224.16 $0.00 

SUMM001 SUMMIT PLUMBING COMPANY

 19846 06/14/2023 2023-12 821784 AP006536 GREASE TRAP PUMPING  1,477.50  0.00  38210 0.00

SUMM001 SUMMIT PLUMBING COMPANY $1,477.50 $0.00 

SWRC001 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

 19837 06/09/2023 2023-12 AP006532 T. KHANJARI CERTIFICATE  80.00 23-453  0.00  38187 0.00

 19771 06/01/2023 2023-12 AP006517 WWTP GRADE 2 RENEWAL D. DORNBROOK  150.00 23-440  0.00  38137 0.00

 19772 06/01/2023 2023-12 AP006517 WATER TREATMENT 2 RENEWAL D. DORNBROOK  60.00 23-439  0.00  38137 0.00

SWRC001 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD $290.00 $0.00 

TAYL001 SCOTT  TAYLOR

 19799 06/08/2023 2023-11 AP006526 MAY KVFD  1,115.00  0.00  38154 0.00

TAYL001 SCOTT  TAYLOR $1,115.00 $0.00 

THAT001 THATCHER COMPANY

 19865 06/16/2023 2023-12 2023400110316 AP006546 METHANOL  2,581.82 23-296  0.00  38211 0.00

 19866 06/16/2023 2023-12 2023400110313 AP006546 SIETTA SANI-CHLOR  5,261.78 23-296  0.00  38211 0.00

THAT001 THATCHER COMPANY $7,843.60 $0.00 

THOM004 DANYAL THOMPSON

 19832 06/09/2023 2023-12 AP006532 DEPOSIT REFUND UNIT 2B  146.22  0.00  38188 0.00

THOM004 DANYAL THOMPSON $146.22 $0.00 

28



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 15 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

USAB001 USA BLUEBOOK

 19849 06/14/2023 2023-12 INV00037749 AP006536 WATER LEVEL METER  735.51 23-441  0.00  38212 0.00

 19876 06/22/2023 2023-12 INV0046956 AP006559 GRANULAR CHLORINE  172.35 23-385  0.00  38212 0.00

USAB001 USA BLUEBOOK $907.86 $0.00 

USBA001 US BANK

 19871 06/19/2023 2023-12 2322903 AP006549 MELLO ROOS PAYMENT  373,750.00  0.00  8801806 0.00

USBA001 US BANK $373,750.00 $0.00 

USDA002 USDA / RURAL DEVELOPMENT

 19884 06/22/2023 2023-12 060047 AP006560 RUS LOAN  835,679.23  0.00  8801812 0.00

USDA002 USDA / RURAL DEVELOPMENT $835,679.23 $0.00 

WETL001 WESTERN ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING LABORATORY

 19862 06/15/2023 2023-11 23050310 AP006544 23050310-001 05.09.2023  859.00  0.00  38213 0.00

 19863 06/15/2023 2023-11 23050882 AP006544 23050882-001 05.30.2023  244.00  0.00  38213 0.00

 19830 06/09/2023 2023-11 23050883 AP006531 23050883-001 05.30.2023  171.25  0.00  38189 0.00

 19826 06/09/2023 2023-11 23050881 AP006531 23050881-001 05.30.2023  111.00  0.00  38189 0.00

 19774 06/01/2023 2023-11 23050711 AP006518 23050744-001 05.23.2023  111.00  0.00  38139 0.00

 19775 06/01/2023 2023-11 23050529 AP006518 23050529-001 05.24.2023  195.00  0.00  38139 0.00

 19864 06/15/2023 2023-12 23060111 AP006545 23060111-001 06.06.2023  209.00  0.00  38213 0.00

 19898 06/28/2023 2023-12 23060536 AP006567 23060536-001 06.20.2023  111.00  0.00  38251 0.00

 19899 06/28/2023 2023-12 23060358 AP006567 23060358-001 06.13.2023  184.00  0.00  38251 0.00

 19900 06/28/2023 2023-12 23060359 AP006567 23060359-001 06.13.2023  111.00  0.00  38251 0.00

 19901 06/28/2023 2023-12 23050713 AP006567 23050713-001 05.23.2023  1,689.20  0.00  38251 0.00

 19912 06/29/2023 2023-12 23060362 AP006570 23060362-001 06.13.2023  192.00  0.00  38251 0.00

 19922 07/03/2023 2023-12 23060535 AP006577 23060535-001 06.20.2023  192.00  0.00  38251 0.00

 19952 07/06/2023 2023-12 23060738 AP006583 23060738-001 06.27.2023  111.00  0.00  38251 0.00

WETL001 WESTERN ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING LABORATORY $4,490.45 $0.00 

29



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 16 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

WIRE001 WIRED SOLUTIONS

 19831 06/09/2023 2023-11 301898 AP006531 LENOVO DESKTOP COMPUTER  1,407.43 23-417  0.00  38190 0.00

 19839 06/09/2023 2023-12 301932 AP006532 IT SUPPORT  3,000.00  0.00  38190 0.00

 19840 06/09/2023 2023-12 301933 AP006532 OFFICE 365  436.00  0.00  38190 0.00

WIRE001 WIRED SOLUTIONS $4,843.43 $0.00 

YEAG001 YEAGER TRANSPORT, INC.

 19781 06/02/2023 2023-11 14588 AP006523 PROPANE DELIVERY 05.16.2023  866.16  0.00  38140 0.00

 19921 07/03/2023 2023-12 14979 AP006577 PROPANE DELIVERY 06.26.2023  866.62  0.00  38252 0.00

YEAG001 YEAGER TRANSPORT, INC. $1,732.78 $0.00 

ZORO001 ZORO TOOLS, INC.

 19847 06/14/2023 2023-12 INV12589312 AP006536 GLOVES  66.71 23-436  0.00  38214 0.00

 19848 06/14/2023 2023-12 INV12557134 AP006536 DUSTER  23.03 23-436  0.00  38214 0.00

 19955 07/06/2023 2023-12 INV12719168 AP006583 EXTENSION CORD/ SURGE PROTECTOR  166.14 23-457  0.00  38253 0.00

ZORO001 ZORO TOOLS, INC. $255.88 $0.00 

ZZ000200 THE GREG & CHRISTINA BASZUCKI LIVING TRUST

 19891 06/22/2023 2023-12 AP006562 CREDIT REFUNDS - 20424 1377 KMD #302 THE LODGE  559.03  0.00  38215 0.00

ZZ000200 THE GREG & CHRISTINA BASZUCKI LIVING TRUST $559.03 $0.00 

ZZ000201 ANDREW ETHERINGTON

 19885 06/22/2023 2023-12 AP006562 CREDIT REFUNDS - 11803 1377 KMD #301 THE LODGE  11.81  0.00  38216 0.00

 19886 06/22/2023 2023-12 AP006562 CREDIT REFUNDS - 11803 1377 KMD #301 THE LODGE  12.99  0.00  38216 0.00

 19887 06/22/2023 2023-12 AP006562 CREDIT REFUNDS - 11803 1377 KMD #301 THE LODGE  22.84  0.00  38216 0.00

 19888 06/22/2023 2023-12 AP006562 CREDIT REFUNDS - 11803 1377 KMD #301 THE LODGE  9.89  0.00  38216 0.00

ZZ000201 ANDREW ETHERINGTON $57.53 $0.00 

30



AP - Vouchers  2:29:50PM7/6/2023

Page 17 of 17kmbrittniem

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUD

DocNbr TranDate PeriodPost InvNbr PONbr BatchID Description Amount Paid Chk # Doc BalanceDiscAmt

ZZ000202 JOSH OBERWEIS-MANION

 19889 06/22/2023 2023-12 AP006562 CREDIT REFUNDS - 19172 39 PALISADES DR #106 TIMBER  1,120.74  0.00  38217 0.00

ZZ000202 JOSH OBERWEIS-MANION $1,120.74 $0.00 

ZZ000203 ANDY SILLS

 19890 06/22/2023 2023-12 AP006562 CREDIT REFUNDS - 19350 1215 KMD #207B SNOWCREST  169.16  0.00  38218 0.00

ZZ000203 ANDY SILLS $169.16 $0.00 

ZZ000204 SEBASTIAN HOLMES

 19892 06/22/2023 2023-12 AP006562 CREDIT REFUNDS - 22222 1215 KMD #210B SNOWCREST  1,186.80  0.00  38219 0.00

ZZ000204 SEBASTIAN HOLMES $1,186.80 $0.00 

ZZ000205 DEVIN MARTIN

 19893 06/22/2023 2023-12 AP006562 CREDIT REFUNDS - 22793 976 KMD #20 EDELWEISS  156.41  0.00  38220 0.00

ZZ000205 DEVIN MARTIN $156.41 $0.00 

$ 1,683,339.78 All Vendors Report Total

Database: D:\Program Files\PCS\Insight Accounting\InstalledReports\AP-Vouchers.rptReport:

({APDoc.DocNbr} in [19955, 19954, 19953, 19952, 19951, 19950, 19949, 19948, 19947, 19946, 19945, 19944, 19943, 19942, 19941, 19940, 19939, 19938, 19937, 19936, 19935, 

19934, 19933, 19932, 19931, 19930, 19929, 19928, 19927, 19926, 19925, 19924, 19923, 19922, 19921, 19920, 19918, 19917, 19916, 19915, 19914, 19913, 19912, 19911, 19910, 19908, 

19907, 19906, 19905, 19904, 19903, 19902, 19901, 19900, 19899, 19898, 19897, 19896, 19895, 19894, 19893, 19892, 19891, 19890, 19889, 19888, 19887, 19886, 19885, 19884, 19883, 

19882, 19881, 19880, 19879, 19878, 19877, 19876, 19875, 19874, 19873, 19872, 19871, 19870, 19869, 19868, 19867, 19866, 19865, 19864, 19863, 19862, 19861, 19860, 19859, 19858, 

19856, 19855, 19854, 19853, 19852, 19851, 19850, 19849, 19848, 19847, 19846, 19845, 19844, 19843, 19842, 19841, 19840, 19839, 19838, 19837, 19836, 19835, 19833, 19832, 19831, 

19830, 19829, 19828, 19827, 19826, 19825, 19824, 19823, 19822, 19821, 19820, 19819, 19818, 19817, 19816, 19815, 19814, 19813, 19812, 19811, 19810, 19809, 19808, 19807, 19806, 

19805, 19804, 19803, 19802, 19801, 19800, 19799, 19798, 19797, 19796, 19795, 19794, 19793, 19792, 19791, 19790, 19789, 19788, 19787, 19786, 19785, 19784, 19783, 19782, 19781, 

19780, 19779, 19778, 19777, 19776, 19775, 19774, 19773, 19772, 19771, 19770])

Parameters:

Insight Production

31



Acct CurrentBal PastDue 1to30 PastDue 31to60 PastDue Over90 PastDue Over90 TotalBal Last Payment  Date

10275 2,357.36 2,577.80 2,356.48 0.00 0.00 7,291.64 4/28/2023

10317 626.58 146.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 772.68 5/23/2023

10364 558.24 1,080.61 990.07 1,821.19 3.90 4,454.01 4/25/2023

10628 308.91 15.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 324.41 6/5/2023

10951 239.63 27.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 267.31 7/7/2023

11441 520.51 774.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,295.03 5/23/2023

12604 224.36 248.54 254.09 0.00 0.00 726.99 4/24/2023

12771 284.06 362.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 646.17 5/18/2023

12940 239.09 263.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 502.93 5/31/2023

13058 9,068.37 3,537.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,605.50 6/27/2023

13372 296.08 522.22 546.51 575.37 466.22 2,406.40 6/19/2023

14179 250.19 25.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 275.68 7/11/2023

14680 542.42 916.60 1,125.46 1,820.41 5,006.37 9,411.26 6/26/2023

15545 1,334.08 714.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,048.90 7/3/2023

15932 285.89 289.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 575.25 6/12/2023

16377 2,651.07 842.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,493.18 7/3/2023

16380 253.76 492.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 746.41 7/3/2023

16431 5,654.73 1,910.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,565.19 6/27/2023

16444 163.54 40.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 204.50 7/3/2023

16508 462.96 848.62 853.46 489.46 0.00 2,654.50 6/12/2023

16533 336.37 428.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 765.04 6/7/2023

16742 13,451.64 8,291.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,743.40 6/27/2023

16800 300.64 327.49 44.24 0.00 0.00 672.37 6/21/2023

17143 4,360.67 3,422.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,783.56 6/27/2023

17207 0.00 265.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 265.62 7/11/2023

17321 454.84 774.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,229.17 5/24/2023

17676 1,309.37 1,700.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,009.63 6/27/2023

17705 331.22 358.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 690.09 6/27/2023

17721 538.52 820.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,358.65 6/27/2023

18095 183.25 56.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 239.35 7/3/2023

18106 107.09 25.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 132.64 7/3/2023

18728 396.96 414.85 411.78 619.20 0.00 1,842.79 3/28/2023

18753 833.13 1,071.91 1,392.81 231.57 0.00 3,529.42 7/5/2023

18775 396.68 586.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 983.34 5/31/2023

19227 234.34 318.80 309.28 114.33 0.00 976.75 6/8/2023

19296 283.80 28.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 312.06 7/11/2023

19541 616.12 794.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,410.33 5/25/2023

19550 366.07 435.14 64.07 0.00 0.00 865.28 6/21/2023

20513 269.41 282.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 551.56 5/24/2023

20637 681.83 1,035.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,716.88 5/24/2023

20659 330.81 604.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 935.20 5/30/2023

20960 226.84 282.79 284.29 108.01 0.00 901.93 5/30/2023

21145 297.91 377.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 675.17 5/18/2023

21450 221.41 269.32 183.84 0.00 0.00 674.57 4/24/2023

There are currently 0 locked off accounts for non-payment.

Past Due Balances 32



Acct CurrentBal PastDue 1to30 PastDue 31to60 PastDue Over90 PastDue Over90 TotalBal Last Payment  Date

There are currently 0 locked off accounts for non-payment.

Past Due Balances 

21501 277.30 314.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 592.27 5/25/2023

21625 219.58 291.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 510.96 5/24/2023

21694 295.32 415.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 711.20 5/9/2023

22193 386.90 534.34 50.62 0.00 0.00 971.86 6/15/2023

22355 215.62 243.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 459.43 5/17/2023

22435 343.20 383.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 726.72 5/16/2023

22511 368.53 476.02 495.42 532.85 0.00 1,872.82 7/3/2023

22571 606.65 733.36 1,061.87 0.00 0.00 2,401.88 4/14/2023

22844 231.73 14.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 246.43 6/9/2023

22857 266.54 315.74 422.16 29.16 0.00 1,033.60 5/9/2023

22879 316.56 355.46 821.37 0.00 0.00 1,493.39 6/28/2023

23410 272.83 24.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 297.13 7/10/2023

23521 364.11 36.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 401.02 6/12/2023

23543 545.75 587.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,133.45 5/24/2023

23610 278.85 309.40 331.69 227.34 0.00 1,147.28 3/21/2023

23667 504.27 517.31 610.82 0.00 0.00 1,632.40 5/9/2023

TOTALS 58,344.49 44,164.38 12,610.33 6,568.89 5,476.49 127,164.58

Acct 1 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 90 NOTES

10573 222.32 341.79 328.85 330.86 1,713.76 2,937.58 2/8/2023

TOTALS 222.32 341.79 328.85 330.86 1,713.76 2,937.58

Acct 1 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 90 NOTES

TOTALS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Secondary AR Past Due Balances 

Shutoffs

33



 

Get additional resources at the         Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action     P a g e  | 1 

May-June 2023 
 
Over 200 special district leaders converged in Sacramento in May to meet with State leaders on some of 
the biggest public policy issues facing special districts. During brunch meetings with 40 legislative offices 
participating, attendees discussed Brown Act remote meetings, design-build, and zero emission vehicle 
mandates among other advocacy priorities. The event took place the week after Governor Gavin Newsom 
unveiled his May Revise to the 2023-24 State Budget and attendees shared CSDA’s key budget requests. 
 
Copies of the slide decks presented at Special Districts Legislative Days are available at 
legislativedays.csda.net/schedule. Be sure to save the date for next year’s event, back at the Sheraton 
Grand Sacramento May 21-22, 2024. 
 
With the Governor’s May Revise in hand, the Budget Subcommittees are now in full swing as the 
Legislature faces a June 15 Constitutional deadline to pass a balanced budget. May 19 was the last day for 
the Appropriations Committees to pass bills to the floor and June 2 is the “House of Origin Deadline” when 
all bills must be passed out of the house in which they were introduced. Policy committees taking up bills in 
their second house will then have until July 14 to consider legislation prior to the Summer Recess.  
 
 
Inside this edition of the Take Action Brief: 
 
Legislative Priorities Advocated at Special Districts Legislative Days......…………………..……..……….…...2 
 
FEEDBACK REQUESTED: Governor’s BUILD Proposals………………………………………………………..3 
 
May Revise to Governor Proposed 2023-24 State Budget…...…………………………………………….……..4 
 
Key Budget Requests…………………………………………………………………………….....……………..….5 
 
2023 CSDA Advocacy Priorities……..……………………………………………………………………………….6 
 
What are Special Districts?..............................................................................................................................7 
 
Where Special Districts Fit in the Public Services Puzzle………………………………………………………….8 
 
Special Districts: Community Driven and Future Focused………………………………………………………...9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact a local CSDA representative near you!  
 
Chris Norden   Northern Network   chrisn@csda.net  
Dane Wadlé   Sierra Network   danew@csda.net 
Colleen Haley   Bay Area Network   colleenh@csda.net 
Melissa Green              Central Network                                 melissag@csda.net 
Charlotte Holifield  Coastal Network   charlotteh@csda.net 
Chris Palmer   Southern Network                chrisp@csda.net  

34

http://www.csda.net/advocate/take-action
https://legislativedays.csda.net/schedule
mailto:chrisn@csda.net
mailto:danew@csda.net
mailto:colleenh@csda.net
mailto:melissag@csda.net
mailto:charlotteh@csda.net
mailto:chrisp@csda.net


 

Get additional resources at the         Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action     P a g e  | 2 

 Legislative Priorities:  
Advocated at Special Districts Legislative Days 

 

 
SPECIAL DISTRICTS WEEK – SPONSOR  
Senate Concurrent Resolution 52 (Alvarado-Gil) 
Status: Senate Floor (as of 5.4.23) 
 
Important Facts: Proclaims May 14 – 20, to be Special Districts Week. The resolution encourages 
Californians across the state to engage with their local communities and be actively involved with their 
government, particularly with special districts and the areas they serve.  
 
OPEN MEETINGS: LOCAL AGENCIES: TELECONFERENCES – SPONSOR 
Assembly Bill 557 (Hart) 
Status: Assembly Floor (as of 5.4.23) 
 
Important Facts: Would preserve the emergency remote meeting procedures added to the Ralph M. Brown 
Act by Assembly Bill 361 (R. Rivas, 2021) by eliminating a January 1, 2024, sunset on those procedures. 
Would change, from 30 days to 45 days, the duration of required local agency resolutions passed as part of 
the process. The procedures will continue to require a Governor-declared emergency. 
 
LOCAL AGENCY DESIGN-BUILD PROJECTS: AUTHORIZATION – SUPPORT  
Assembly Bill 400 (Rubio) 
Status: Assembly Committee on Appropriations (as of 5.4.23) 
 
Important Facts: Would extend the sunset date for local governments to use the design-build (DB) project 
delivery method for public works projects from January 1, 2025, until January 1, 2031. Local governments, 
including certain authorized special districts (wastewater facilities, solid waste management facilities, water 
recycling facilities, or fire protection facilities), use DB to build infrastructure projects efficiently. 
 
PUBLIC CONTRACTS: PROGRESSIVE DESIGN-BUILD: LOCAL AGENCIES – SUPPORT 
Senate Bill 706 (Caballero) 
Status: Assembly Desk (as of 5.4.23) 
 
Important Facts: Would expand local agency progressive design-build (PDB) authority for public works 
construction contracts to any type of project, not just water projects as provided for under current law. 
 
MEDIUM- AND HEAVY-DUTY ZERO-EMISSION VEHICLES: PUBLIC AGENCY UTILITIES – SUPPORT 
Assembly Bill 1594 (Garcia) 
Status: Assembly Committee on Appropriations (as of 5.4.23) 
 
Important Facts: Would require any state regulation on the procurement of medium- and heavy-duty zero-
emission vehicles (ZEVs) by a public agency utility, such as California Air Resources Board (CARB) ZEV 
Advance Clean Fleet (ACF) regulation, to ensure that fleet vehicles are able to support a public agency 
utility’s ability to maintain reliable water, sewer, and electric services, respond to disasters in an emergency 
capacity, and provide mutual aid assistance statewide and nationwide. 
 
 
 
 
 

35

http://www.csda.net/advocate/take-action
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SCR52
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB557
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB400
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB706
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1594


 

Get additional resources at the         Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action     P a g e  | 3 

 FEEDBACK REQUESTED: Governor’s “BUILD” Proposals 
 
On Friday, May 19, Governor Gavin Newsom announced new permitting and project reforms, called 
“Build More, Preserving Jobs” or “BUILD”. Please send your feedback to CSDA Legislative 
Representative Heidi Hannaman via email to heidih@csda.net: 
 

• Administrative Records Review 
Clarifies and streamlines procedures related to the preparation of the public record for the judicial 
review of level challenges brought under CEQA in order to reduce the litigation time. 

o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 
• CEQA Judicial Streamlining 

Provides for expedited judicial review of challenges to certain water, transportation, clean energy, 
and semiconductor or microelectronic projects under CEQA. 

o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 
• Green Financing Programs for Federal Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) Funding 

Allows I-Bank and DWR to access and utilize federal funding provided in the Inflation Reduction Act, 
to finance projects that reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 
• Accelerating Environmental Mitigation 

Streamlines the implementation of environmental mitigation measures for the efficient delivery of 
Caltrans projects. 

o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 
• National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Delegation Authority 

Removes the current sunset provision and permanently authorizes the consent of California to the 
jurisdiction of federal courts and waiver of immunity by the California Transportation Agency 
(CalSTA) with regards to the performance of certain federal environmental responsibilities under the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). 

o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 
• Direct Contracting (Public Private Partnership Authority I-15 Wildlife Crossings) 

Authorizes Caltrans to directly contract to construct three wildlife crossings over Interstate 15 as part 
of the Brightline West high-speed rail project between California and Nevada. 

o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 
• Job Order Contracting 

Authorizes Caltrans to use the job order contracting method to complete routine transportation 
projects and maintenance work quickly and easily. 

o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 
• Progressive Design-Build Authority for CalTrans and DWR 

Allows the DWR and Caltrans to establish a progressive design-build pilot program until 1/1/2031. 
o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 

• Fully Protected Species Reclassification 
To ensure better species conservation and improved permitting for essential infrastructure projects, 
repeals the four existing statutes designating species as “fully protected” under California law. The 
bill would reclassify the 37 fully protected species. 

o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 
• Delta Reform Act Streamlining 

Makes refinements to the Delta Reform Act that will streamline certain review processes with the 
intent that Delta Plan projects can be planned, permitted, and built faster while protecting the 
environment. 

o Fact Sheet and Trailer Bill Language 
 
 

36

http://www.csda.net/advocate/take-action
mailto:heidih@csda.net
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/954
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/953
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/956
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/955
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/958
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/957
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/960
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/959
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/962
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/961
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/964
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/963
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/966
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/965
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/969
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/967
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/971
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/970
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/973
https://esd.dof.ca.gov/trailer-bill/public/trailerBill/pdf/972


 

Get additional resources at the         Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action     P a g e  | 4 

 May Revise to Governor’s Proposed 2023-24 State Budget 
 
On Friday, May 12, Governor Gavin Newsom released the May Revision to his 2023-24 State Budget 
proposal. When the Governor released his proposal in January there was a projected $22.5 billion deficit to 
the State Budget. The May Revision projects an additional $9.3 billion revenue shortfall, bringing the total 
anticipated deficit to $31.5 billion.  
 
To address the funding shortfall, the Governor’s administration has proposed a series of cuts, delays, and 
reductions to funding. While the May Revise does not contain new trigger cuts, it does maintain most of the 
$3.9 billion in trigger reductions included in the Governor’s January budget proposal. Among the top issues 
of interest to special districts: 
  
Climate 
In the May Revision, there is a continuation of a multi-year wildfire and forest resilience package worth $2.7 
billion. Additionally, the revision contains an allocation of $290 million for a flood-related funding package 
that targets the reduction of flood risk and enhances flood system resilience. The Governor’s Office will 
continue to work with the Legislature to pursue a climate bond in the upcoming months. Due to decreased 
revenue projections and increased budgetary pressures, the May Revision includes an extra $1.1 billion 
General Fund realignment across climate resilience programs which are bond eligible. Specific funding 
sources transitioning to the climate bond include: $270 million for water recycling, $100 million for the 
Regional Resilience Program, $100 million for urban greening, $60 million towards the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) implementation, $50 million for dam safety and flood management, 
and $20 million for multi-benefit land repurposing.   
 
Zero-Emission Vehicles (ZEV) Acceleration   
The Governor’s office has touted that recent data indicates the state has achieved putting 1.5 million Zero 
Emission Vehicles (ZEVs) on the road two years before the projected timeline. The Administration has 
committed to maintaining 89 percent or $8.9 billion in investments to expand ZEV deployment. Some of the 
initiatives related to ZEV deployment have also had their funding sources replaced; $635 million will be 
sourced from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (instead of the General Fund) to underwrite certain ZEV 
programs. The Administration’s ZEV investments include a wide range of initiatives such as the 
improvement of short-haul trucks, school buses, and passenger vehicles. Investments will also include 
provisions for infrastructure development and incentives to support in-state manufacturing.   
 
Homelessness  
Despite the allocation of $7.3 billion of funds in 2021 and $10.2 billion designated in the 2022 Budget, the 
state continues to confront a surge in homelessness. To address this issue, the California Interagency 
Council on Homelessness (Cal ICH) has been tasked with advancing a cohesive response. The Governor 
has provided nearly $3 billion to local governments through four rounds of the Homeless Housing, 
Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Program, with an additional $1 billion proposed for a fifth round of 
HHAP grants, and $400 million for a third round of the Encampment Resolution Funding (ERF) Program to 
resolve encampments.   
   
Property Taxes  
Preliminary data suggest statewide property tax revenues increased around 7.4 percent in 2022-23, which 
is 1.4 percentage points higher than the 6 percent growth rate anticipated in the Governor’s budget forecast. 
Property tax revenues are expected to grow 4.5 percent in 2023-24, which is 0.5 percentage point lower 
than the 5 percent growth expected in the Governor’s budget. Strong growth in 2022-23 is likely due to 
home price increases that took place in 2021. More moderate growth is expected in 2023-24 due to higher 
interest rates that led to lower property transfers and price declines in 2022. 
 

37

http://www.csda.net/advocate/take-action
https://ebudget.ca.gov/budget/2023-24MR/#/BudgetSummary


KEY BUDGET REQUESTS

Meeting the Needs of 
California’s Communities

California Special
Districts Association
Districts Stronger Together

Paying Off State Mandate Debt Owed to Local Governments
Amount TBD (Approximately $830 million as of the end of 2022)
The State of California owes local agencies millions of dollars for mandate reimbursements required under the Constitution. Reimbursement 
would fund compliance with the Brown Act and other important laws and ensure these statutes remain enforceable. This expenditure would 
relieve the State of its Constitutionally obligated debt. 
CSDA Contact: Marcus Detwiler (marcusd@csda.net)

Increased Mosquito Abatement Measures to Combat Spread of Non-Native Species
$5 million ongoing
The Mosquito and Vector Control Association of California has seen tremendous growth in the spread of non-native mosquitoes. This budget 
request supports increased mosquito control district activities associated with preventing the local transmission of mosquito-borne diseases 
such as: dengue, Zika, and chikungunya. 
Primary Contact: Mosquito and Vector Control Association of California, Vanessa Cajina (VCajina@ka-pow.com)
CSDA Contact: Heidi Hannaman (heidih@csda.net)

Resource Conservation District Financial Assistance Program  
$10 million 
This budget request will allow the California Department of Conservation to provide two years’ worth of financial assistance to help grow the 
capacity of Resource Conservation Districts (RCDs). Funding will enable RCDs to expand work on fire prevention, sea-level rise, flood protection, 
water quality and supply, and more.
Primary Contact: California Association of Resource Conservation Districts, Nancy Wahl-Scheurich (nancy-wahlscheurich@carcd.org)
CSDA Contact: Heidi Hannaman (heidih@csda.net)

Atmospheric Rivers: Research, Mitigation, and Climate Forecasting Program (AR 
Program), California Department of Water Resources
$10 million
$10 million identified in the Governor’s Proposed 2023-24 Budget will be used to continue advancing operational AR 
forecast tool integration with DWR water supply management, align AR Program results and products with forecast-
informed reservoir operations (FIRO) to increase water management flexibility and continue innovations that improve AR, 
precipitation, and snow level prediction capabilities.
Primary Contact: Scripps Institution of Oceanography, Ian Clampett (iclampett@ucsd.edu) 
CSDA Contact: Aaron Avery (aarona@csda.net) 

Protect Existing Funding for Organic Waste Recycling
Approximately $345,000,000
CSDA and coalition partners recently submitted a letter in support of Governor Newsom’s  January budget proposal to protect the $345 million 
from FY 21-22 and FY 22-23 for SB 1383 Implementation Grants and the Organic Waste Infrastructure Program. This funding is critical to 
support local governments to comply with SB 1383’s organic waste recycling requirements and to spur much-needed organic waste recycling 
infrastructure development.
CSDA Contact: Heidi Hannaman (heidih@csda.net)

38



Deny California Air Resources Board Budget Change Proposal (BCP)
CSDA and coalition partners submitted a letter asking the legislature’s budget committees to deny the California Air Resources Board (CARB) 
budget change proposal (BCP) (3900-010-BCP-2023-GB) to support its Advanced Clean Fleets (ACF) regulations. CARB’s current draft of the 
ACF regulations will create significant administrative burdens for local government fleet operators. The current BCP is based on a burdensome 
system that requires local government agencies to submit exemption requests to CARB because the vehicle technology is not available in the 
quantities required, at feasible prices or even available at all for public fleets to meet the proposed implementation timelines. The letter asks 
the legislature to deny CARB’s ACF BCP request and instead require the department to develop a less administratively onerous exemption 
request process than what is being contemplated in the CARB BCP.
CSDA Contact: Heidi Hannaman (heidih@csda.net)

FEDERAL BUDGET REQUESTS

Precipitation Forecasting for Water Management
$15 million
For the U.S. Weather Research Program under the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration’s (NOAA’s) Office of Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Research appropriations account to support a pilot project in the Western U.S. to improve subseasonal to seasonal (S2S) 
precipitation forecasting to improve water management. 
CSDA Contact: Aaron Avery (aarona@csda.net)

39



California Special
Districts Association
Districts Stronger Together Advocacy Priorities

Prioritizing Infrastructure and Project Delivery

Funding Climate Adaptation and Resilience

Protecting Local Revenue

For more information or to meet with local service specialists leading the way on these issues of critical statewide concern, 
 contact CSDA’s Advocacy and Public Affairs Team at advocacy@csda.net.

• Ensuring special districts have equitable access, as compared to other 
service providers, to state and federal funding to support investments in 
communities they serve

• Maintaining infrastructure—including mitigation of damage to that 
infrastructure such as that arising from the statewide homelessness crisis 
and cybersecurity threats 

• Ensuring the most beneficial projects are built in the most efficient manner, 
such as through permit streamlining or public works bidding and design 
flexibilities

• Confronting the threats and impacts of drought, wildfire, flooding, seawater 
intrusion and air pollution.

• Preserving sources and uses of local revenue for special districts, including 
through protecting development impact fees, ratemaking authority, and 
local property tax

• Preserving the ability to fund and maintain appropriate reserves

• Enhancing, not limiting, local funding tools for growing communities

40



California Special
Districts Association
Districts Stronger Together

WHAT ARE

SPECIAL DISTRICTS?
There are just over 2,000 independent special districts in California

Like cities and counties, special districts are public agencies; 
however, they provide necessary services that many cities and 

counties do not.

Districts are subject to sunshine laws and governed by a board of 
directors directly accountable to their constituents.

Special districts are local public agencies created by community residents to deliver specialized services 
essential to their health, safety, economy, and well-being.

HOW ARE SPECIAL DISTRICTS FUNDED? WHY ARE SPECIAL DISTRICTS NECESSARY?

SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INFRASTRUCTURE 
AND CAPITAL NEEDS ARE FUNDED THROUGH A 
VARIETY OF SOURCES. 

- Revenue sources include fees for services, property taxes, special 
taxes, benefit assessments, impact fees, and grants.

- California law demands a strict process for voter approval of the 
taxes and fees that fund special districts.

- Due to strong local oversight and constitutional provisions , 
special districts often must find a way to do more with less than 
other government agencies.

SPECIAL DISTRICTS ARE FORMED BY COMMUNITIES WHEN 
IT’S SOMETHING:
- The community needs
- The community wants done well
- The community wants done with local control

SPECIAL DISTRICTS SEEK PARTNERSHIP WITH THE STATE AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENTS TO:
• Ensure safe and reliable services for our communities.
• Build resiliency to prepare for and overcome adversity, such as wildfires or other natural disasters.
• Grow the economy and serve more Californians through investment in local and regional infrastructure.

2K Just over 2,000 independent special districts provide services and infrastructure 
that in some way benefits every one of California’s 40 million residents.

Special districts serve all kinds of communities from agricultural, rural, and 
disadvantaged—nearly 60 percent of California’s special districts serve 
disadvantaged communities—to incorporated cities and major metropolitan 
regions, driving innovation and achieving efficiency through focused-
service and economies of scale.

Collectively, special districts serve as the backbone of California’s infrastructure 
and economy, addressing California’s biggest statewide problems at 
the local level.

Many districts provide infrastructure services the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security deems “critical”, 
such as water, irrigation, wastewater and agriculture services.

WATER

WASTEWATER

IRRIGATION SOLID WASTE

FIRE
PROTECTION

COMMUNITY SERVICES, 
METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICTS, IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICTS

FLOOD CONTROL 
& DRAINING

TRANSIT & 
ROAD

PORT, HARBOR 
& NAVIGATION

AIRPORT

HEALTHCARE

AMBULANCE

PARKS & 
RECREATION

MOSQUITO & 
VECTOR CONTROL

LIBRARY

ELECTRICITY

RESOURCE 
CONSERVATION/
SOIL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION

CEMETERY

41



California Special
Districts Association
Districts Stronger Together

Where Special Districts Fit in 
the Public Services Puzzle

California’s communities are diverse in the nature and 
extent of public services they need. The result is a 
network of public service agencies, each with a purpose 
under state law. Within this framework, special districts 
are formed, governed, and “owned” by the community. 
They are created to meet the essential needs of local 
families and economies, and are directly accountable to 
the communities they serve. 

Like cities and counties, special districts are subject 
to “sunshine laws,” audits, and regulatory compliance 
requirements. Special districts are also the most 
responsive form of government because they are 
established, operated, and controlled by local voters, 
and employ highly-trained experts focused on a single 
mission to most efficiently and effectively meet the 
community’s needs.

Special districts are focused on providing a “special-
purpose” municipal service, like water, sanitation, fire 
protection, parks, mosquito abatement, cemeteries, 
resource conservation, ports and harbors, airports, or 
libraries where a city or county does not.

LO
C

A
LI

Z
A

T
IO

N

SPECIALIZATION

Federal
Govt.

State
Govt.

County
Govt.

City
Govt.

Special
District

42



California is the world’s fifth largest economy and plays an integral part in the continued prosperity of 
the country as a whole. The state is faced with many challenges, any one of which could be considered 
the biggest issues of our time.  Climate change, wildfires, drought, homelessness, and mental health, 
all require thoughtful approaches built from the ground up, and they are all being tackled every day by 
the locally-focused experts of California’s special districts. 

Special districts, sometimes referred to as special services districts, are locally-formed and 
independently administered units of local government, created to oversee everything from how 
people get their water and power to how they enjoy their parks and open spaces. Our state simply 
could not function without them.

SPECIAL DISTRICTS: 

COMMUNITY DRIVEN 
AND FUTURE FOCUSED

Special Districts are Addressing California’s Biggest 
Statewide Problems—At The Local Level

Special Districts Are Truly the Backbone of California’s Economy 

Special Districts Operate at the Nexus of Cutting-Edge Technology and 
Community Engagement

California’s Special Districts provide essential services that many cities and counties do not, such as fire protection, health and wellness programs, and core 
infrastructure, including transit, airports, ports and harbors as well as access to reliable water, wastewater, and electricity. Across California, more than 
2,000 special districts serve the needs of nearly every one of California’s 40 million residents—many in disadvantaged communities—and employ more 
than 120,000 front-line workers. 

Special Districts are addressing the biggest statewide problems by taking what the experts learn at the local level and turning that knowledge into 
future-focused, long-term solutions. Scientists, firefighters, engineers, healthcare professionals, water operators, lab technicians, environmental analysts, 
and many other specialists provide special district services. Their expertise allows special districts to respond to a rapidly changing world and develop and 
implement technologies quickly when evolving needs require new, state-of-the-art tools of the trade.

Whether responding to drought conditions with more effective water conservation and groundwater sustainability technologies, mitigating wildfire risk 
and recovery, addressing transportation needs with innovative strategies, or simply serving the physical, mental, and emotional health needs of diverse 
populations, special districts are developing world-class solutions to the everyday needs of the communities they serve.

SPECIAL DISTRICTS SERVE 
VARIED COMMUNITIES 

Within Incorporated Cities

Within Unincorporated Areas

Serving Disadvantaged
Communities

54%

46%

57%

California Special
Districts Association
Districts Stronger Together

43



Get additional resources at the        Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action     P a g e  | 11 

 OTHER WAYS TO
Learn More 

Share Your Knowledge with Special District Leaders! 

Calling all speakers! CSDA is currently planning our 2024 Professional Development calendar and would 
love to consider your session as an in-person workshop, virtual workshop, or webinar. Webinars are offered 
at no charge to CSDA members and are typically 1 – 2 hours in length. CSDA in-person and virtual 
workshops are offered for a fee, take a deeper dive into comprehensive content, and are typically six hours 
in length over the course of two days (virtual) or one full day (in person). 

Share your proposal: https://csdaforms.wufoo.com/forms/q1bi22el1lz2sei/ 

Hurry! Deadline for submissions is COB Friday, June 30, 2023. We anticipate making final selections in 
August. You will be notified only if your proposal is accepted. The call for 2023 CSDA Conference proposals 
will take place in November / December of this year, so keep an eye on your inbox! 

*These session proposals must be educational in nature and not refer to a specific product or service.
Preference is offered to CSDA Members. Not a member? Contact Eric Spencer at erics@csda.net to learn
more.

Join Today 
Join an Expert Feedback Team to provide CSDA staff with invaluable insights on policy issues. Visit 
csda.net/get-involved or email updates@csda.net to inquire about joining one of the following teams: 

• Environment & Disaster Preparedness
• District Operations
• Governance
• Human Resources and Personnel

• Public Works, Facilities, and State
Infrastructure Investment &
Partnership

• Local Revenue

Stay Informed 

In addition to the many ways you can  with CSDA’s advocacy efforts, CSDA offers a 
variety of tools to keep you up-to-date and assist you in your district’s legislative and public outreach. 
Make sure you’re reading these resources: 

• CSDA’s weekly e-Newsletter
• Districts in the News
• CSDA’s California Special Districts Magazine

Email updates@csda.net for help accessing these additional member resources. 

44

http://www.csda.net/advocate/take-action
https://csdaforms.wufoo.com/forms/q1bi22el1lz2sei/
mailto:erics@csda.net
https://www.csda.net/about-csda/get-involved
mailto:updates@csda.net
mailto:updates@csda.net


Overview and Budget Variances 
Other revenue is built up from $450,000 of property tax allocations to electric, $91,851.40 in connection fees 

across funds, sale of Meadow unit totaling $108,447.53, $59,120.80 for the resale of excess REC’s purchased, 

$126,032.11 from the auction for surplus equipment, penalties, fire assessment, and employee housing rent.  

Income Statement combined: 

Income YTD is better than budget by $460,599.  

Income Statement for Fire Department: 

 Income YTD is a negative $288,177. 

Income Statement for Water Fund: 

Income YTD is better than budget by $159,231. 

Income Statement for Wastewater Fund: 

Income YTD is better than the budget by $221,424. 

Income Statement for Employee Housing Fund: 

Income YTD is better than the budget by $105,736. The decision of where to apply the sale of the 

Meadow unit’s profit has been deferred. 

Income Statement for Electric Fund: 

Income YTD is better than the budget by $391,650.  

Income Statement for Snow Removal Fund: 

Income YTD is worse than the budget by $55,387. 

Income Statement for Propane Fund: 

Income YTD is better than the budget by $77,197. 

Income Statement for Solid Waste Fund: 

Income YTD is better than the budget by $19,102. 

45



Balance Sheet - Consolidated 
May 31, 2023

Actual Budget

May, 2023 May, 2023 Variance

ASSETS

Current Assets - Funds

 3,710,364.77  2,611,918.00  1,098,446.77 Total Operating

 150,325.27  150,298.00  27.27 Total KVFD Reserve

 567,362.01  597,693.00 (30,330.99)Total Restricted

 491,179.36  546,684.00 (55,504.64)Total Capital Reserve

 60,102.95  117,000.00 (56,897.05)Total COP Reserve Fund

 4,979,334.36  4,023,593.00  955,741.36 Total Current Assets - Funds

Current Assets - Other

 1,044,728.60  1,076,034.00 (31,305.40)Total Accounts Receivable, net

 500,902.07  200,000.00  300,902.07 Total Materials & Supplies

 118,333.62  110,000.00  8,333.62 Total Prepaid Expenses

 1,663,964.29  1,386,034.00  277,930.29 Total Current Assets - Other

Capital Assets

 12,696,913.45  12,914,910.00 (217,996.55)Total Buildings

 16,910,479.42  16,905,361.00  5,118.42 Total Generation Equipment

 15,854,083.31  15,854,083.00  0.31 Total Intangible Assets

 43,463,500.53  43,870,088.00 (406,587.47)Total General Plant & Other

 550,706.64  483,525.00  67,181.64 Total Construction in Progress

(31,299,077.19) (31,314,018.00)  14,940.81 Total Less: Accumulated Depreciation

 58,176,606.16  58,713,949.00 (537,342.84)Total Capital Assets

Non-Current Assets

 0.00  0.00  0.00 Total Capitalized Interest Bond Proceeds

 0.00  0.00  0.00 Total Restricted Funds

 3,512,971.84  3,261,440.00  251,531.84 Total Unamortized Debt Expenses, net

 0.00  0.00  0.00 Total Other Non-Current Assets

 3,512,971.84  3,261,440.00  251,531.84 Total Non-Current Assets

Deferred Outflows

 470,383.98  562,138.00 (91,754.02)Total Deferred Outflows

 470,383.98  562,138.00 (91,754.02)Total Deferred Outflows

Total Assets  68,332,876.65  67,385,016.00  947,860.65 

 68,803,260.63  67,947,154.00  856,106.63 Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

 108,875.96  318,807.00 (209,931.04)Total Accounts Payable

 244,974.64  266,379.00 (21,404.36)Total Accrued Interest Payable

 14,239.74  0.00  14,239.74 Total Customer Deposits

 450,083.65  345,630.00  104,453.65 Total Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

 846,314.67  642,050.00  204,264.67 Total Other Current Liabilities

 1,664,488.66  1,572,866.00  91,622.66 Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

 50,218,206.32  50,218,216.00 (9.68)Total Long-term Debt, less Current Portion

 974,782.00  899,784.00  74,998.00 Total Installment Loans

(6,080.54)  0.00 (6,080.54)Total Unearned Revenues

 461,171.00  1,033,961.00 (572,790.00)Total Net Pension Liability

 0.00  0.00  0.00 Total Cushion of Credit

 1,857,524.00  1,857,523.00  1.00 Total Net OPEB Liability

 53,505,602.78  54,009,484.00 (503,881.22)Total Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred Inflows

 865,324.99  519,933.00  345,391.99 Total Deferred Inflows

46



Balance Sheet - Consolidated 
May 31, 2023

Actual Budget

May, 2023 May, 2023 Variance

 865,324.99  519,933.00  345,391.99 Total Deferred Inflows

Total Liabilities  55,170,091.44  55,582,350.00 (412,258.56)

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows  56,035,416.43  56,102,283.00 (66,866.57)

EQUITY

Net Assets

 0.00  0.00  0.00 Total Restricted for Debt Service

 12,766,807.60  11,844,871.00  921,936.60 Total Unrestricted

 12,766,807.60  11,844,871.00  921,936.60 Total Net Assets

Total Equity  12,766,807.60  11,844,871.00  921,936.60 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity  68,802,224.03  67,947,154.00  855,070.03

Database: Report:D:\Homedir\PCS\Reports\ClientCustom\Calendar Combined Balance.rpt
{GlAcct.AcctType} in ["A", "L", "Q"] and

{?Period to Post} = {GlAcctBal.PeriodPost}

Parameters:
Insight Production

Last Modified: 10/13/2017

47



Balance Sheet - Consolidated 
May 31, 2023

Actual Budget
May, 2023 May, 2023 Variance

ASSETS
Current Assets - Funds

01 0 13180 73,095.36 2,611,918.00 (2,538,822.64)

02 0 13180 0.00 0.00 0.00

10 0 13180 126,191.82 0.00 126,191.82

20 0 13180 478,128.10 0.00 478,128.10

40 0 13180 174,272.19 0.00 174,272.19

50 0 13180 2,383,662.16 0.00 2,383,662.16

60 0 13180 12,918.27 0.00 12,918.27

70 0 13180 178,444.06 0.00 178,444.06

80 0 13180 254,642.25 0.00 254,642.25

90 0 13180 53,091.37 0.00 53,091.37

3,734,445.5813180 Cash - BOTW Revenue Account 2,611,918.00 1,122,527.58

3,734,445.58 2,611,918.00 1,122,527.58Total Operating
3,734,445.58 2,611,918.00 1,122,527.58Total Current Assets - Funds

Total Assets 3,734,445.58 2,611,918.00 1,122,527.58

3,734,445.58 2,611,918.00 1,122,527.58Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00

Database: Report:D:\Homedir\PCS\Reports\ClientCustom\Calendar Combined Balance.rpt
{GlAcct.AcctType} in ["A", "L", "Q"] and
{?Period to Post} = {GlAcctBal.PeriodPost}

Parameters:
Insight Production

Last Modified: 10/13/2017

48



Budget Income Statement - Combined

YTDMay       YTD 

 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

Commercial  180,794.17  82,743.00  98,051.17 118.50%  2,549,220.35  1,988,530.00  560,690.35 28.20%

Commercial Base Rates  227,139.36  230,191.00 (3,051.64) -1.33%  2,598,260.45  2,532,101.00  66,159.45 2.61%

Residential  131,120.73  97,699.00  33,421.73 34.21%  1,939,903.80  1,813,007.00  126,896.80 7.00%

Residential Base Rates  149,120.74  146,084.00  3,036.74 2.08%  1,637,741.86  1,606,924.00  30,817.86 1.92%

KMPUD Internal Usage  83,140.97  59,296.00  23,844.97 40.21%  712,128.54  710,294.00  1,834.54 0.26%

Meter Charges  7,521.07  7,619.00 (97.93) -1.29%  82,068.79  83,809.00 (1,740.21) -2.08%

Property Taxes  71,611.00  71,611.00  0.00 0.00%  787,721.00  787,721.00  0.00 0.00%

Other  11,869.11  15,140.00 (3,270.89) -21.60%  907,544.21  859,940.00  47,604.21 5.54%

 862,317.15  11,214,589.00  10,382,326.00  151,934.15 21.39%  832,263.00 8.02% 710,383.00 Operating Revenues

Cost of Goods Sold  114,433.11  177,738.00 (63,304.89) -35.62%  2,492,574.93  1,710,437.00  782,137.93 45.73%

Salaries and Wages  128,113.93  117,278.00  10,835.93 9.24%  1,406,418.82  1,404,630.00  1,788.82 0.13%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  66,106.00  64,976.00  1,130.00 1.74%  773,074.41  794,989.00 (21,914.59) -2.76%

Operations & Maintenance  101,486.73  78,110.00  23,376.73 29.93%  985,249.12  950,520.00  34,729.12 3.65%

Contract Services  6,289.00  5,150.00  1,139.00 22.12%  137,882.09  133,450.00  4,432.09 3.32%

Operating Expenses  41,279.60  43,044.00 (1,764.40) -4.10%  499,225.95  515,933.00 (16,707.05) -3.24%

G & A Allocations  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  450,000.00 (427.00)  450,427.00 -105,486.42%

Internal Allocations  42,917.92  40,102.00  2,815.92 7.02%  459,408.08  480,404.00 (20,995.92) -4.37%

Board of Directors  8,193.94  8,707.00 (513.06) -5.89%  93,797.66  95,777.00 (1,979.34) -2.07%

Depreciation  177,258.62  183,742.00 (6,483.38) -3.53%  1,953,040.74  2,021,162.00 (68,121.26) -3.37%

 686,078.85  9,250,671.80  8,106,875.00 (32,768.15) -4.56%  1,143,796.80 14.11% 718,847.00 Operating Expenses

Total  176,238.30  1,963,917.20 (8,464.00)  2,275,451.00  184,702.30 2,182.21% (311,533.80) -13.69%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  6,379.72  0.00  6,379.72 na

Other  50.00  0.00  50.00 na  727,004.31  0.00  727,004.31 na

 50.00  733,384.03  0.00  50.00 na  733,384.03 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  123,470.69  134,389.00 (10,918.31) -8.12%  1,466,384.14  1,500,275.00 (33,890.86) -2.26%

Amortization  35,758.33  36,200.00 (441.67) -1.22%  393,341.72  398,200.00 (4,858.28) -1.22%

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 159,229.02  1,859,725.86  1,898,475.00 (11,359.98) -6.66% (38,749.14) -2.04% 170,589.00 Non-Operating Expenses

GASB 68 Pension Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

GASB 75 OPEB Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 GASB 68 & 75 Expense

Total (159,179.02) (1,126,341.83)(170,589.00) (1,898,475.00) 11,409.98 6.69%  772,133.17 40.67%Non-Operating

 837,575.37  196,112.28 109.53%  460,599.37 122.18% 17,059.28 (179,053.00)  376,976.00 

49



Budget Income Statement -  General Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

1 - General & Admin

Property Taxes  71,611.00  71,611.00  0.00 0.00%  787,721.00  787,721.00  0.00 0.00%

Other  108.80  0.00  108.80 na  11,249.20  0.00  11,249.20 na

 71,719.80  798,970.20  787,721.00  108.80 0.15%  11,249.20 1.43% 71,611.00 Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages  58,767.64  51,150.00  7,617.64 14.89%  563,070.27  564,007.00 (936.73) -0.17%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  41,577.77  41,298.00  279.77 0.68%  482,240.21  453,933.00  28,307.21 6.24%

Operations & Maintenance  15,271.93  4,900.00  10,371.93 211.67%  83,141.73  53,900.00  29,241.73 54.25%

Contract Services  2,537.50  1,000.00  1,537.50 153.75%  86,146.12  76,500.00  9,646.12 12.61%

Operating Expenses  34,585.31  36,164.00 (1,578.69) -4.37%  392,595.73  411,403.00 (18,807.27) -4.57%

G & A Allocations (160,825.30) (143,224.00) (17,601.30) 12.29% (1,253,034.32) (1,668,841.00)  415,806.68 -24.92%

Internal Allocations  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  13,300.00  13,300.00  0.00 0.00%

Board of Directors  8,193.94  8,707.00 (513.06) -5.89%  93,797.66  95,777.00 (1,979.34) -2.07%

 108.79  461,257.40 (21.00) 113.79 -2,275.80%  461,278.40 -2,196,563.81%(5.00)Operating Expenses

Total  71,611.01  337,712.80  71,616.00  787,742.00 (4.99) -0.01% (450,029.20) -57.13%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Amortization  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Expenses

Total  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 naNon-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS) (4.99) -0.01% (450,029.20) -57.13% 71,611.01  71,616.00  337,712.80  787,742.00 

50



Budget Income Statement -  General Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

2 - Fire Department

Other  5,402.98  5,600.00 (197.02) -3.52%  66,605.48  61,600.00  5,005.48 8.13%

 5,402.98  66,605.48  61,600.00 (197.02) -3.52%  5,005.48 8.13% 5,600.00 Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages  0.00  150.00 (150.00) -100.00%  82.52  1,650.00 (1,567.48) -95.00%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  0.00  82.00 (82.00) -100.00%  119.64  950.00 (830.36) -87.41%

Operations & Maintenance  9,110.83  12,220.00 (3,109.17) -25.44%  161,141.04  134,420.00  26,721.04 19.88%

Contract Services  787.50  0.00  787.50 na  4,436.25  0.00  4,436.25 na

Operating Expenses  526.75  910.00 (383.25) -42.12%  5,012.64  10,010.00 (4,997.36) -49.92%

G & A Allocations  13,348.50  11,888.00  1,460.50 12.29%  141,351.82  138,515.00  2,836.82 2.05%

Internal Allocations  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  22.29  0.00  22.29 na

Depreciation  4,185.67  4,500.00 (314.33) -6.99%  45,619.20  49,500.00 (3,880.80) -7.84%

 27,959.25  357,785.40  335,045.00 (1,790.75) -6.02%  22,740.40 6.79% 29,750.00 Operating Expenses

Total (22,556.27) (291,179.92)(24,150.00) (273,445.00) 1,593.73 -6.60% (17,734.92) 6.49%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  3,002.58  0.00  3,002.58 na

 0.00  3,002.58  0.00  0.00 na  3,002.58 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Amortization  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Expenses

Total  0.00  3,002.58  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  3,002.58 naNon-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS)  1,593.73 -6.60% (14,732.34) 5.39%(22,556.27) (24,150.00) (288,177.34) (273,445.00)

51



Budget Income Statement -  General Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

3 - Parks & Recreation

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  1,844.84  2,502.00 (657.16) -26.27%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  1,196.88  1,606.00 (409.12) -25.47%

Operations & Maintenance  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  900.00 (900.00) -100.00%

Operating Expenses  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

G & A Allocations  1,608.25  1,432.00  176.25 12.31%  17,030.36  16,668.00  362.36 2.17%

Internal Allocations  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  2.69  0.00  2.69 na

Depreciation  0.00  315.00 (315.00) -100.00%  0.00  3,465.00 (3,465.00) -100.00%

 1,608.25  20,074.77  25,141.00 (138.75) -7.94% (5,066.23) -20.15% 1,747.00 Operating Expenses

Total (1,608.25) (20,074.77)(1,747.00) (25,141.00) 138.75 -7.94%  5,066.23 -20.15%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  32.00  0.00  32.00 na

 0.00  32.00  0.00  0.00 na  32.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Amortization  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Expenses

Total  0.00  32.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  32.00 naNon-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS)  138.75 -7.94%  5,098.23 -20.28%(1,608.25) (1,747.00) (20,042.77) (25,141.00)

52



Budget Income Statement -  Water Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

0 - Default

Commercial  5,847.86  2,835.00  3,012.86 106.27%  99,196.77  81,502.00  17,694.77 21.71%

Commercial Base Rates  14,890.92  16,634.00 (1,743.08) -10.48%  167,941.32  182,974.00 (15,032.68) -8.22%

Residential  5,617.57  2,992.00  2,625.57 87.75%  92,399.29  103,161.00 (10,761.71) -10.43%

Residential Base Rates  24,029.40  23,722.00  307.40 1.30%  263,810.29  260,942.00  2,868.29 1.10%

KMPUD Internal Usage  44.09  0.00  44.09 na  496.88  0.00  496.88 na

Meter Charges  3,487.14  3,498.00 (10.86) -0.31%  37,720.73  38,478.00 (757.27) -1.97%

Other  39.21  500.00 (460.79) -92.16%  14,800.96  5,500.00  9,300.96 169.11%

 53,956.19  676,366.24  672,557.00  3,775.19 7.52%  3,809.24 0.57% 50,181.00 Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages  8,440.56  9,523.00 (1,082.44) -11.37%  98,942.47  97,275.00  1,667.47 1.71%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  4,123.16  5,142.00 (1,018.84) -19.81%  43,684.27  55,958.00 (12,273.73) -21.93%

Operations & Maintenance  298.42  1,450.00 (1,151.58) -79.42%  43,843.02  24,950.00  18,893.02 75.72%

Contract Services  1,780.00  1,600.00  180.00 11.25%  18,099.09  17,600.00  499.09 2.84%

Operating Expenses  712.92  1,400.00 (687.08) -49.08%  8,794.40  15,400.00 (6,605.60) -42.89%

G & A Allocations  28,144.43  25,064.00  3,080.43 12.29%  298,031.01  292,046.00  5,985.01 2.05%

Internal Allocations  2,764.35  8,572.00 (5,807.65) -67.75%  29,100.73  99,754.00 (70,653.27) -70.83%

Depreciation  8,539.91  9,000.00 (460.09) -5.11%  95,163.91  99,000.00 (3,836.09) -3.87%

 54,803.75  635,658.90  701,983.00 (6,947.25) -11.25% (66,324.10) -9.45% 61,751.00 Operating Expenses

Total (847.56)  40,707.34 (11,570.00) (29,426.00) 10,722.44 -92.67%  70,133.34 -238.34%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  318.42  0.00  318.42 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  83,650.90  0.00  83,650.90 na

 0.00  83,969.32  0.00  0.00 na  83,969.32 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  256.79  859.00 (602.21) -70.11%  5,198.60  9,449.00 (4,250.40) -44.98%

Amortization (79.82)  0.00 (79.82) na (878.02)  0.00 (878.02) na

 176.97  4,320.58  9,449.00 (682.03) -79.40% (5,128.42) -54.27% 859.00 Non-Operating Expenses

GASB 68 Pension Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

GASB 75 OPEB Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 GASB 68 & 75 Expense

Total (176.97)  79,648.74 (859.00) (9,449.00) 682.03 -79.40%  89,097.74 -942.93%Non-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS)  11,404.47 -91.76%  159,231.08 -409.60%(1,024.53) (12,429.00)  120,356.08 (38,875.00)

53



Budget Income Statement -  Waste Water Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

0 - Default

Commercial  19,173.50  7,528.00  11,645.50 154.70%  374,166.23  328,771.00  45,395.23 13.81%

Commercial Base Rates  26,966.27  30,124.00 (3,157.73) -10.48%  424,008.27  331,364.00  92,644.27 27.96%

Residential  16,189.68  9,201.00  6,988.68 75.96%  256,972.80  267,021.00 (10,048.20) -3.76%

Residential Base Rates  39,965.18  39,451.00  514.18 1.30%  438,519.14  433,961.00  4,558.14 1.05%

KMPUD Internal Usage  78.38  0.00  78.38 na  896.52  0.00  896.52 na

Meter Charges  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Other (61.51)  625.00 (686.51) -109.84%  9,447.23  6,875.00  2,572.23 37.41%

 102,311.50  1,504,010.19  1,367,992.00  15,382.50 17.70%  136,018.19 9.94% 86,929.00 Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages  15,184.06  16,472.00 (1,287.94) -7.82%  128,594.44  168,105.00 (39,510.56) -23.50%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  8,966.40  9,394.00 (427.60) -4.55%  74,738.19  102,464.00 (27,725.81) -27.06%

Operations & Maintenance  9,815.10  14,650.00 (4,834.90) -33.00%  139,361.65  161,150.00 (21,788.35) -13.52%

Contract Services  1,007.00  2,050.00 (1,043.00) -50.88%  17,390.88  33,850.00 (16,459.12) -48.62%

Operating Expenses  4,704.58  2,600.00  2,104.58 80.95%  24,007.38  28,600.00 (4,592.62) -16.06%

G & A Allocations  28,144.43  25,064.00  3,080.43 12.29%  298,031.01  292,046.00  5,985.01 2.05%

Internal Allocations  39,119.99  29,430.00  9,689.99 32.93%  400,458.06  338,733.00  61,725.06 18.22%

Depreciation  24,378.55  26,000.00 (1,621.45) -6.24%  269,910.02  286,000.00 (16,089.98) -5.63%

 131,320.11  1,352,491.63  1,410,948.00  5,660.11 4.50% (58,456.37) -4.14% 125,660.00 Operating Expenses

Total (29,008.61)  151,518.56 (38,731.00) (42,956.00) 9,722.39 -25.10%  194,474.56 -452.73%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  467.02  0.00  467.02 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  14,710.00  0.00  14,710.00 na

 0.00  15,177.02  0.00  0.00 na  15,177.02 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  754.22  1,880.00 (1,125.78) -59.88%  10,176.19  20,681.00 (10,504.81) -50.79%

Amortization (115.24)  0.00 (115.24) na (1,267.64)  0.00 (1,267.64) na

 638.98  8,908.55  20,681.00 (1,241.02) -66.01% (11,772.45) -56.92% 1,880.00 Non-Operating Expenses

GASB 68 Pension Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

GASB 75 OPEB Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 GASB 68 & 75 Expense

Total (638.98)  6,268.47 (1,880.00) (20,681.00) 1,241.02 -66.01%  26,949.47 -130.31%Non-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS)  10,963.41 -27.00%  221,424.03 -347.95%(29,647.59) (40,611.00)  157,787.03 (63,637.00)

54



Budget Income Statement -  Employee Housing Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

0 - Default

Other  5,620.00  5,400.00  220.00 4.07%  58,437.00  73,800.00 (15,363.00) -20.82%

 5,620.00  58,437.00  73,800.00  220.00 4.07% (15,363.00) -20.82% 5,400.00 Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages  486.02  392.00  94.02 23.98%  5,314.98  3,136.00  2,178.98 69.48%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  295.38  211.00  84.38 39.99%  3,010.93  1,853.00  1,157.93 62.49%

Operations & Maintenance  5,486.30  2,500.00  2,986.30 119.45%  26,983.34  27,500.00 (516.66) -1.88%

Contract Services  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Operating Expenses  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

G & A Allocations  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Internal Allocations  750.86  1,143.00 (392.14) -34.31%  8,814.22  13,095.00 (4,280.78) -32.69%

Depreciation  4,120.55  4,900.00 (779.45) -15.91%  47,027.22  53,900.00 (6,872.78) -12.75%

 11,139.11  91,150.69  99,484.00  1,993.11 21.79% (8,333.31) -8.38% 9,146.00 Operating Expenses

Total (5,519.11) (32,713.69)(3,746.00) (25,684.00)(1,773.11) 47.33% (7,029.69) 27.37%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  108,447.53  0.00  108,447.53 na

 0.00  108,447.53  0.00  0.00 na  108,447.53 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  600.76  1,200.00 (599.24) -49.94%  8,881.66  13,200.00 (4,318.34) -32.71%

Amortization  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 600.76  8,881.66  13,200.00 (599.24) -49.94% (4,318.34) -32.71% 1,200.00 Non-Operating Expenses

GASB 68 Pension Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

GASB 75 OPEB Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 GASB 68 & 75 Expense

Total (600.76)  99,565.87 (1,200.00) (13,200.00) 599.24 -49.94%  112,765.87 -854.29%Non-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS) (1,173.87) 23.73%  105,736.18 -271.93%(6,119.87) (4,946.00)  66,852.18 (38,884.00)

55



Budget Income Statement -  Electricity Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

0 - Default

Commercial  59,258.31  35,457.00  23,801.31 67.13%  979,065.54  734,398.00  244,667.54 33.32%

Commercial Base Rates  183,476.66  181,633.00  1,843.66 1.02%  1,986,928.55  1,997,963.00 (11,034.45) -0.55%

Residential  29,289.16  25,436.00  3,853.16 15.15%  448,055.03  430,504.00  17,551.03 4.08%

Residential Base Rates  82,364.06  80,255.00  2,109.06 2.63%  905,048.13  882,805.00  22,243.13 2.52%

KMPUD Internal Usage  77,704.06  57,145.00  20,559.06 35.98%  633,028.51  654,742.00 (21,713.49) -3.32%

Meter Charges  2,469.53  2,511.00 (41.47) -1.65%  27,161.10  27,621.00 (459.90) -1.67%

Other (102.93)  1,000.00 (1,102.93) -110.29%  32,553.57  11,000.00  21,553.57 195.94%

 434,458.85  5,011,840.43  4,739,033.00  51,021.85 13.31%  272,807.43 5.76% 383,437.00 Operating Revenues

Cost of Goods Sold  10,444.97  137,297.00 (126,852.03) -92.39%  1,224,233.77  812,208.00  412,025.77 50.73%

Salaries and Wages  23,442.42  23,203.00  239.42 1.03%  206,666.22  247,097.00 (40,430.78) -16.36%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  240.00  661.00 (421.00) -63.69%

Operations & Maintenance  45,479.54  22,800.00  22,679.54 99.47%  299,026.36  254,800.00  44,226.36 17.36%

Contract Services  177.00  500.00 (323.00) -64.60%  1,720.75  5,500.00 (3,779.25) -68.71%

Operating Expenses  750.04  1,200.00 (449.96) -37.50%  16,838.29  13,200.00  3,638.29 27.56%

G & A Allocations  33,130.01  29,504.00  3,626.01 12.29%  350,825.08  343,371.00  7,454.08 2.17%

Internal Allocations  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  1,326.71  1,540.00 (213.29) -13.85%

Depreciation  125,640.89  126,000.00 (359.11) -0.29%  1,381,530.23  1,386,000.00 (4,469.77) -0.32%

 239,064.87  3,482,407.41  3,064,377.00 (101,439.13) -29.79%  418,030.41 13.64% 340,504.00 Operating Expenses

Total  195,393.98  1,529,433.02  42,933.00  1,674,656.00  152,460.98 355.11% (145,222.98) -8.67%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  4,764.69  0.00  4,764.69 na

Other  50.00  0.00  50.00 na  515,860.30  0.00  515,860.30 na

 50.00  520,624.99  0.00  50.00 na  520,624.99 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  121,197.19  129,468.00 (8,270.81) -6.39%  1,430,345.30  1,446,144.00 (15,798.70) -1.09%

Amortization  36,159.19  36,200.00 (40.81) -0.11%  397,751.18  398,200.00 (448.82) -0.11%

 157,356.38  1,828,096.48  1,844,344.00 (8,311.62) -5.02% (16,247.52) -0.88% 165,668.00 Non-Operating Expenses

GASB 68 Pension Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

GASB 75 OPEB Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 GASB 68 & 75 Expense

Total (157,306.38) (1,307,471.49)(165,668.00) (1,844,344.00) 8,361.62 -5.05%  536,872.51 -29.11%Non-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS)  160,822.60 -131.03%  391,649.53 -230.81% 38,087.60 (122,735.00)  221,961.53 (169,688.00)

56



Budget Income Statement -  Cable TV Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

0 - Default

Other  915.00  915.00  0.00 0.00%  10,065.00  10,065.00  0.00 0.00%

 915.00  10,065.00  10,065.00  0.00 0.00%  0.00 0.00% 915.00 Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  92.81  0.00  92.81 na

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  81.10  0.00  81.10 na

Operations & Maintenance  0.00  150.00 (150.00) -100.00%  0.00  1,650.00 (1,650.00) -100.00%

Operating Expenses  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

G & A Allocations  804.13  717.00  87.13 12.15%  8,515.17  8,349.00  166.17 1.99%

Internal Allocations  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  1.34  0.00  1.34 na

Depreciation  27.65  45.00 (17.35) -38.56%  304.15  495.00 (190.85) -38.56%

 831.78  8,994.57  10,494.00 (80.22) -8.80% (1,499.43) -14.29% 912.00 Operating Expenses

Total  83.22  1,070.43  3.00 (429.00) 80.22 2,674.00%  1,499.43 -349.52%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Amortization  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Expenses

GASB 68 Pension Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

GASB 75 OPEB Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 GASB 68 & 75 Expense

Total  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 naNon-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS)  80.22 2,674.00%  1,499.43 -349.52% 83.22  3.00  1,070.43 (429.00)

57



Budget Income Statement -  Snow Removal Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

0 - Default

KMPUD Internal Usage  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  21,000.00  21,000.00  0.00 0.00%

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  695,311.03  679,000.00  16,311.03 2.40%

 0.00  716,311.03  700,000.00  0.00 na  16,311.03 2.33% 0.00 Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages  11,596.75  5,211.00  6,385.75 122.54%  269,918.56  199,087.00  70,831.56 35.58%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  4,969.62  2,814.00  2,155.62 76.60%  93,310.34  107,926.00 (14,615.66) -13.54%

Operations & Maintenance  7,162.96  1,900.00  5,262.96 277.00%  69,448.62  54,600.00  14,848.62 27.20%

Contract Services  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  1,108.75  0.00  1,108.75 na

Operating Expenses  0.00  100.00 (100.00) -100.00%  51,673.18  29,950.00  21,723.18 72.53%

G & A Allocations  18,173.26  16,184.00  1,989.26 12.29%  192,442.87  188,578.00  3,864.87 2.05%

Internal Allocations  0.00  100.00 (100.00) -100.00%  30.36  1,100.00 (1,069.64) -97.24%

Depreciation  4,693.99  6,982.00 (2,288.01) -32.77%  52,108.09  76,802.00 (24,693.91) -32.15%

 46,596.58  730,040.77  658,043.00  13,305.58 39.97%  71,997.77 10.94% 33,291.00 Operating Expenses

Total (46,596.58) (13,729.74)(33,291.00)  41,957.00 (13,305.58) 39.97% (55,686.74) -132.72%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  300.00  0.00  300.00 na

 0.00  300.00  0.00  0.00 na  300.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Amortization  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Expenses

GASB 68 Pension Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

GASB 75 OPEB Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 GASB 68 & 75 Expense

Total  0.00  300.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  300.00 naNon-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS) (13,305.58) 39.97% (55,386.74) -132.01%(46,596.58) (33,291.00) (13,429.74)  41,957.00 

58



Budget Income Statement -  Propane Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

0 - Default

Commercial  94,618.20  34,423.00  60,195.20 174.87%  1,073,380.53  816,359.00  257,021.53 31.48%

Commercial Base Rates  1,805.51  1,800.00  5.51 0.31%  19,382.31  19,800.00 (417.69) -2.11%

Residential  53,467.70  35,140.00  18,327.70 52.16%  850,772.38  738,091.00  112,681.38 15.27%

Residential Base Rates  2,762.10  2,656.00  106.10 3.99%  30,364.30  29,216.00  1,148.30 3.93%

KMPUD Internal Usage  5,314.44  2,151.00  3,163.44 147.07%  56,706.63  34,552.00  22,154.63 64.12%

Meter Charges  1,564.40  1,610.00 (45.60) -2.83%  17,186.96  17,710.00 (523.04) -2.95%

Other (32.63)  1,000.00 (1,032.63) -103.26%  7,244.60  11,000.00 (3,755.40) -34.14%

 159,499.72  2,055,037.71  1,666,728.00  80,719.72 102.46%  388,309.71 23.30% 78,780.00 Operating Revenues

Cost of Goods Sold  103,988.14  40,441.00  63,547.14 157.14%  1,268,341.16  898,229.00  370,112.16 41.20%

Salaries and Wages  6,966.48  10,225.00 (3,258.52) -31.87%  99,150.31  111,299.00 (12,148.69) -10.92%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  4,826.26  5,521.00 (694.74) -12.58%  63,384.23  63,655.00 (270.77) -0.43%

Operations & Maintenance  1,074.78  2,440.00 (1,365.22) -55.95%  10,946.68  47,550.00 (36,603.32) -76.98%

Contract Services  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  8,812.75  0.00  8,812.75 na

Operating Expenses  0.00  670.00 (670.00) -100.00%  300.00  7,370.00 (7,070.00) -95.93%

G & A Allocations  30,717.63  27,355.00  3,362.63 12.29%  325,279.55  318,745.00  6,534.55 2.05%

Internal Allocations  282.72  857.00 (574.28) -67.01%  4,800.40  11,342.00 (6,541.60) -57.68%

Depreciation  5,229.54  6,000.00 (770.46) -12.84%  57,401.09  66,000.00 (8,598.91) -13.03%

 153,085.55  1,838,416.17  1,524,190.00  59,576.55 63.71%  314,226.17 20.62% 93,509.00 Operating Expenses

Total  6,414.17  216,621.54 (14,729.00)  142,538.00  21,143.17 -143.55%  74,083.54 51.97%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  829.59  0.00  829.59 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  1,001.00  0.00  1,001.00 na

 0.00  1,830.59  0.00  0.00 na  1,830.59 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  661.73  982.00 (320.27) -32.61%  11,782.39  10,801.00  981.39 9.09%

Amortization (205.80)  0.00 (205.80) na (2,263.80)  0.00 (2,263.80) na

 455.93  9,518.59  10,801.00 (526.07) -53.57% (1,282.41) -11.87% 982.00 Non-Operating Expenses

GASB 68 Pension Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

GASB 75 OPEB Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 GASB 68 & 75 Expense

Total (455.93) (7,688.00)(982.00) (10,801.00) 526.07 -53.57%  3,113.00 -28.82%Non-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS)  21,669.24 -137.92%  77,196.54 58.60% 5,958.24 (15,711.00)  208,933.54  131,737.00 

59



Budget Income Statement -  Solid Waste Fund

YTDMay       YTD 
 May 31, 2023

May Dollar Percent

Variance Variance
--------------------------Month Totals-------------------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals---------------------------

This Year Budget Variance Variance This Year Budget

Dollar Percent

0 - Default

Commercial  1,896.30  2,500.00 (603.70) -24.15%  23,411.28  27,500.00 (4,088.72) -14.87%

Residential  26,556.62  24,930.00  1,626.62 6.52%  291,704.30  274,230.00  17,474.30 6.37%

Other (17.54)  100.00 (117.54) -117.54%  1,798.51  1,100.00  698.51 63.50%

 28,435.38  316,914.09  302,830.00  905.38 3.29%  14,084.09 4.65% 27,530.00 Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages  3,230.00  952.00  2,278.00 239.29%  32,741.40  10,472.00  22,269.40 212.66%

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits  1,287.41  514.00  773.41 150.47%  10,851.66  5,983.00  4,868.66 81.37%

Operations & Maintenance  7,786.87  15,100.00 (7,313.13) -48.43%  151,356.68  189,100.00 (37,743.32) -19.96%

Contract Services  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  167.50  0.00  167.50 na

Operating Expenses  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

G & A Allocations  6,754.66  6,016.00  738.66 12.28%  71,527.45  70,096.00  1,431.45 2.04%

Internal Allocations  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  1,551.28  1,540.00  11.28 0.73%

Depreciation  441.87  0.00  441.87 na  3,976.83  0.00  3,976.83 na

 19,500.81  272,172.80  277,191.00 (3,081.19) -13.64% (5,018.20) -1.81% 22,582.00 Operating Expenses

Total  8,934.57  44,741.29  4,948.00  25,639.00  3,986.57 80.57%  19,102.29 74.50%Operating

Contribution Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Investment Income  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Other  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

Amortization  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 Non-Operating Expenses

GASB 68 Pension Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

GASB 75 OPEB Expense  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00  0.00  0.00 na

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 na 0.00 GASB 68 & 75 Expense

Total  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 na  0.00 naNon-Operating

NET INCOME (LOSS)  3,986.57 80.57%  19,102.29 74.50% 8,934.57  4,948.00  44,741.29  25,639.00 

60



This Year Budget This Year Variance

455,885.44

Total Operating 114,697.61 98,149.00 16,548.61 2,766,527.45 2,373,600.00 392,927.45

Operating Expenses 586,360.00 586,360.00 0.00 9,149,120.44 8,693,235.00

(19,393.34)

Depreciation 183,442.00 183,442.00 0.00 1,769,598.74 2,204,604.00 (435,005.26)

Board of Directors 8,707.00 8,707.00 0.00 85,090.66 104,484.00

450,367.00

Internal Allocations 37,401.00 37,401.00 0.00 422,007.08 517,805.00 (95,797.92)

G & A Allocations 30.00 30.00 0.00 449,970.00 (397.00)

(269.51)

Operating Expenses 43,284.00 43,284.00 0.00 520,612.71 559,217.00 (38,604.29)

Contract Services 5,150.00 5,150.00 0.00 138,330.49 138,600.00

(19,534.79)

Operations & Maintenance 76,310.00 76,310.00 0.00 999,889.02 1,026,830.00 (26,940.98)

Payroll Taxes & EE Benefits 64,976.00 64,976.00 0.00 840,430.21 859,965.00

684,326.01

Salaries and Wages 117,277.00 117,277.00 0.00 1,478,645.52 1,521,907.00 (43,261.48)

Cost of Goods Sold 49,783.00 49,783.00 0.00 2,444,546.01 1,760,220.00

51,818.15

Operating Revenues 701,057.61 684,509.00 16,548.61 11,915,647.89 11,066,835.00 848,812.89

Other 18,852.66 14,640.00 4,212.66 926,398.15 874,580.00

(1,844.02)

Property Taxes 71,611.00 71,611.00 0.00 859,332.00 859,332.00 0.00

Meter Charges 7,515.19 7,619.00 (103.81) 89,583.98 91,428.00

33,752.72

KMPUD Internal Usage 70,443.55 54,565.00 15,878.55 782,572.09 764,859.00 17,713.09

Residential Base Rates 149,018.86 146,084.00 2,934.86 1,786,760.72 1,753,008.00

Residential 65,079.41 89,437.00 (24,357.59) 2,004,983.21 1,902,444.00 102,539.21

2,058,892.00 587,459.06

Commercial Base Rates 221,406.23 230,191.00 (8,784.77) 2,819,666.68 2,762,292.00 57,374.68

YTD YTD Dollar

Commercial 97,130.71 70,362.00 26,768.71 2,646,351.06

June 2023 Preliminary Income Statement
--------------------------Month Totals----------------------- ----------------------------Year to Date Totals-------------

 June 30, 2023 Variance Budget

June       June Dollar

61



Cash Flow 

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23
Revenue/Expenses

AR Revenue $589,643 $549,099 $501,614 $684,807 $825,742 $1,124,408 $1,145,552 $1,465,103 $1,681,181 $895,716 $784,759 $720,365
Snow Removal Revenue $169,750 $169,750 $169,750 $169,750
Property Tax Revenue $35,000 $79,000 $338,277 $79,078 $311,031
Operating Expenses (w/out depreciation) ($434,443) ($459,610) ($457,391) ($499,748) ($546,319) ($572,794) ($551,241) ($627,159) ($614,266) ($550,293) ($531,347) ($399,132)
Capital Expenses ($50,000) ($50,000) ($50,000) ($200,000) ($50,000) ($50,000) ($50,000) ($50,000) ($50,000) ($50,000) ($50,000) ($50,000)

Loans
COP Interest ($23,400) ($11,900)
COP Principal ($575,000)
RUS Interest ($400,298) ($406,478) ($370,825) ($385,321)
RUS Principal ($898,891) ($536,069) ($359,339) ($345,630)
Bank of the West Loan ($7,100) ($7,100) ($7,100) ($7,100) ($7,100)
Employee Housing Condos ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175) ($3,175)

Net Changes $129,926 ($569,186) ($1,315,241) $144,534 $388,899 ($195,358) $349,163 $772,869 $283,576 $371,327 $200,237 ($151,862)

Updated Operating Forecast $2,400,084 $2,752,417 $1,564,941 $2,011,413 $1,969,036 $2,448,216 $2,014,099 $3,067,836 $2,891,413 $2,765,219 $3,433,500 $3,281,638

LAIF Balance $682,346 $83,623 $83,623 $85,217 $85,217 $85,217 $85,661 $85,661 $85,661 $86,239 $86,239 $86,239
Total Operating Cash $3,082,430 $2,836,040 $1,648,565 $2,096,630 $2,054,253 $2,533,433 $2,099,760 $3,153,497 $2,977,074 $2,851,457 $3,519,738 $3,367,876
Budget $3,004,430 $2,515,560 $1,340,962 $1,419,398 $1,641,987 $1,110,087 $1,967,207 $2,345,355 $1,980,155 $2,412,307 $2,635,473 $2,417,973
Variance to Budget $78,000 $320,480 $307,602 $677,233 $412,266 $1,423,346 $132,554 $808,142 $996,918 $439,150 $884,265 $949,904

Reserve Fund  

Transfer in from Operating Cash $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Capital Expenses

Reserve Fund Balance

Updated Reserve Forecast $491,179 $491,179 $491,179 $491,179 $491,179 $491,179 $491,179 $491,179 $491,179 $491,179 $491,179 $491,179

FYE 2023

62



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9c. 

STAFF REPORT 

Annual Investment Policy Review 

Annual Reporting and Review of Investment Report: 

Policy 380.E.1 Each June the Finance Committee shall review the investment program, current 

status of the District's investment portfolio, and to provide prior approval for future investment 

transactions. 

• Review of Investment Program(s) 

o Local Agency Investment Fund (‘LAIF’) 

o Recommendation: No change 

• District Investment Portfolio Status 

o Local Agency Investment Fund: $86,238.54 (As of May 11, 2023) 

o Recommendation: Continue use of LAIF 

• Prior Approval for Future Investment Transactions 

o Recommendation: Continue use of LAIF 

Policy 380.H The chief fiscal officer of the District shall render an annual report to General 

Manager and the Finance Committee each June, and the Board each July. 

• See attached LAIF statement. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Reviewed by Committee: 

Finance. 

CEQA: 

The General Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject 

to CEQA. 

Prepared By: 

Tommy Baggett 

63



5/11/23, 9:38 AM LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx 1/1

      Local Agency Investment Fund
      P.O. Box 942809
      Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
      (916) 653-3001    

May 11, 2023

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

TREASURER
P.O. BOX 247
KIRKWOOD, CA  95646

Account Number: 85-52-001

April 2023 Statement

Tran Type Definitions

Effective
Date

Transaction
Date

Tran
Type Confirm

Number

Web
Confirm
Number Authorized Caller Amount

4/14/2023 4/13/2023 QRD 1727327 N/A SYSTEM 577.34

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 577.34  Beginning Balance: 85,661.20

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 86,238.54

64

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm


June 3.167
May 2.993
April 2.870

March 2.831
February 2.624

January 2.425
PMIA Average Life(1): 275

 LAIF Fair Value Factor(1): 0.986510329
PMIA Daily(1): 2.87

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 2.63

LAIF Apportionment Rate(2): 2.74
 LAIF Earnings Ratio(2): 0.00007493902135155

 LAIF Administrative Cost(1)*: 0.34

Treasuries
64.47%

Agencies
20.37%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

6.96%

Time 
Deposits

2.89%

Commercial
Paper
4.87%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.25%

Loans
0.19%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825 
(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a). 

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The law provides that 
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of 
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year. 

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 07/05/23

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 03/31/23

Chart does not include $2,938,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.002%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

05/31/23
$179.6 billion

65

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/daily.pdf


Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9d. 

STAFF REPORT 

Connection & Miscellaneous Fees 

Background: 

Annually, the District updates its Connection Fees and Services Schedule and its Miscellaneous 

Fees Schedule to reflect actual costs of materials, labor, and overhead. 

Staff and Finance Committee recommend approval of the attached update to the District’s fees. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Net zero financial impact. 

Reviewed by Committee: 

Finance. 

CEQA: 

The General Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject 

to CEQA. 

Prepared By: 

Erik M. Christeson, P.E. 

66



KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF MISCELLANEOUS FEES & CHARGES 

The following fee schedules shall be applicable to all Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility 

District services. 

START SERVICE OR STOP SERVICE (EACH OCCURRENCE) 

SERVICE BUSINESS HOURS AFTER HOURS 

Electric $50 $150 

Propane $50 $150 

Water $50 $150 

1) The District reserves the right to refuse to turn services off/on between 4:00 pm and 

8:00 am or when snow prevents ready access, unless a bona-fide emergency can 

be established. 

2) No service will be turned off/on at the meter by anyone other than District Personnel. 

3) The service call fee shall be charged to the customer's account, or, at the discretion 

of the District, be required to be paid by the customer prior to service being 

rendered. 

LOCK REPLACEMENT FEE 

For each District service lock is damaged or removed   $25 

METER TAMPERING FEE 

Includes Staff time, materials, and testing    $100 

RESTRICTED ACCESS TO METER 

For meter reading & maintenance of obstructed meters  $100 

WATER METER TESTING 

The following fee will be added to the customer’s account should the customer request 

their meter be tested for accuracy. Should the meter be found, upon test, to register 

more than 5% fast under conditions of normal operation, the fee will be returned to the 

customer. 

5/8” or 3/4"         $50 

Larger than 3/4"         Time & Materials 

CUSTOM METER READ REPORTS 

Per occurrence        $75 

FIRE FLOW TESTING 

Per Hydrant Tested        $250 

UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS TO FIRE HYDRANTS 

Includes Staff time, materials, water quality testing   $500 

67



KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF MISCELLANEOUS FEES & CHARGES 

BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE TESTING 

Double Check/Detector Assembly      $250 

Reduced Pressure Principal Assembly     $500 

TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE THROUGH A FIRE HYDRANT 

Temporary/construction water service may be available at a time and location selected 

by the District. In addition to paying for water used at the current usage rate, a hydrant 

meter deposit is required in advance to cover the cost of installation, relocation, 

removal, damage or replacement of the meter. Meters are inspected by District staff 

upon checkout and return for proper working order. $30.00 of the deposit is not 

refundable. 

Temporary Hydrant Meter Deposit (without Backflow Device)  $1,500 

Temporary Hydrant Meter Deposit (with Backflow Device)  $3,500 

Installation / Removal / Relocation (each occurrence)   $50 

Monthly Service Fee       $50 

Usage Rate          See Current Rate Schedule 

GREASE TRAP INSPECTIONS 

Inspection / Reinspection (per occurrence)    $100 

ANNEXATION REQUESTS 

Property owners wishing to annex to the District shall be financially responsible for costs 

incurred in processing such a request. 

Annexation Fee (Non-Refundable)     $750 

BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE INSPECTIONS 

Backflow Prevention Assembly Test up to 2”    $100 

Greater than 2”        $200 

AGENDA/PACKET/PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST FEE SCHEDULE 

The following fee shall be charged for Copies of an Identifiable Public Record or 

Certified Copy of Such Record: 

Black and White 8 ½ x 11:        $0.1015/page 

Black and White 11 x 14:        $0.1520/page 

Black and White 11 x 17:       $0.2530/page 

Color 8 ½ x 11:        $0.50/page 

Color 11 x 14:        $0.75/page 

Color 11 x 17:        $1.00/page 

Digital copy of documents to flash drive:     $5.00/each 

Maps (D, C or B Size):       $5.00/page 

68



KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF MISCELLANEOUS FEES & CHARGES 

MEETING ROOM USE 

Local government agencies       Free 

All other groups (includes set-up, disinfection, & 8 hours of use) $50 

Refundable Deposit        $100  

RETURN CHECK CHARGE 

Return Check Charge       $25 

State Law Concerning Returned Check Notification: 

***California Civil Code, Chapter 522, Section 1719*** Any person who issues a check 

on insufficient funds shall be liable for three times the amount of the check or $100.00, 

whichever is greater. The maximum amount which can be collected is $1,500.00, plus 

the face value of the check, court costs and accrued interest. A cause of action under 

this section may be brought in small claims court, if it does not exceed the jurisdiction of 

that court, or in any other appropriate court. 

PLAN REVIEW & INSPECTIONS 

The following deposits shall be applicable when a person applies for utility services or a 

construction permit for commercial business or development. The applicant shall pay to 

the District a deposit for anticipated work relating to the project which includes plan 

review, site visits and inspections. Applicant will be billed actual costs incurred by the 

District for their project. Deposits may be utilized up to 50% with the remaining 50% 

held until completion of the project and either applied to the remaining balance due or 

refunded back to applicant. Customer shall replenish the deposit should it drop below 

$100. 

Single Family Residential     $500 

Multi-Family Residential     $1,000 

Commercial       $1,500 

Developer       $5,000 

FIRE SERVICE PLAN REVIEW FEE   $250 + Consultant Costs (if any) 

FIRE SERVICE INSPECTION FEE   $250 + Consultant Costs (if any) 

LABOR 

District labor shall be charged on a time and materials basis, including overhead. 

EQUIPMENT 

District’s equipment shall be charged on a time and materials basis.  The hourly rate 

shall equal the current Caltrans Equipment Rental Rates for specific equipment utilized. 

69



KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

Pricing Effective July 1, 20222023   

 

~ Schedule of Connection Fees and Services ~ 
Concerning the Provision, Extension, and Continuation of Utility Service to 

New Development and Construction Projects  

Water: 

 Connection Fees: Residential:  $4,1483,969 / EDU 

    Commercial: Estimated EDU ÷ 3-yr. avg. residential EDU.  

     Meters:   

    3/4" Ally:   $   500520 

    1” SRII Commercial  $   500520 

    1.5” Omni T2 Commercial $   1,0001,070 

    2” Omni T2 Commercial:   $   1,2501,270 

 

 MXU Battery Pack (for remote reads):  $   250 

  

Thermal Coil Meter Box (with insulation pad & lid): 

13/4” Meter   $   2,3002,500 

1.5” Meters:   $   4,0003,500 

   2” Meters:   $   5,000 

  

 

Wastewater: 

 Connection Fees: $2,2312,134 / EDU (Members of CFD No. 98-01) 

    $7,2276,915 / EDU (Non-Members of CFD No. 98-01) 

 

Electric: 

 Connection Fees: Residential: $5,691 / EDU  

Commercial: Estimated EDU ÷ 3-yr. avg. residential EDU. 

       Type  Voltage  

     Meters: Single Family:    2S  120/240 $175210 

    Multi Family:  12S  120/208 $225260 

    Commercial:    9S/16S/36S/45S 120-480 $550640 

Propane:  

Connection Fees: Residential: $ 980937 / EDU 

   Commercial:  Estimated EDU ÷ 3-yr. avg. residential EDU. 

       Meters: Residential 3/4”   $   200390 

    Commercial   $Varies 

     

      Residential Remote Read Index: $125145 

      Residential ¾” Regulator:  $125145 

 

Fire Impact Fee:   Alpine County: $0.47 per combustible square foot (incl. decks) 

   Amador County: $0.81 per combustible square foot (incl. decks) 

 

70



Version: April 2023

5,124                  

71

5,053                     

-                          

-                          

71                           

-                          

2,223

0.4338

DIRECTLY DELIVERED RENEWABLES

Facility Name Fuel Type

State or 

Province WREGIS ID RPS ID N/A EIA ID

Gross MWh 

Procured    

MWh

Resold                   

Net MWh 

Procured          

Adjusted Net MWh 

Procured

GHG Emissions 

Factor (in MT 

CO2e/MWh)

GHG Emissions (in MT 

CO2e) N/A 

 FIRMED-AND-SHAPED IMPORTS

Facility Name Fuel Type

State or 

Province WREGIS ID RPS ID

EIA ID of 

REC 

Source

EIA  ID of 

Substitute 

Power 

Gross MWh 

Procured    MWh Resold                   

Net MWh 

Procured          

Adjusted Net MWh 

Procured

GHG Emissions  

Factor (in MT 

CO2e/MWh)

GHG Emissions         

(in MT CO2e)

Eligible for 

Grandfathered 

Emissions?

SPECIFIED NON-RENEWABLE PROCUREMENTS 

Facility Name Fuel Type

State or 

Province N/A N/A N/A  EIA ID

Gross MWh 

Procured    MWh Resold                   

Net MWh 

Procured          

Adjusted Net MWh 

Procured

GHG Emissions  

Factor (in MT 

CO2e/MWh)

GHG Emissions         

(in MT CO2e) N/A    

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District Other CA P332 71                       71                          71                           0.8454                         60                                

PROCUREMENTS FROM ASSET-CONTROLLING SUPPLIERS

Facility Name Fuel Type N/A N/A N/A  N/A   EIA ID

Gross MWh 

Procured    MWh Resold                   

Net MWh 

Procured          

Adjusted Net MWh 

Procured

GHG Emissions  

Factor (in MT 

CO2e/MWh)

GHG Emissions         

(in MT CO2e) N/A     

END USES OTHER THAN RETAIL SALES MWh

Retail Sales (MWh)

Net Specified Procurement (MWh)

Unspecified Power (MWh)

Procurement to be adjusted

2022 POWER SOURCE DISCLOSURE ANNUAL REPORT

SCHEDULE 1: PROCUREMENTS AND RETAIL SALES

For the Year Ending December 31, 2022

Kirkwood Meadows PUD

Electricity

 GHG Emissions Intensity (in MT CO2e/MWh)

Net Specified Natural Gas

Net Specified Coal & Other Fossil Fuels

Net Specified Nuclear, Large Hydro, Renewables, and ACS Power

GHG Emissions (excludes grandfathered emissions)

Instructions: Enter information about power procurements underlying this electricity portfolio for which your company is fili ng the Annual Report. 
Insert additional rows as needed. All fields in white should be filled out. Fields in grey auto-populate as needed and should not be filled out. For 
EIA IDs for unspecified power or specified system mixes from asset-controlling suppliers, enter "Unspecified Power", "BPA", or "Tacoma Power" as 
applicable. For specified procurements of ACS power, use the ACS Procurement Calculator to calculate the resource breakdown c omprising the 
ACS system mix.  Procurements of unspecified power must not be entered as line items below; unspecified power will be calculated 
automatically in cell N9. Unbundled RECs must not be entered on Schedule 1; these products must be entered on Schedule 2. At the bottom 
portion of the schedule, provide the other electricity end-uses that are not retail sales including, but not limited to transmission and distribution losses 
or municipal street lighting. Amounts should be in megawatt-hours.

71



Version: April 2023

1,927                                   

RETIRED UNBUNDLED RECS

Facility Name Fuel Type

State or 

Province RPS ID Total Retired (in MWh)

Maverick Solar 4, LLC Almasol Generating Station 4Solar CA 64330 1909

Mojave Solar Project, Beta Solar CA 60848 18

Total Retired Unbundled RECs

2022 POWER SOURCE DISCLOSURE ANNUAL REPORT

SCHEDULE 2: RETIRED UNBUNDLED RECS

For the Year Ending December 31, 2022

Kirkwood Meadows PUD

Electricity

INSTRUCTIONS:  Enter information about retired unbundled RECs associated with this electricity 
portfolio. Insert additional rows as needed. All fields in white should be filled out. Fields in grey auto-
populate as needed and should not be filled out.  

72



Version: April 2023

Adjusted Net 

Procured (MWh)

Percent of Total 

Retail Sales

Renewable Procurements -                               0.0%

     Biomass & Biowaste -                               0.0%

     Geothermal -                               0.0%

     Eligible Hydroelectric -                               0.0%

     Solar -                               0.0%

     Wind -                               0.0%

Coal -                               0.0%

Large Hydroelectric -                               0.0%

Natural gas -                               0.0%

Nuclear -                               0.0%

Other 71                                1.4%

Unspecified Power 5,053                           98.6%

Total 5,124                           100.0%

5,124                           

956                              

37.6%

Total Retail Sales (MWh)

GHG Emissions Intensity (converted to lbs CO2e/MWh)

Percentage of Retail Sales Covered by Retired Unbundled 

RECs

2022 POWER SOURCE DISCLOSURE ANNUAL REPORT

SCHEDULE 3: POWER CONTENT LABEL DATA

For the Year Ending December 31, 2022

Kirkwood Meadows PUD

Electricity 

Instructions: No data input is needed on this schedule. Retail suppliers should use 
these auto-populated calculations to fill out their Power Content Labels.  

73



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9e. 

STAFF REPORT 
POWER SOURCE DISCLOSURE 

 

Requested Action: 

That the Board review and approve the 2022 Power Source Disclosure Report and the 2022 

Power Content Label and recommend distribution of these documents. 

 

Background: 

As part of the California Energy Commission’s Power Source Disclosure Program, the District is 

required to file an annual Power Source Disclosure Report with the state and publish a Power 

Content Label which is distributed to ratepayers.   

 

Frequently Asked Questions: 

Q.  Doesn’t KMPUD provide 100% renewable electricity?   

A.  Yes.  The District purchases unbundled Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) to comply 

with the California Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) and, starting in August 2021, to offset 

100% of electricity sales as directed in the 2021 Electric Rate Study.  RECs are purchased 

through multiple contracts with Shell Energy and are delivered according to the terms of those 

contracts.  Typically, RECs are delivered in the calendar year following the retail sale of the 

associated electricity.   

 

Q.  What is an unbundled REC, and why do we use those? 

A.  A REC is issued when one megawatt-hour (MWh) of electricity is generated and delivered to 

the electric grid from a renewable energy resource. An unbundled REC is the “green attribute” 

separated from the physical electricity.  Since KMPUD loads are so small, it is currently more 

economical to purchase power and RECs separately, rather than contract with a renewable 

provider to purchase bundled renewable electricity.   

 

Q.  Why don’t I see anything under Renewable Procurements on the Power Content Label? 

A.  The District’s physical electricity comes from two sources:  generation from the Powerhouse, 

which is classified as “other” and general purchases off the grid which are classified as 

“unspecified sources of power.”  REC purchases are shown on Schedule 2, Retired Unbundled 

RECs and in the bottom box on the Power Content Label. 

 

Q.  These forms are confusing; can we make them easier to read? 

A.  The California Energy Commission provides these forms to all retail electric providers 

annually, and the District is required to submit and publish them as-is to comply with the 

California Renewables Portfolio Standard and the Power Source Disclosure Program. 

 

Prepared By: 

Brandi Benson 

74



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9f. 

STAFF REPORT 

Employee Temporary Gas Stipend 

Background: 

In 2020, the average November gas price in California was $3.81/gallon and in December 2022 

was $4.92/gallon when the Board voted to provide a temporary gas stiped for employees.  As of 

July 2023, the state average gas price per AAA is $4.85/gallon. 

The Board adopted a temporary gas stipend as follows: 

a. Any employee receiving the housing credit is ineligible for the gas stipend. 

b. The gas stipend will remain in effect until gas prices have dropped below 

$4.30/gallon for 3 consecutive months. 

c. Gas stipend of $60/month. 

d. That this program will terminate July 1, 2023 unless extended by the Board. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Estimated between $3,600 to $5,000 per year at $60/month. 

Reviewed by Committee: 

Finance. 

CEQA: 

The General Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject 

to CEQA. 

Requested Action: 

Staff and Finance Committee recommend that the Board renew the program as adopted in 

December 2022 for Fiscal Year 2023/24, to terminate July 1, 2024 unless extended by the Board. 

Prepared By: 

Erik M. Christeson, P.E. 

 

75



Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District

Electric Generation

2022/2023        

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Total Production (kWh) 425,879 415,724 387,277 441,402 1,196,370 1,112,608 1,061,284 961,109 983,848 852,165 576,208 8,413,874

         CAISO Purchase (kWh) 394,999 404,394 387,277 419,097 1,196,370 1,112,608 1,061,284 961,109 983,848 852,165 576,208 8,349,360

         Powerhouse Production (kWh) 30,880 0 0 22,305 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 53,185

Actual Metered (kWh) 288,791 308,010 300,746 326,893 1,019,267 1,042,288 909,779 895,374 837,343 610,023 565,738 7,104,252

Budgeted Metered (kWh) 364,497 338,355 292,209 364,537 656,891 960,421 879,423 809,887 806,849 535,865 350,362 6,359,296

Total System Losses (kWh) 137,088 107,714 86,531 114,509 177,103 70,320 151,505 65,735 146,505 242,142 10,470 1,309,622

Identified System Losses (Estimated kWh):

          KM Blue Transformer 9,226 9,226 8,928 9,226 8,928 8,928 8,928 8,333 9,226 8,928 9,226 99,101

          KM Green Transformer 10,892 10,892 10,541 10,892 10,541 10,892 10,892 9,838 10,892 10,541 10,892 117,706

          Step-Up Transformers 8,090 8,090 8,090 8,090 8,090 8,090 8,090 8,090 8,090 8,090 8,090 88,990

Total Identified System Losses (kWh) 28,208 28,208 27,559 28,208 27,559 27,910 27,910 26,261 28,208 27,559 28,208 305,796

Total Unidentified System Losses (kWh) 108,880 79,506 58,972 86,301 149,544 42,410 123,595 39,474 118,297 214,583 -17,738 1,003,826

% Unidentified System Losses (Goal 12%) 26% 19% 15% 20% 12% 4% 12% 4% 12% 25% -3% 12%

#####

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Propane Usage (cf) 393,728 305,040 445,237 734,364 1,540,235 2,893,103 3,924,831 3,581,605 2,706,222 2,027,557 2,210,213 20,762,134

Actual Metered (cf) 351,061 309,078 440,823 717,743 2,294,479 3,557,456 3,200,595 3,418,819 3,144,810 2,015,867 1,332,042 20,782,773

Budgeted Metered (cf) 447,670 534,713 523,450 1,032,976 1,803,455 3,240,789 3,330,331 3,222,314 3,031,280 1,894,999 898,685 19,960,662

Unmetered Total 42,667 (4,038) 4,414 16,621 (754,244) (664,353) 724,236 162,786 (438,588) 11,690 878,171 (20,639)

% Unmetered (Goal 2%) 11% -1% 1% 2% -49% -23% 18% 5% -16% 1% 40% 0%

2022/2023 

Totals         

YTD

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District

Propane Production

2022/2023 

Totals         

YTD

2022/2023

Unidentified System Losses (kWh):

76



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Total Production (Gallons) 1,003,095 720,145 553,825 515,243 1,422,452 1,446,902 1,446,902 1,562,204 1,297,946 2,190,153 1,970,380 14,129,247

783,163 615,312 469,078 357,424 1,098,146 1,670,030 983,848 1,681,945 1,396,411 1,136,384 694,189 10,885,932

857,172 778,231 531,509 501,913 548,016 1,317,544 1,696,612 1,473,101 1,385,141 708,533 350,114 10,147,885

Total System Losses (Gallons) 219,932 104,833 84,747 157,819 324,306 (223,128) 937,289 (119,741) (98,465) 1,053,769 1,276,191 3,717,550

          District Facility Use 27,000 24,500 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 159,500

          Hydrant / Sample Flushing 0 3,000 2,500 7,500 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 10,800 0 33,800

          Backwards Meter Reads 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 11,000

          Discovered Leaks Before Meters 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

          Fire Department 1,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,800 0 0 0 3,600

Total Identified System Losses (Gallons) 29,800 28,500 15,500 20,500 18,000 18,000 13,000 14,800 13,000 23,800 13,000 207,900

Unidentified System Losses (Gallons) 190,132 76,333 69,247 137,319 306,306 (241,128) 924,289 (134,541) (111,465) 1,029,969 1,263,191 3,509,650

% Unidentified System Losses (Goal 15%) 19% 11% 13% 27% 22% -17% 64% -9% -9% 47% 64% 25%

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Influent Metered (Gallons) 870,515 618,819 504,574 391,148 701,698 2,028,369 2,562,512 2,064,533 1,589,088 3,254,570 4,090,125 18,675,951

Actual Metered (Gallons) 703,793 566,378 439,450 340,318 550,805 1,590,712 1,534,687 1,684,676 1,394,556 1,133,392 693,149 10,631,915

Total System Unmetered (Gallons) 166,722 52,441 65,124 50,830 150,893 437,657 1,027,825 379,857 194,532 2,121,178 3,396,976 8,044,036

          District Facility Use 27,000 24,500 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 159,500

          Hydrant Flushing Into System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

         Backwards Reads 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,001 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 11,001

Total Identified Unmetered Usage (Gallons) 28,000 25,500 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,001 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 170,501

Unidentified Unmetered Usage (Gallons) 138,722 26,941 52,124 37,830 137,893 424,657 1,014,824 366,857 181,532 2,108,178 3,383,976 7,873,535

% Unidentified Unmetered Usage 16% 4% 10% 10% 20% 21% 40% 18% 11% 65% 83% 42%

2022/2023 

Totals         

YTD

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District

Water Production

2022/2023

Actual Metered (Gallons)

Budgeted Metered (Gallons)

Identified Unmetered Usage - (Estimated Gallons)

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District

Waste Water Treatment

2022/2023

Identified System Losses - (Estimated Gallons)

2022/2023 

Totals         

YTD

77



2021/2022 Totals         YTD2020/2021 Totals         YTD

983848

0

937289

#######

2706222

3935124

78



2021/2022 Totals         YTD2020/2021 Totals         YTD

983848

0

937289

79



2021/2022 Totals         YTD2020/2021 Totals         YTD

983848

0

937289

80



       
81



 Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District

Aquifer Levels / Water Pumped / Water Treated 

June 2023

WATER PRODUCED WWTP

Well 4 Well 4/5 Well 2 Well 2 Well 3 Total Daily

Date Aquifer Level Pumped Aquifer Pumped Pumped Pumped Influent Flow

1 111.7 37,091 14,000 51,091 136577

2 111 28 49,900 49,900 137004

3 110.7 148979

4 109.7 65,998 40,000 105,998 148825

5 108.8 164,400 19,000 183,400 134233

6 110.1 41,730 47,500 89,230 132067

7 110.3 118894

8 110.4 21,000 21,000 110321

9 110.9 27.5 48,600 48,600 124845

10 111.7 119342

11 110.5 151,583 151,583 107571

12 109.7 101467

13 110.3 77,546 16,000 93,546 91162

14 108.6 48,203 48,203 102920

15 107.7 93407

16 109 104949

17 105.7 104518

18 105.1 144,561 144,561 104375

19 104.5 28,285 28,285 91040

20 98.6 83227

21 101.6 70352

22 102.3 174,600 174,600 77955

23 104.1 71993

24 104.9 94146

25 105.4 224,094 27.5 165,800 84,100 473,994 63276

26 100.6 69154

27 102.8 61726

28 103.9 72,000 72,000 64542

29 103.9 17,588 28 28,600 46,188 59361

30 101 100,900 100,900 66257

                                                  

AVG 107 28

TOTAL 836,679       780,300        266,100       

Monthly Well Water Pumped Multi-day total 1,883,079        

Monthly Water Treated / Processed in WWTP 2,994,485      

Well 4 Depth Sounding

Field Plant Display Date Well 4/5 Purging

Water/Qtrly Samples 1,000.00        

Spring Hydrant Flushing 10,000.00      

Fire Department

Playground -                 

Construction Meters 3,420.00        

Hours Wells Run

2 104.5

3 113.3

4 & 5 119.5

82



Residential Meter Protection

Low Medium High

May-23 1

Jun-23 3

Jul-23 2

Aug-23 2

Sep-23* 2

Oct-23 4

Nov-23 37

Dec-23 3

Jan-24 1

Feb-24

       Jan-25 5

Totals 5 52 3 60 Now BTS

8% 87% 5% 75%

Rating

Sh
u

to
ff

 d
at

e

*2 homes are currently working under an extension from the General Manager and have submitted 

approved plans/timelines

83



Commercial Meter Protection

Low Medium High

Nov-22

Dec-22

Jan-23

Feb-23

Mar-23

Apr-23

May-23

Jun-23

Jul-23

Aug-23

Sep-23

Oct-23

Nov-23 3

Dec-23 1

Jan-24 1

Apr-24 1

Totals 0 6 0 6

Rating

Sh
u

to
ff

 d
at

e

84



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9i. 

STAFF REPORT 

WWTP Repair & Rehabilitation Project 

Background: 

On June 29, 2023, Kirkwood Meadows PUD received bids from two general contractors for the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project. During the bid opening, the District 

announced the available funding limit for the project is $6,000,000, which became the basis of 

evaluating the low bidder as defined in Contract Specification Section 00200. Bids were received 

from general contractors KG Walters Construction and Integrated Water Services. Both bids 

were found to be responsive and both bidders responsible with KG Walters Construction being 

the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder. 

Financial Impact: 

The project bid is within the budgeted amount.  

Reviewed by Committee: 

Operations. 

CEQA: 

The Board approved a CEQA Notice of Exemption for this project in February 2021. 

Requested Action: 

Staff and Operations Committee recommend that the Board find that KG Walters is the lowest, 

responsive, responsible bidder for the Total Bid with Deductive Bid Item of $4,931,500 and 

direct Staff to issue a Notice of Award to that effect. 

Further, that the Board authorize the General Manager to issue a Notice to Proceed once all the 

contractually required documents are provided and USDA Rural Utility Services concurs. 

Prepared By: 

Erik M. Christeson, P.E. 

85



Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
2250 Douglas Blvd, Suite 260, Roseville CA  95661 

 

   

 

June 30, 2023 
File: 184031686 

Attention: Erik Christeson, PE 
33540 Loop Road  
Kirkwood, CA 95646 

Reference: KMPUD WWTP Improvements Project Bid Review   

On June 29, 2023, Kirkwood Meadows PUD received bids from two general contractors for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project.  During the bid opening, the District 
announced the available funding limit for the project is $6,000,000, which became the basis of 
evaluating the low bidder as defined in Contract Specification Section 00200.  Bids were received 
from general contractors KG Walters Construction and Integrated Water Services, as summarized 
in the table below.  Because the Total Base Bid from both contractors were above the funding 
limit, the deductive bid schedule was used to determine the lowest bidder.    
  

 

BASE BID SCHEDULE 

Bid Item No.  Bid Item Description 
KG Walters 
Construction 

Integrated Water 
Services 

1 Lump Sum Bid $ 6,266,000 $ 6,325,000 
2 Shoring $ 1,500 $ 20,000 
3 Property Insurance $ 101,000 $ 10,000 

  
TOTAL BASE BID $ 6,368,500 $ 6,355,000 

    
DEDUCTIVE BID ITEM SCHEDULE 

Deduct Bid Item No.  Deduct Description 
KG Walters 
Construction 

Integrated Water 
Services 

A Equalization Storage Tank $ 1,437,000 $ 1,150,000 
  

TOTAL BID WITH DEDUCTIVE BID ITEM $ 4,931,500   $ 5,205,000  
 

  

86



June 30, 2023 
Erik Christeson, PE 
Page 2 of 3  

Reference: KMPUD WWTP Improvements Project Bid Review   

  

 

The following forms required to be submitted within the bid documents were reviewed for 
completeness and acceptability and were used to determine the bidder responsiveness: 

1. Bid Form (00410)  

2. Addendum Acknowledgement (00410)  

3. Bid Bond (00430) [notarized] 

4. List of Subcontractors (00434) 

5. List of Equipment Manufacturers (00436)  

6. Compliance Statement (00440) 

7. Certification Regarding Debarment (00450) 

8. Construction Contractor’s Qualification Statement (00451) 

9. Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Worker’s Compensation (00457) 

10. Certification for Contracts, Grants, and Loans (00460) 

11. Iran Contracting Act Certification (00461) 

12. Supplemental Information Required After Bid Opening (00410)  

A. Certification of Electrical Subcontractors Experience and Qualifications (00452) 

B. Certification of System Supplier Experience and Qualifications (00453) 

 

After review of the bidders’ documentation, the following items are of significance: 

 All bids received were above the announced funding limit.  Therefore, if an award is 
made, the award is based on the lowest monetary bid received (for a responsive, 
responsible, bidder) for the total bid with deductive bid item “A”. 

 Both bidders included the appropriate information within their bid. 

 KG Walters (lowest bidder) has provided all supplemental bid documentation prior to the 
required deadline.   

87



June 30, 2023 
Erik Christeson, PE 
Page 3 of 3  

Reference: KMPUD WWTP Improvements Project Bid Review   

  

 

In accordance with the Contract Documents, Stantec confirmed the lowest bidder, KG Walters, 
and all of the named subcontractors hold a valid contractor’s license, has the appropriate 
insurance and bonding capacity, are registered at the DIR, and have acceptable references.  
Although time has not allowed for contacting references, Stantec has worked with KG Walters 
and their electrical and instrumentation subcontractors (San Joaquin Electric and George T Hall) 
on previous projects and know they have specialized experience working on wastewater 
treatment facilities. Therefore, we have determined KG Walters is qualified to perform the work 
necessary to complete the KMPUD Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project.   

Based on the above assessment, and as defined by the Contract Specifications, KG Walters is the 
lowest, responsive, responsible bidder.  According to the Public Contract Code, division 2, section 
12102.2, the bid protest period officially ends five business days after notice of intent to award. 
Assuming no bid protests are received by the District and USDA approves the award, it is Stantec’s 
recommendation that the District enter into a contractual agreement with KG Walters for the 
construction of the KMPUD Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project.   

Regards, 

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

Beth Cohen, PE 
Principal Engineer 
Phone: (916) 773-8100  
Fax: (916) 773-8448  
Beth.Cohen@stantec.com 

Attachment: KG Walters bid forms and supplemental bid documents 

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9j. 

STAFF REPORT 

Propane Master Plan & Intended Scope of Project 

Background: 

In order to better plan for future, needed capital improvements, the District will be completing 

Master Plans for the four main utilities, Electric, Propane, Wastewater, and Water.  Due to the 

Board’s desire reduce use of and reliance on propane, the Board needs to consider the scope of 

the Propane Master Plan, versus a traditional Master Plan document. 

 

The Master Plan is not a document that discusses the merits of propane, District policies on 

propane, future legislative actions that may impact propane, moratoriums on propane, or propane 

utility rates, etc.  It is simply a planning tool for the replacement, expansion, or abandonment of 

capital infrastructure. 

 

Master Plan Scope: 

1. Review of existing storage capacity and potential expansion. 

a. This is proceeding separately, as per Board and Operations Committee direction, 

as a pre-design.  After review and decision by the Board, the resulting 

recommendations of this component may/may not be included in the Master Plan. 

2. Review of distribution capacity and/or modeling of the existing system. 

a. Provided the current policy regarding new propane connections remains 

unchanged, Staff does not recommend including this component as there are no 

known issues with the distribution system. 

i. The Board may wish to consider if a schematic model would be beneficial 

in future abandonment of pipelines so as to mitigate and/or eliminate 

impacts to adjacent customers. 

3. Review of age / useful life of existing infrastructure. 

a. Staff recommends including this component. 

4. Analysis of the need for any new infrastructure. 

a. Staff anticipates this will be limited to 1) new infrastructure that protects existing 

facilities, e.g. building(s) or safety measures to protect the existing tanks, water 

baths, and/or vaporizers and 2) new water bath vaporizers or multiple direct-fire 

vaporizers for redundancy.  Staff recommends including this component. 

5. Development of a long-term capital plan for replacement of infrastructure as needed. 

a. This is needed for any future rate studies. Staff recommends including this 

component. 

  

138



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9j. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The approved capital budget estimates the cost as $100,000.  Any limitations to or expansion of 

the recommended scope may impact this amount. 

Reviewed by Committee: 

Operations. 

CEQA: 

The General Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject 

to CEQA. 

Requested Action: 

Staff and Operations Committee recommend proceeding as noted above. 

Prepared By: 

Erik M. Christeson, P.E. 

139



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9k. 

STAFF REPORT 

Electric Master Plan & EV Charging 

Background: 

In order to better plan for future, needed capital improvements, the District retained Cross 

Canyon Engineering (David Rightley, E.E.) to complete a Master Plan, including an analysis of 

EV charging impacts for the Electric department. 

 

The Master Plan is not a document that discusses District policies on electricity nor utility 

rates/structure, etc.  It is simply a planning tool for the replacement, expansion, or abandonment 

of capital infrastructure. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

The adoption of the Master Plan will serve as a tool to prioritize future Capital Budgets and 

project timing for the Electric department. 

Reviewed by Committee: 

Operations. 

CEQA: 

The General Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject 

to CEQA. 

Requested Action: 

Staff and Operations Committee recommend adoption of the Electric Master Plan. 

Prepared By: 

Erik M. Christeson, P.E. 

140



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District  

 

Electric System Master Plan and Assessment including the impact of Electric 
Vehicle car charging in Kirkwood.    

 

By  

 

Cross Canyon Engineering 

215 N. Linden St., Suite B, Cortez, Co. 81321 

 

 

  

141



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 2 
 

 

Table of Contents 
Introduction ................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Electric System Description .......................................................................................................................... 5 

In Valley.................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Out Valley ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Powerhouse ............................................................................................................................................... 6 

Scope of Electric System Master Plan and Assessment ................................................................................ 7 

Phase 1: Field Investigations..................................................................................................................... 7 

Phase 2: Data Analysis and Utility System Modeling .............................................................................. 7 

Phase 3: Development of Electric System Master Plan ............................................................................ 8 

Field Investigations – Findings ..................................................................................................................... 8 

System Modeling .......................................................................................................................................... 8 

Growth Projections ....................................................................................................................................... 9 

Historical System Data ............................................................................................................................... 10 

Figure 1- Historic Monthly Peaks ..................................................................................................... 11 

System Outages and Reliability .............................................................................................................. 11 

Assessment of Impacts of Potential EV Car Charging ............................................................................... 12 

EV Car Charging Basics ......................................................................................................................... 12 

Approach to modeling of EV Car Charging ........................................................................................... 13 

Assessment Results ................................................................................................................................. 14 

EV Car Charging Recommendations ...................................................................................................... 14 

Master Plan Findings and Recommendations ............................................................................................. 15 

In Valley distribution system .................................................................................................................. 15 

Out Valley System .................................................................................................................................. 17 

Up to 6MW peak load ............................................................................................................................. 17 

6MW to 10MW peak loads ..................................................................................................................... 18 

Out Valley Capital Improvements .......................................................................................................... 19 

Out Valley - Peddler Hill Service Considerations .................................................................................. 19 

Powerhouse ............................................................................................................................................. 19 

Certification ................................................................................................................................................ 21 

 

  

142



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 3 
 

 

List of Appendices: 

Appendix A KMPUD In Valley Electric System Map - Current System 

Appendix B KMPUD In Valley Electric System Field Investigation Notes 

Appendix C KMPUD In Valley Electric System Feeder map 

Appendix D KMPUD In Valley Electric System Map - Level 4 EV Car 
Charging Locations 

Appendix E KMPUD In Valley Electric System Map - System Improvements 

Appendix F Powerhouse One-Line Diagram 

Appendix G KMPUD Electrical System One-Line Diagram 

Appendix H Recommended 10-Year Capital Plan 

 

 

  

143



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 4 
 

 

 

Introduction 
This Electric System Master Plan was prepared by Cross Canyon Engineering (CCE) for the Kirkwood 
Meadows Public Utility District (the District).  The District currently provides electric service to 635 
domestic and 127 commercial electric customers in Kirkwood California.   

CCE staff has significant experience working with the District and is very familiar with all aspects of the 
District’s electric system.  CCE staff (working with a previous consulting company) prepared the 
following reports for the District: 

 Report of System Assessment For Electric System Assets In Support of RUS Loan Application 
CA 47 “A8” Alpine 

 2012-2013 Construction Work Plan  
 Report of Remaining Useful Life For Electric System Assets In Support of RUS Loan 

Application CA 47  
 Report of Valuation of Electric System Assets In Support of RUS Loan Application CA 47 “A8” 

Alpine “A8” Alpine 

Kirkwood California is located in the Sierra Nevada Mountains approximately 60 miles east of Jackson 
and 35 miles southwest of South Lake Tahoe.  The community of Kirkwood, consisting of residences and 
commercial entities as well as the Kirkwood Mountain Ski Resort, owned by Vail Resorts (Vail) currently 
receives electric power and energy from the District’s Out Valley power system as well as backup electric 
power from diesel powered generators that are owned and operated by the District at the District’s 
powerhouse in Kirkwood.   

The District has requested this Master Plan to create an orderly plan for ongoing capital improvements 
needed to provide adequate and reliable electric service to its customers and to projected electric load 
growth.   As the sole electric utility in the Kirkwood area, the District will be making annual capital 
improvements for the long term in order to maintain service to existing and new consumers.    

The District began providing electrical service on July 22, 2011 as a result of acquiring the existing 
propane gas and electric systems of Mountain Utilities, which was owned and operated as a subsidiary by 
KMR at the time (Mountain Utilities).  The District’s electric distribution system is primarily those assets 
acquired from Mountain Utilities.   

In 2012, the District completed construction of the new 5-megawatt Powerhouse housing eight 
generators.  The District provided electrical service to its customers from the powerhouse while the Out 
Valley project was constructed.   

In November 2014, the District completed the Out Valley Project connecting the Kirkwood Valley to a 
Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E) substation located at Salt Springs Reservoir. The District entered into an 
interconnection agreement with PG&E that covers the new interconnection.  The District is a member of 
the California Independent System Operator Corporation (Cal ISO), who balance electric supply and 
demand for 80 percent of California’s transmission grid power.  The District purchases power off of the 
day-ahead market through an independent energy supplier based on load forecasts provided by the 
District, with actual usage monitored by Cal ISO.   

144



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 5 
 

 

Since the commencement of electric service through the Out Valley project, the Powerhouse has served as 
a backup in case of any interruption of the Out Valley project.   

 

Electric System Description 
Refer to Appendix G for a one-line diagram of the District’s overall electrical system. 

In Valley  

The District’s distribution system within Kirkwood (referred to as In Valley) encompasses a compact 
service area that is 2.5 miles by .75 miles.  This electrical system at an elevation of 7,800 feet, operates at 
a 12.47 kV voltage level, and is entirely an underground distribution system.  This system is a four-wire 
system with an effectively grounded neutral.  The four-wire system simplifies the type of distribution 
transformers needed as well as the ability to economically serve single-phase loads.   

The powerhouse includes a duct bank system with three 12.47 kV underground feeders which connect the 
powerhouse switchgear to the existing main feeder vaults in the vicinity of the old MU powerhouse.  
These vaults are the terminus of the three distribution feeders which serve the entire the District service 
area.  The switchgear provides three feeder breakers; one for each District feeder.    Each of the three 
feeders has normally open connection points to at least one of the other feeders.  Refer to Appendix C for 
a map of the three separate feeders.  The three feeders are: 

1. Residential Feeder 
2. Commercial Feeder 
3. Lifts Feeder 

The ski area owner (Vail) currently owns three sections of underground cables connected to the District’s 
In Valley system.  A single-phase section crosses Highway 88 and serves the Kirkwood Inn area.  A 
three-phase cable section fed from the Residential feeder extends east to the Caples Lake dam and a water 
pumping service.  A three-phase connection off the Lifts feeder (referred to as the Backside) extends for a 
couple of miles south and east to serve multiple Vail chairlifts and other ancillary loads.  

Out Valley 

The Out Valley project consists of a number of sections including 1.2 miles of overhead 115kV 
transmission line from the PG&E substation at Salt Springs Reservoir to the District’s KM Green 
substation.  PG&E now operates and maintains this 1.2-mile 115kV line.  The District’s KM Green 
substation converts the system voltage from 115kV to the District’s subtransmission voltage level of 
34.5kV.  Out Valley also includes 1.9 miles of overhead 34.5kV subtransmission line from the KM Green 
substation to the Bear River Reservoir.  This overhead line is constructed with a 4/0ACSR primary 
conductor.  At the end of the overhead 34.5kV line is the start of 25.69 miles of underground 34.5kV 
subtransmission line which ends in Kirkwood.  The underground line is constructed with power cables 
configured with 345 mil of XLPE insulation around a 500mcm aluminum primary conductor, with a 
concentric neutral.   

The Out Valley project also includes the KM Blue substation, located at the District’s powerhouse, which 
converts the electrical power from the 34.5kV subtransmission level to the District’s distribution 
operating voltage of 12.47kV.  The KM Blue transformer includes a Load Tap Changer (LTC) which 

145



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 6 
 

 

automatically adjusts the output 12.47kV voltage up or down by 10% to stay within operating standards.  
The KM Blue substation includes the interconnection from the substation to the District’s 12.47kV 
switchgear at the powerhouse (described above).   

The Out Valley system includes a 2.0MVAR reactor located at the KM Blue substation in the 
powerhouse.  The 25 miles of underground 34.5kV line has a significant level of capacitance.  Electrical 
capacitance in underground transmission and distribution systems is a factor affecting any utility with 
significant underground powerlines.  When the Out Valley system was energized in 2014, the peak load at 
Kirkwood was between 2.5MW to 3.0MW and was not enough to offset the significant capacitance 
inherent in the underground system.  The 2.0MVAR reactor at KM Blue offsets that capacitance, which 
maintains the 34.5kV operating voltage within the underground cable’s design tolerance.  This report will 
discuss the impacts of future load growth and provide recommendations on the use of the KM Blue 
reactor.   

The Out Valley system was envisioned to have a capacity of up to 10MW of peak load at Kirkwood.  The 
KM Green and KM Blue substation transformers are rated at 10.4MVA (at 65 degree C) capacity.  CCE 
evaluated the ampacity of both the overhead conductor and the underground cable on the 34.5kV 
subtransmission system and confirmed adequate capacity for both types of conductors to reliably carry up 
to 10MW of peak load.  Assessing the overall capacity of the Out Valley system is included in this report.  

 

Powerhouse 

The District’s powerhouse includes 5 MW (nameplate rating at elevation) of diesel fired combustible 
engine generation.  The main components of the powerhouse include: 

 Powerhouse property, and powerhouse structure. 
 One (1) double-walled diesel fuel tank (30,000 gallons) 
 Three (3) CAT - 980 kW Primeꞏ Rated Engine Generators 
 Five (5) Volvo - 430 kW Prime Rated Engine Generators 
 Engine Cooling Systems 
 Exhaust System in Conjunction with Emission Controls  
 Lubricating Oil and Antifreeze 
 Four (4) 2500 kVA Generator Step-Up transformers (GSU) 
 Battery banks, Rack and Battery Charger 
 Paralleling Switchgear- Rated 27 kV, 2000A continuous, 16 kA AIC, digital multi-function 

protective relays, and metering.   

The Out Valley power feeds into this switchgear and the three In Valley feeders feed out of it.  The 
powerhouse includes generator controls and synchronization functions so that the powerhouse can be set 
to come on automatically in the event of a loss of Out Valley.  In that case, when Out Valley power is 
restored, the control system will synchronize the generators to the Out Valley, parallel the Out Valley 
briefly to the generators, and then shut down the generators automatically.    

The switch back to Out Valley power is done seamlessly without power interruptions to the District’s 
customers.  This switching includes a short-time parallel between the powerhouse generators and Out 
Valley.  Such short-term parallel conditions meet PG&E interconnection requirements.   

146



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 7 
 

 

Currently, the District’s use of the five Volvo engine-generators is problematic.  Issues in operating the 
Volvos include: 

1. Failure of generators on startup due to fuel pressure issues. 
2. Failure of generators on startup during cold ambient temperatures.  
3. Failure of generators to sync with the Out Valley line and/or online CAT generators. 
4. Inability to maintain exhaust temperature required to meet permit requirements. 
5. Lack of trained mechanics certified for Volvo generators. 
6. Difficulty obtaining spare parts. 

The powerhouse capacity is rated at 5.0MW.  Considering the problematic operation of the five Volvo 
generators, the current capacity of the powerhouse should be considered to no greater than 2.9MW.   

Scope of Electric System Master Plan and Assessment 
The scope work to create this Electric System Master Plan and Assessment report includes the following 
components: 

Phase 1: Field Investigations  

CCE planned for one week of field investigations in Kirkwood.   No field investigations were planned for 
the Out Valley system as the District has accurate drawings of that entire project.  The plan was to 
coordinate with the District staff, open padmounted equipment, and do secondary line locates.  The goals 
for the 2022 field investigations included: 

 Determine which specific meters are served by specific transformers. 
 Update maps for field-located service lines between transformers and meters. 
 Determine which service lines are direct buried.  In some cases, this could not be determined by 

opening the transformer. 
 Determine which primary cables were direct buried (if possible). 

 

Phase 2: Data Analysis and Utility System Modeling 

CCE is to update the existing Milsoft WindMil model.  This model was created in 2011 at the time of the 
Mountain Utilities acquisition.  It was used for the Construction Work Plan that was prepared in support 
of the District’s Rural Utilities Service (RUS) loan application.  In addition, a model of the Out Valley 
system is to be added to the system model.   

Using the updated model, CCE applied load growth scenarios to assess the capability of the District 
electric system to handle such growth.  Historical electrical demand data was used as the starting point for 
these growth scenarios.  

CCE identified electric system components that will require upgrades in order to meet the projected 
growth.   

 

147



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 8 
 

 

Phase 3: Development of Electric System Master Plan 

Based upon the systems modeling and the field investigations, CCE developed a Master Plan for a 
twenty-year planning period.  This plan identifies needed capital improvements and proposes a schedule 
for such improvements within this report.  Utility systems improvement alternatives and prioritization 
were developed with input from District staff.   

Field Investigations – Findings 
CCE utilized the existing electric system maps as well as data available from District staff for CCE’s 
planned field investigations.  Based on data already available, the field investigations were limited to 
confirming each transformer (location and capacity), documenting which meters are served by specific 
transformers, and attempting to document all direct buried electric service lines.  Field investigations took 
place the week of August 22nd, 2022.   

In some cases, it was not possible to ascertain if a service was direct buried by what could be seen at the 
transformer.  Appendix B of this report provides the maps with investigation notes for the District’s 
electric system in Kirkwood. 

System Modeling 
The existing electric system model is developed in Milsoft WindMil engineering analysis software. 
WindMil is an engineering analysis software primarily developed for analysis of electric distribution 
systems.  CCE maintains its own WindMil license.  The model was created in 2011 and was based on 
limited system knowledge (at that time) since the District had only just taken over system operations.   

 

In 2022, CCE met with the District staff and reviewed the model.   The following summarizes updates to 
the 2011 model for use in this report: 

1. CCE made a number of network connectivity changes to the model based on staff feedback.   
2. Some transformers were added, updated, and deleted as per findings from the field investigations.   
3. The calculated load of the Vail owned backside section of line was updated based on backside 

transformer capacities. 
4. The proposed Palisades 6 development was added to the model.   CCE has reviewed the electrical 

plans for this project which includes 21 new residences served by 7 transformers.  This is based 
on the communications from the developer that the construction of the infrastructure is expected 
to occur in the next couple of years.  This addition also provides a more conservative model by 
adding this load growth.   

5. The Out Valley component of the model was adjusted based on known wire sizes and 
construction types. 

6. The proposed District power delivery to the Caltrans Peddler Hill facility was added as it is 
expected that this new electrical service would occur within the next couple of years.  This load 
was modeled as a 300kVA transformer connected to the 34.5kV Out Valley system.  CCE is 
familiar with the capacity and location of the proposed peddler Hill service, having reviewed the 
new service for the District staff.   

7. The snowmaking transformer located near the old powerhouse was added to the model.  In that 
regard, the load at this point was allocated to be 1MW, since the load modeled on this feeder (Lift 

148



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 9 
 

 

Feeder) was derived from the feeder peak which included the snowmaking as well as some level 
of lift operations.   

CCE then used recent peak loading data to bring the model up to current peak loads.  Peak loading data 
for In Valley was obtained with the District staff’s assistance by reading the real-time and peak values 
from the protective relays in the powerhouse switchgear.  The base system model was updated to reflect 
known recent peaks on the three the District feeders.  The three feeders and their associated model peaks 
are: 

 

  

Recorded Peak 
01/31/23 11:00AM real-

time readings 

Feeder 
Designation 

Feeder 
Name 

Peak 
(kW) 

Peak 
Power 
Factor 

Load at 
time data 
collection 

(kW) 

Power 
Factor at 

time of data 
collection 

MU-1 Commercial 1235 96.7% 607 99.0% 

MU-2 Lifts 2294 79.1% 802 80.0% 

MU-3 Residential 923 99.9% 340 99.0% 
Table 1: In Valley Loading Data 

 

The current loads were recorded on 01/31/23 at 11:00 AM.  These values provide a snapshot of the loads 
on a typical weekday with the ski area operating.   

Keep in mind that the three feeders rarely experience simultaneous peaks.  As can be seen by summing 
the feeder peaks, they exceed the historic coincident electric peak for the District system which is 3.0MW 
(December 2018).  This method of modeling is arranged to determine the worst case powerflows and 
voltage drops for each feeder.   

The WindMil model was also used to assess powerflows and voltages for the Out Valley 34.5kV line.  
Now that the District has historic hourly peak load data from the CAISO meter at the KM Green 
substation, we now have accurate and timely peak data for the District system.  In this regard, CCE 
modeled the current Out Valley peak value of 3.0MW. For the purpose of a long-range system 
assessment, CCE also modeled the Out Valley system with a hypothetical 10MW peak, which represents 
the peak demand allowed in the PG&E interconnection agreement.   

Voltage drop calculation result tables are being provided to the District staff.  These calculations were 
derived with the peak loading described above.   

 

Growth Projections 
CCE did not refer to a specific load growth projection in the assessment of the electrical power system.  
Instead, the analysis performed, and the recommendations provided herein provide an overall assessment 
of the peak load capabilities of the three system components (Out Valley, Powerhouse, and In Valley).   

149



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 10 
 

 

Growth for the District electric system could include: 

1. Additional residential units – There are currently undeveloped lots and undeveloped properties in 
which new residential units could be built. 

2. Limitations of available propane from the District – As of January 2025, the District will not 
accept additional propane customers.  This will result in new residences and new commercial 
facilities being constructed as all electric units.  Such facilities will have a higher electrical 
demand than gas heated facilities.  Space heating will continue to be a major piece of energy 
consumption in Kirkwood (being a high elevation ski resort). 

3. Commercial Expansion – This could include hotel style accommodations as well as other 
commercial enterprises. 

4. Ski area expansion – additional or upgraded chair lifts, increased snowmaking operations, 
additional concession facilities. 

5. Upgrades to ice melt systems – CCE has reviewed plans for such upgrades for the District over 
the past few years. 

The proportion of motor loads (for Kirkwood, this would typically be chairlifts and pumps for 
snowmaking) to residential and commercial loads can affect the overall District peak load power factor.  
CCE used the same historical power factors in projecting future new loads (refer to Table 1).   

Historical System Data 
Since the energization of the Out Valley project, the District has access to hourly load profile data which 
is recorded at the KM Green substation on the Cal ISO meter.  The District’s powerhouse does not have a 
metering configuration to allow for total system load profile recording while Kirkwood is served from 
generator power.   The Cal ISO metering data is a good snapshot for the total load which includes In 
Valley loads plus all system losses.  Figure 1 provides a graph of total District loads for the previous five 
years (2018 through 2022).  It is interesting that although the District experienced an historic peak of 
3.28MW back in 2018, recent peaks have been recorded at no higher than 2.6MW.  

 

150



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 11 
 

 

 

Figure 1- Historic Monthly Peaks 
 

System Outages and Reliability  

The District records outage data as required under California regulations.   Loss of the Out Valley line are 
the most common source of outages for the District since it was first brought online.  Since the startup of 
the Out Valley, only one Out Valley outage was caused by a fault on the District’s 35kV line (tree blown 
down from high winds).  All other Out Valley outages have been from a loss of the 115kV source power 
at KM Green.    In the future, the District should maintain a backup for Out Valley outages.   PG&E’s 
operations will likely continue to be affected by fire danger and will likely result in Out Valley outages 
over the 20-year planning period.   

With the entire In Valley system underground, the District will continue to experience similar high 
reliability of the In Valley distribution system.  The newer 4/0 copper cables installed by Mountain 
Utilities between 2000 and 2008 are installed in conduit and can be expected to provide high reliability 
through the 20-year planning period.  The District should prepare for occasional In Valley cable failures, 
which have occurred in the past.  A 12.47kV cable failure will always result in one of the three feeder 
breakers tripping offline.  In that case, the District should anticipate a feeder outage during the fault 
locating work before the faulted cable can be isolated and the feeder restored.       

 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2018 2.73 2.88 2.79 1.99 0.75 0.81 0.77 0.77 0.81 0.77 2.65 3.28

2019 2.59 2.78 2.70 2.26 0.82 0.72 0.73 0.86 0.83 0.83 2.67 2.36

2020 2.57 2.27 2.42 0.94 0.72 0.72 0.87 0.74 0.80 0.77 2.29 2.63

2021 2.33 2.32 2.37 1.79 0.78 0.66 0.79 0.67 0.76 1.08 2.27 2.60

2022 2.60 2.39 2.59 1.91 1.44 0.70 0.85 0.66 0.78 1.21 2.47 2.58

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

P
ea
k 
(M

W
)

Month

KMPUD Electric System Historical Peaks

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

151



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 12 
 

 

Assessment of Impacts of Potential EV Car Charging 
In this report, CCE uses the acronym EV Car which refers to a plug-in electric vehicle (PEV).  The 
intention of this assessment is to specifically analyze the electric utility burden of charging EV cars as 
they exist commercially today.  These would include any road vehicle that can utilize the grid to 
store electrical energy within its onboard rechargeable batteries, and thereby power an electric motor for 
propulsion.  CCE does not distinguish between a straight EV car versus a plug-in hybrid car except in 
assessing the power required for such charging.   A hybrid car will typically include a smaller battery 
system which takes less energy and time to recharge.   

In this section of the report CCE assesses the impacts of load growth that might occur due to the increased 
use of EV Cars and the subsequent need to charge EV Cars in Kirkwood.  As such, this assessment 
focuses on the potential load growth and the impacts to the District electric system.  Load growth is 
considered within this overall study (refer to Section __).  This section of the report analyzes growth 
specifically from EV Car charging, with other projected growth scenarios in the background.   

This assessment is based on the current commercial availability of EV Cars and the associated charging 
equipment.   

 

EV Car Charging Basics    

Generally, in the U.S., there are three defined levels of EV Car Charging.  These levels are described 
below.  EV Car chargers include a variety of charging equipment within these three categories.  However, 
these three distinct levels (primarily based on AC voltage required) will dictate how and where such 
charging equipment would be installed.   

The duration of EV Car charging depends on the level of charger as well as on the charge level of an EV 
Car battery at the time it starts charging.  The electric demand of EV Car charging will ramp down as the 
car charges, so peak charging demand will typically be immediately after charging commences.   

EV Car manufacturers provide options for their EV Car products for all three levels.  This report is not 
intended to provide specific specifications for EV Car charging equipment.  Instead, we can assess the 
electric utility system impacts by modeling these three types of chargers. 

 

Level 1 Charging:  Level 1 charging uses a common 120-volt outlet.  This type of charger will generally 
be no more than 1.5kW of power.  Level 1 is the slowest way to charge an EV Car. By charging at a rate 
of between 3 and 5 miles of range per hour of charging, a homeowner would not be able to fully recharge 
an EV Car overnight.  Level 1 charging works well for plug-in hybrid electric vehicles because they have 
smaller batteries, typically less than 25 kW. 

Level 2 Charging: Level 2 charging uses a 208-Volt to 240-Volt outlet.  This is the type of outlet you 
would need for a typical electric dryer or electric stove.  Limited research indicates Level 2 charging is 
the most commonly used level for daily EV charging. Since most residences have either 240V service 
(typical home) or 208V service (more typical in a large multi-residential facility- including within 
Kirkwood), Level 2 charging equipment can be installed at a residence.  Level 2 charging can replenish 
between 12 and 80 miles of range per hour, depending on the power output of the Level 2 charger, and the 
vehicle’s maximum charge rate.  CCE believe that most EV Car owners find that Level 2 charging better 

152



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 13 
 

 

suited their daily charging needs. Homeowners may need to modify their residential wiring to provide a 
Level 2 charger in the garage, but such a new circuit is available from a typical residential AC panel.   

Our research shows that Level 2 equipment is typically a 240VAC plug using 30 amps and will have a 
peak electrical demand of 7.2 kW of power.  However, there are Level 2 chargers available on the market 
today that can demand as much as 19kW of power.   

For multi-residential Level 2 charging, the owner of the facility will face some significant electrical 
upgrades in order to accomplish any significant penetration of Level 2 charging in the parking garage.  
CCE is familiar with the process for upgrades as we have assisted the District with upgrades related to ice 
melt systems and other HVAC changes.   

Level 3 Charging: Level 3 charging requires a 400-Volt to 900-Volt service.  A typical 480V service 
from a U.S. utility would be a three-phase 480Vac service.  Level 3 charging is currently the fastest type 
of charging available.   A level 3 charger is a major investment for the owner.  Level 3 charging stations 
are typically provided commercially, will require a significant utility service, and are designed to provide 
fast charging to multiple cars simultaneously.  In the summer of 2020, CCE analyzed a potential Level 3 
charger for the District based on a developer’s inquiry.  This charger was proposed to require a three-
phase, 750kVA, 480VAC service and would include 8 charging stalls.  The potential charging customer 
calculated up to 774kW of power from such an installation.  Peak demand would occur when all 8 stalls 
were hooked up and the EV Car battery systems were significantly discharged.   

 

Approach to modeling of EV Car Charging  

Based on available EV Car charging options, CCE used the following methods to model the electrical 
demand of new EV Car charging in Kirkwood: 

1. As discussed previously in the report, known projected new loads were added to the model. 
2. Then loads on all three feeders were then increased 10% over existing peak loads.  – The 10% 

increase is CCE’s method to model diversified EV Car charging loads coming on at or near peak 
load.  Load duration curves provided in this report provide daily timelines for typical the District 
winter peaks.  The load diversity assumption is based on CCE’s expectation that much of the 
residential EV Car charging will occur at night.  CCE does not anticipate that daytime Level 2 car 
charging will represent an EV Car charging peak.   This 10% approach also attempts to replicate 
the installation of some Level 2 car charging in the multi-residential facilities in Kirkwood 
(typically on the Commercial feeder).   

3. One 774kW Level 3 charger was modeled on both the Commercial and separately on the Lifts 
feeder.  These proposed new loads were placed coincident with the feeder peak.  This will 
provide a worst-case peak load and voltage drop assessment.  Level 3 charging stations peak 
electrical demand will depend on how many EV Cars are being charged simultaneously, and the 
existing level of charge of each of these EV Car battery systems.  This worst-case approach to 
modelling will cover a scenario in which a smaller (smaller than 774kW) EV Car charging station 
is considered.  As described previously in this report, the Lifts feeder peak used in the modelling 
includes the snowmaking service located near the old powerhouse.  Discussions with the District 
staff indicate that the snowmaking load is typically running in late fall and would not be 
coincident with winter month Lift feeder peaks (typically chairlift operation).  Using this peak 
feeder value in this analysis provides a more conservative approach to modelling the feeder 

153



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 14 
 

 

conditions.  CCE cannot predict if, in the future, there would be significant Level 3 charging 
coincident with snowmaking activities.    

Once these load additions were made, voltage drop studies were run for all three feeders. 

Assessment Results  

As described in this report, the District In Valley distribution system provides excellent capacity for 
existing loads and future load growth due to the short line lengths, the 12.47kV operating voltage, and the 
existing distribution conductor sizes.  This was confirmed in assessing the EV Car charging.   Overall 
system capacity – Overall the District system peaks were not evaluated specifically for EV Car Charging.  
Overall system peaks are covered in this report and will include EV Car charging as well as other growth 
scenarios.   

 Capacity of each feeder – No individual line segment was at or near capacity.   
 Capacity of distribution transformers – as discussed previously in this report, this analysis of 

loads on individual distribution transformers was not completed.  Spot checking of some 
transformer loads using the primary line loading values showed existing transformer loading to be 
less than 40% capacity.  As mentioned previously, short term overload of these distribution 
transformers will not significantly affect them due to the winter ambient temperatures.     

 

Worst case calculated voltage drop for the entire system was only 1.7V.  With a 120VAC nominal source 
voltage at the powerhouse, delivery voltage at a customer meter would be approximately 118.3Vac which 
is much less than the 8% drop allowed in the District’s service standards.  Keep in mind that it would be 
easy for the District to raise the delivery voltage at the powerhouse with changes to the LTC controls at 
the Blue Substation transformer.   

EV Car Charging Recommendations  

CCE provides the following recommendations for EV Car charging.   

Level 2 chargers: 

For Level 2 chargers, it would be helpful if customers notify the District anytime load is added to a panel 
such as a charger being installed.  For the typical 7.2kW Level 2 charger, the District should only need to 
document these installations.   If a consumer intends to install a higher capacity Level 2 charger (up to 
19kW), the District should review the analysis for the specific transformer.  As described in this report, 
that would include a review of the metered data for all consumers on the same transformer and 
calculations of the estimated peak demand.   Based on our findings, many the of District distribution 
transformers hold additional capacity, but it is prudent to check prior to the installation of such a charger.  
It is possible that the installation of a 19kW charger could require upgrading some transformers.  If that is 
determined, the District would need to coordinate with the consumer for the timing of the upgrade.  One 
alternative would be for the District to prohibit such a Level 2 charger at the specific location (unless a 
transformer replacement can be accomplished).   

If Level 2 charging is proposed at multi-residential facilities, the owner will be in discussion with the 
District staff regarding the proposed upgrades.  At that time, the overall electric service will need to be 
assessed.  It is possible that such an upgrade may require replacement of the facility transformer.   

154



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 15 
 

 

If Level 2 chargers become more prevalent on the District system, CCE recommends outreach to the 
consumers.  Such outreach would educate the consumers about the need to limit overall peak load (both 
the powerhouse and the Out Valley have limitations) and that using a timer for a Level 2 charger could 
benefit the District and its customers.  Settings for the timers should be derived from the load duration 
curves included in this report as well as the monthly peak graphs.   

Level 3 Chargers: 

The deployment of Level 3 chargers will depend on the economic feasibility of such a service for any 
potential commercial enterprise investigating such an installation.  Refer to Appendix D for the locations 
on both the Commercial and Lifts feeders that could handle a 774kW EV Car charging station.  As the 
District is approached by potential Level 3 EV Car charging entities, CCE recommends the following 
process: 

1. The map provided will clarify to the entity the areas that are viable for up to 774kW type stations. 
2. Specific District requirements need to be clarified.  While this assessment shows that the 774kW 

Level 3 charger can be reliably served at the specified locations, it does not assess the overall 
system impacts of the District peak demand, the availability of the powerhouse as a backup, and 
any Out Valley limitations.  CCE cannot predict the sequence of load growth in Kirkwood and 
where Level 3 charging falls in that sequence.  However, Level 3 car charging may be the kind of 
electric load that could utilize an interruptible load restriction.  Interruptible load restrictions are 
less viable for some residential and commercial applications.  One possible interruptible scenario 
for a level 3 car charging service would be during loss of Out Valley (operating on powerhouse 
only).  Load interrupting schemes could possibly interrupt part of the Level 3 charging station if 
the station is electrically configured for such an operation.  This would be the preferred option for 
the District and may make the interrupting system more amenable to a developer.  CCE 
documented historic peak days and times.  Such data could be used to determine load interruption 
windows.   

3. As a location for such a service develops, the design of the distribution extension needed to serve 
the customer will need to occur.  This would be similar to how developers provide the 
distribution designs to the District today for new development.  The design of the service needs to 
include interruptible load requirements and may require communications infrastructure from the 
load back to the District network.  It may involve remote control of a customer owned 
interrupting device (this could be a 480V breaker with a shunt trip).   

 

Master Plan Findings and Recommendations 

The District’s electrical utility system has sufficient capacity to serve existing and projected new electric 
loads as outlined in this report.  Appendix E includes CCE’s recommended electric system improvements 
with projected costs for the 10-year planning period.   Master Plan findings are broken out by the three 
major components of the District’s System: 

In Valley distribution system 

The In Valley distribution system has significant capacity to serve additional loads.  It also includes a 
number of backup distribution connections which improve reliability.  CCE analysis indicates that 

155



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 16 
 

 

existing In Valley distribution cables are adequate to serve up to the maximum PG&E interconnection 
load of 10MW.  A 10MW load scenario would require some shifting of loads between the three 
feeders to avoid any specific section being over-loaded.  Another option for In Valley as loads exceed 
6.0MW would be to construct a fourth feeder out of the powerhouse.  A new feeder cable extension 
from the powerhouse to the existing vaults, along with rearrangement of cables in the vaults, would 
be needed to create this fourth feeder.  Due to the compact nature of the system, the system can serve 
up to 10MW of load with acceptable voltage at all customer locations.    

Recommended In Valley system improvements are targeted as preventive measures to reduce 
equipment failures and to improve operational flexibility.  In Valley recommended system 
improvements fall under these categories.  Note that these categories are included in the replacement 
criteria for the specific improvements listed in this report: 

1. Replacement of three-phase primary cables for Lift feeder within the meadow. This section is 
direct buried.  CCE recommends replacement of this line with the 4/0Copper in conduit. 

2. Replacement of old primary cable – The system includes some older primary cables, some of 
them installed at the time of the specific development.  These cables include non-jacketed 
concentric neutral cables in a direct buried trench.  These cables either have reached or soon 
will be approaching their remaining useful life as noted by multiple failures in recent years.  
These unjacketed cables are subject to loss of the neutral conductor due to corrosion.  CCE 
recommends a systematic program to eventually replace all older cables over the extent of the 
Master Plan.  Primary cable failures during the winter months could be problematic for the 
District.  Fortunately, since some of the system can be looped and served from backup 
directions, the District may be able to restore power after a cable failure by switching and 
then plan for a summer season replacement.   

3. Replacement of direct buried service lines – The field survey documented some of the direct 
buried service lines in Kirkwood.  The District has experienced cable failures for some of 
these lines.  CCE recommends a systematic program to replace these service lines.  The 
replacements will be prioritized to replace the oldest cables first.  Eventually, CCE 
recommends that all service cables be installed in conduit. 

4. Damaged Loadbreak Junction Enclosures (LJE) – The District experiences approximately 
two occurrences of LJE damage during heavy snow winters.  The Master Plan includes costs 
for replacement of damaged enclosures.   

5. Replacement of the Lodge switching cabinet – This cabinet is becoming obsolete and should 
be replaced. 

6. Fault Indicators – The District’s fault indicators are old devices (some acquired in the MU 
purchase).  Older fault indicators will be replaced, and some new indicators should be 
installed at strategic locations to improve the District’s response during outages.  Newer fault 
indicators should be purchased with radio communication technology.  That way, the District 
can read the status of fault indicators, even if the vault or LJE housing the indicators is buried 
in snow.  CCE also recommends acquiring the radio system required for the remote location 
capability. 

7. Transformer replacements – Due to their age, CCE anticipates a number of transformer 
failures over the period of the Master Plan.   

8. Installation of transformer retaining walls – for specific transformers located in problematic 
terrain. 

9. Meter replacements – Due to regulatory requirements, the District is required to replace 10% 
of meters per year.  Replaced meters will require the AMI radio transmitted capability.   

156



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 17 
 

 

10. Transformer oil containment – the El Dorado Irrigation District has expressed the need for a 
plan to install oil containment for padmounted transformer located below the dam the Caples 
Lake dam.  This transformer serves Vail’s water pumping station.    

Lines for new consumers will be constructed as needed for growth.  The District policies require 
100% consumer contribution for any new lines required to serve new consumers.  This study does 
not project the locations of new consumers or new line extensions except for the Palisades 6 
development.   

Out Valley System 

The Out Valley system will maintain acceptable voltage levels for the historic peak load (3.28MW in 
December 2018).  It is helpful to understand the District’s operating practices for Out Valley since 
some of these practices would need to change for some load growth scenarios.   

The 25 miles of underground 34.5kV cable creates a significant level of electrical capacitance on the 
Out Valley 35kV system.  During peak load flows, the capacitance helps maintain the system voltage 
at an acceptable level for the District’s In Valley system.  However, at lightly loaded powerflows 
(off-peak), the capacitance can lead to unacceptable high voltages on the 34.5kV Out Valley cables.  
A 2.0 MVAR reactor was designed and installed as part of the Out Valley system.  This reactor, 
located at the powerhouse, helps maintain the system voltage during lightly loaded powerflows.  
Currently, the reactor remains on-line all year and the Out Valley transformer at the Powerhouse 
adjusts the In Valley operating voltage using its Load Tap Changer (LTC) to provide acceptable 
voltage to In Valley as the overall peak load fluctuates.   

Another tool used by the District to offset the potential high voltage on the 34.5kV system is 
adjustment of the fixed taps on the two Out Valley transformers (KM Green and KM Blue).  
Currently these transformers are both tapped in such a way as to lower the operating voltage and 
reduce the amount of LTC operations at KM Blue.   

CCE analysis considered specific load growth cases for Out Valley.   

Up to 6MW peak load 

This growth scenario includes residential and commercial development as well as some 
implementation of EV car charging.  Keep in mind that a 6.0MW peak would represent a doubling of 
the system peak.   

As loads increase, above the current 3.0MW levels, the District should continue to monitor and 
document the operating extents of the LTC at the KM Blue transformer.  These measurements will 
provide the best barometer of the Out Valley operation.   

1. Increases in the LTC “voltage raise” functions will provide the District a warning that system 
voltages need to be increased, especially at peak load levels.  As LTC “voltage raise” extents 
increase with growth, KMPUD can plan to adjust the fixed taps at either the KM Green 
transformer, the KM Blue transformer, or both.  These fixed tap changes must be made with 
the system off-line and can be scheduled for the following summer (after the peak loads are 
experienced).   

2. Decreases in the LTC “voltage lower” functions could occur due to small increased voltage 
levels on the PG&E 115kV system.  As grid transmission systems grow (specifically in the 

157



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 18 
 

 

Salt Springs/Tiger Creek PG&E transmission region) some level of voltage increases could 
occur. Such increases would be small and within the typical transmission delivery voltages 
documented in the PG&E interconnection agreement. If Kirkwood loads hold steady in the 
future, yet operating voltages increase (as documented in the LTC historical values), the 
District should plan to adjust the KM Green and KM Blue fixed taps accordingly during the 
subsequent summer season.  These adjustments would make small reductions in the Out 
Valley 34.5kV system and are needed to protect the 25 miles of underground cable included 
in the Out Valley.   

3. CCE does not recommend any switching of the KM Blue 2.0MVAR reactor for peak loads up 
to 6.0MW.  The operating changes described above should be adequate for Out Valley to 
provide up to the 6.0MW while keeping the 34.5kV operating voltage within underground 
cable tolerances.  As load grows in Kirkwood, CCE recommends that the District develop a 
procedure to record the 34.5kV voltages on a monthly basis.  This process would involve 
District staff taking readings from one protective relay (SEL-311L) at KM Green, and the 
associated relay at KM Blue.  These readings should be taken during both peak and off-peak 
conditions. 

CCE’s analysis shows that the Out Valley system has the capacity to maintain acceptable voltage 
levels for up to 6MW peak load at Kirkwood with the adjustments described above.   

6MW to 10MW peak loads 

This growth scenario was assessed because the 10MW peak is the maximum allowable under the 
KMPUD-PG&E interconnection agreement. Any load growth that results in a peak load greater than 
6MW will have ramifications for the operation of the Out Valley system.   

For loads exceeding 6.0MW, CCE recommends a number of electrical improvements that will allow 
the Out Valley to reliably carry up to the 10MW limit.  Managing voltage and power factor 
seasonally and in real-time will be required.  CCE recommends the projects (described below) in a 
sequence which will depend on the actual peak loads that occur, the actual summer peaks that occur 
in the future, and actual voltage recordings and LTC data.   

1. Automate switching of the 2.0MW reactor – This project will involve programming existing 
protective relays at both KM Green and KM Blue to monitor power flows and voltages and 
automatically switch the KM Blue reactor.  In essence, when peak loads are occurring and 
system voltages are low, the reactor will be switched off.  As loads decrease and system 
voltages increase, the reactor will be switched back on.  During peak winter months, it is 
possible the reactor will be switching daily.   

2. Installation of switched capacitor(s) In Valley – Switched capacitors can be strategically 
placed in the Kirkwood area to compensate for significant motor loads.  Switched capacitors 
will reduce the overall MVA powerflow of the Out Valley at high peak load periods and 
therefore improve the overall Out Valley capacity and the operating voltages on the In Valley 
system.  Additional power factor data could be collected from the feeder breaker relays to 
trend power factor and provide guidance as to the location and capacity of any switched 
capacitors on the system.   

3. Installation of a 35kV voltage regulator in a remote location between Peddler Hill and 
Kirkwood.  This padmounted device will make up to 10% adjustments of the 34.5kV voltage 
depending on load values and operating voltages.  The location of such a regulator can be 

158



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 19 
 

 

determined by the District with the knowledge that the regulator will require periodic 
maintenance and testing.   

Out Valley Capital Improvements 

CCE recommends only a couple of capital improvements for the Out Valley system for the 20-year 
planning period.  The impetus for additional capital improvements for Out Valley will be based on if 
loads exceed the 6.0MW threshold.  The following recommendation is based on the expectation that 
peak loads will not exceed 6.0MW: 

1. Damaged 35kV Loadbreak Junction Enclosures (LJE) – The District has experienced some 
damage to these 34.5kV LJE during heavy snow winters.  The LJEs were placed at specific 
points in the Out Valley project.  The Master Plan includes costs for replacement of damaged 
enclosures and includes costs for LJEs as well as vaults.  The replacements will typically be 
new LJEs (rather than installing a vault).  The 34.5kV cable is larger and much less flexible 
than the District’s 15kV cable.  Replacing an LJE with a vault may result in the need to 
replace one entire section of the 35kV cable, which would increase the costs significantly.   
There are no other practical alternatives to the vaults or LJE style cabinets for 35kV 
underground cable systems.      

 

Out Valley ‐ Peddler Hill Service Considerations 

As load grows in Kirkwood, and the District adjusts the Out Valley operating voltages, the District is 
aware that such changes will impact the operating voltage levels seen at the Peddler Hill delivery to 
Caltrans.  Caltrans is aware of such potential fluctuations.  As the District is making seasonal adjustments 
to Out Valley, CCE recommends that Caltrans be informed periodically.   

 

Powerhouse 

The District’s powerhouse, as it is currently operated without the use of the Volvo 450kW generators, 
has a capacity of less than 3MW.    Without the Volvo generators operational, the District is already 
at peak capacity of the powerhouse with historical peak loads between 2.7 and 3.28MW.  CCE 
recommends that the District complete an investigation of the use of the five Volvo generators.  Such 
an investigation will allow the District to compare options for the powerhouse as a backup power 
source.  CCE expects the District would be faced with powerhouse upgrade options in order to be 
able to depend on the powerhouse to backup up to its originally rated capacity of 5.0MW: 

1. Replace the Volvo generators with another Caterpillar generator which could utilize the 
existing generator step-up transformer and switchgear breaker.  This upgrade would require 
significant physical changes in the powerhouse.  CCE has not evaluated if a new Caterpillar 
generator could replace the Volvo generators within the existing building footprint.  
Modifications to the powerhouse structure would add additional costs if needed.   

2. The vendor that designed and installed the complete generator system in the powerhouse, 
PowerSecure had stated back in 2011 that the powerhouse could incorporate a fourth 980 kW 
generator but would require some building remodel work, the new generator, and a new 
Generator Step-Up transformer.   

159



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

Page 20 
 

 

A local backup power source remains the most viable backup power alternative for the District (in the 
event of loss of Out Valley).  The Kirkwood area remains isolated from other parts of the electric 
grid.  Adding a fourth generator takes advantage of the existing powerhouse infrastructure and would 
be able to utilize the existing switchgear breaker and step-up transformer which are currently 
dedicated to the bank of Volvo generators.   

CCE made a preliminary assessment of a battery backup system at the powerhouse.  This analysis 
showed that even for a short-lived 8-hour backup system over 13,000 square feet of floor space would 
be required (for batteries and inverters) and would likely require HVAC upgrades to the building to 
maintain the battery systems operating temperatures.  The District should anticipate an Out Valley 
outage could last up to a week.  In the event of damage to the Salt Springs to KM Green 115kV line, 
repairs along this rugged terrain could be hampered by weather, access across forest lands, and 
availability of replacement materials.  The backup generators will provide a substantially higher level 
of resilience than a battery storage system.   

  

160



161



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

KMPUD In Valley Electric System Map - Current 
System 

 

  

162



Aster
 Ct.

Yarrow Place

Columbine Cir.

W
intergreen W

ay

M
errill R

d.

Fremont Ct

Sorrell Ct.

 RC
Lodge

Base Camp

Sun Meadows

E.M
ea

do
ws D

r.

He
at

he
r C

t.

Dangburg Dr.
Fremont Rd.

BULK
PROPANE
STORAGE

Hawkweed Way

Larkspur Dr.

Kirkw
ood Meadows D

r.

Loop Rd.

Edelwiess

C
ornice

C
t.

POWERHOUSE

Glove Rock Rd.

Meadows

The

Mountain ClubThe Lodge

Towers

Pump House 3

VSJR

KM
DLJE2

VSLS

LJE205

LJEJR

Kirkwood Meadows Dr.

East Meadows Dr.

Em
p. Hous.

Meadow Stone

Sn
ow

cr
es

t

Lost
Cabin

Thimblewood

A-House

Townhomes

Timber
Ridge

Alta Serra

Palisades Dr.

OSW2

SE
N

TI
N

EL
S 

W
ES

T

FUTURE

LJEP1

LJEXXX

KM
DLJE1

LJE517

LJEXXX

LJETR

LJEXXX

LJEXXX

LJE811

LJE517

OSLG

ST
A
T
E
 R

O
U
T
E
 88

VAIL OWNED
LINE EXTENDS
TO BACKSIDE

35KV
EXTEND TO
KM GREEN

SUBSTATION

PRIMARY-RESIDENTIAL
PRIMARY-COMMERCIAL
PRIMARY-LIFTS

XFMR A - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR B - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR C - SINGLE PHASE

LEGEND:

LJEXXX

THREE PHASE XFMR
LD J ENCLOSURE

XFMR UNK - SINGLE PHASEEQUIPMENT

SWITCH PRIMARY-VAIL OWNED
35kV LINE

DATEREV
CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

FILE NAME

DRAWNREVISIONS APV

DRAWING NUMBERSCALE

CHKDWN

PROJ CODE
CCE - Cortez

215 N. Linden St., Ste B
Cortez, CO  81321

KMPUD IN-VALLEY
ELECTRIC SYSTEM

CURRENT SYSTEM MAP
 APPENDIX A

MP-ANONE

NRB

WEM

DHR

01-25-23

MPA-B

KMPUD-1004

A ISSUE FOR REPORT06-21-23 NRB WEM DHR

163

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lower Shop

AutoCAD SHX Text
Volcano

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
2+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
3+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
5+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
6+00



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

KMPUD In Valley Electric System Field 
Investigation Notes 

   

164



701

Aster
 Ct.

502

Columbine Cir.

602

516

518

519

517

604
606

605

603

515 514 513

512

507

601

511

510
509

508

506

505 504

503

706

522
521

523

520

Sorrell Ct.

707 708

525

705
704

527
526524

709 712711710

528

703 702

531530529

225

He
at

he
r C

t.

155

154

226

227

501

133

135
132

151

150

153

147
148

152

156

144
145

146

142
143

157

Hawkweed Way
160

159

306

421

311

Larkspur Dr.713 423

422

314

313

424

312

224

420

307

419

418
417

416

308

220

310
309

223

221
222

219
218

301

410

217
216

215 214 213

304
305 303 302

415 414 413 412 411

212
211

210

409 408

A

BA

A-NS

A

C

C

C-3S

B

B

B

C

B

A

C

B

C
B

B

C

C

C

B

B

C A A

C

A

KM
DLJE2

East Meadows Dr.

C

C

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

50kva

25kva

75kva

25kva 25kva 25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva 25kva 25kva 25kva 25kva

25kva

50kva

25kva

25kva

25kva
25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva
25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

45kva

TC519

TC523

TC603

TC604

TC601

TC604-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
3-2"C-PRIMARY

TC603-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
PRIMARY-?

TC601-4SERV
4-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2"/1-3"C PRIMARY

TC523-2SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-3"C
1-#2C UGTX-2"C
PRIMARY-?

TC526-1SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-2"C
PRIMARY-?

TC528

TC530

TC528-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC506

VT601
VTCC

TCEL-1SERV
1-1/0 UGQX-2"C
2-PRIMARY-CIC

TCKMPUDEL-1SERV
1-2/0 UGQX-2"C
1-PRIMARY -DB

TC519-NO SERV
PRIMARY-DIRT

TC605-NO SERV
PRIMARY-?

TC530-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC506-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC705

25kva

TC704 TC703 TC701

TC705-4SERV
4-4/0 UGTX-(3)2"(1)3"C
2-2" C PRIMARY

TC704-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2" C PRIMARY?

TC703-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2" C PRIMARY

TC701-3SERV
3-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2" C PRIMARY

TC225

TC312
C

TC314

TC314-3SERV
3-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC312-2SERV
2-2/0 UGTX-2"C?
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC225-3SERV
2-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC309

TC221-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-3"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC307 TC306 TC303

TC218

TC221

TC309-2SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC307-1SERV
1-1/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY?

TC306-NO SERV
PRIMARY-? TC303-2SERV

1-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
PRIMARY ?

TC302-1SERV
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY?

TC301-2SERV
2-2/0 UGTX-?
PRIMARY?

TC218-3SERV
3-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC214

TC214-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-?C
PRIMARY CIC

A
TC302 TC301

TC210-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-3"C
PRIMARY CIC

TC811A-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-3"C
2-2" PRIMARY

TC810B-NO SERV
2-4"C PRIMARY

TCINN-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-1-3"C ?
OTHER C
2-4"C-PRIMARY

TCSCEF-1SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB
1-4"C- TO INN
PRIMARY
DB ACROSS
RD/MEADOW

TCSCEF

TCOMTCSCEF-2SERV
2-#2 UGTX-DB
ABANDONED IN PLACE

TC128-2SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB
1-350 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC129-5SERV
3-4/0 UGTX-DB?
2-2/0 UGTX-DB?
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC129

TC134-2SERV 1
RETIRED
1-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2.5"C
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC140-4SERV
4-4/0 UGTX-1-3"C,
1-2.5C, 2-DB?
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC150

TC152
TC154

TC144
TC150-6SERV
5-4/0 UGTX-3-2.5"C,
1-DB
1-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC152-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-DB
1-1/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC154-5SERV
5-1/0 UGTX-1-3"C, 4-DB
1-3", 1-4"C PRIMARY TC144-3SERV

2-4/0 UGTX-DB
1-1/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC159-4SERV
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
PRIMARY ?

TCYH-4BUILDINGS
2-500MCM UGQX-DB
2-6"C PRIMARY

TCSW2-2SERV
1-250MCM 1-3"C

KM
DLJE1

LJE517

LJEXXX

C-NS
TC605

25kva
C

TC160

UNK

A
TC526

ABC
TCKMPUDEL

ABC
TCELTCINN

C

PRIMARY-RESIDENTIAL
PRIMARY-COMMERCIAL
PRIMARY-LIFTS

XFMR A - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR B - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR C - SINGLE PHASE

LEGEND:

LJEXXX

THREE PHASE XFMR
LD J ENCLOSURE

XFMR UNK - SINGLE PHASEEQUIPMENT

SWITCH PRIMARY-VAIL OWNED
35kV LINE

DATEREV
CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

FILE NAME

DRAWNREVISIONS APV

DRAWING NUMBERSCALE

CHKDWN

PROJ CODE
CCE - Cortez

215 N. Linden St., Ste B
Cortez, CO  81321

KMPUD IN-VALLEY
ELECTRIC SYSTEM
FIELD INVESTIGATION NOTES

APPENDIX B 1

MP-B1NONE

NRB

WEM

DHR

03-16-23

MP-A-B

KMPUD-1004

A ISSUE FOR REPORT06-21-23 NRB WEM DHR

165



 RC
Lodge

Base Camp

Sun Meadows

E.M
ea

do
ws D

r.

207

410

814

212
211

813

812

210

209

208

409 408 407

Kirkw
ood Meadows D

r.

Loop Rd.

Edelwiess

C
ornice

C
t.

POWERHOUSE

202

818

817
816

807

815

203811

810

809

808

206

205

204

Glove Rock Rd.

803

804

806

805

201

801

802

Meadows

The

Mountain ClubThe Lodge

Towers

Pump House 3

VSJR

LJE205

LJEJR

Meadow Stone

Sn
ow

cr
es

t

Lost
Cabin

Thimblewood

A-House

Townhomes

Timber
Ridge

Alta Serra

3

4

5

6

7

8
9

3029
28 38

37

36

35

34

33

10

11

12

13

14

15

25kva

25kva
150kva 277/480V

25kva

25kva

25kva

50kva
50kva

25kva

25kva

50kva

50kva
50kva50kva

300kva

??kva

500kva

500kva

300kva

500kva

500kva

300kva

750kva

300kva

300kva

500kva

300kva

300kva

500kva

225kva

500kva

50kva

50kva

50kva

50kva

OSW2

1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY?

TC301-2SERV
2-2/0 UGTX-?
PRIMARY?

TC210
B

A

A

A

A

TC206

TC301

MUW5
NO METER
FEED FROM PP TO
LJE AND THEN TO
KMPUDEL/TCEL

TC210-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-3"C
PRIMARY CIC

TC206-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
PRIMARY CIC? DIRT

TC204

TC202

TC204-4SERV
4-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

TC202-4SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2/0 UGTX-2"C
PRIMARY CIC?

TC811A-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-3"C
2-2" PRIMARY

B
TC811A

B
TC810B

A
TC809C

B
TC808

A
TC806

TC810B-NO SERV
2-4"C PRIMARY

TC809C-5SERV
5-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-4"C-PRIMARY

TC808-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-4"C-PRIMARY

TC806-SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-4"C-PRIMARY

TC802-4SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2.5"C
2-2/0 UGTX-2.5"C
1-4"C PRIMARY

TC803-4SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2.5"C
2-2/0 UGTX-2.5"C
1-4"C PRIMARY

TC804-2SERV
2-3/0 UGTX-2.5"C
1-4"C PRIMARY

TCBC-1SERV
3-500KCMILUGQX-3-4"C
2-4"C PRIMARY

TCSM1-4SERV
3-500KCMILUGQX-3-4"C
2-4"C PRIMARY
TCBC-4SERV
3-500KCMILUGQX-3-4"C
2-4"C PRIMARY

TCYH-4BUILDINGS
2-500MCM UGQX-DB
2-6"C PRIMARY B

C
TCP3

A
TCP2

B
TCP1

TCP2-1SERV
1-2/0 UGTX-3"C
2-3"C PRIMARY

TCP1-1SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-4"C
2-3"C PRIMARY

LJEP1

LJETR

LJEXXX

LJEXXX

LJE811

A
TC804

C
TC803

B
TC802

ABC
TCAH

ABC
TCRC

ABC
TCSN

ABC
TCWT

ABC
TCTB

ABC
TCC11

ABC
TCC10

1000kva

ABC
TCC5

ABC
TCC6

ABC
TCSN

ABC
TCMS2

ABC
TCMS1

ABC
TCTM

TCKPUDW2

??kva
TCW2

ABC

ABC
TCTW

ABC
TCTR

ABC
TCAS1

1500kva

1000kva
ABC

TCCMC

ABC

ABC

ABC

ABC

TCPS
BC

ABC
TCC1
TC11
LJECC

ABC
TCLG1
TCLG2

UNK

ABC
TCLC

ABC
TCCP

500kva

OSLG

TCRC

TCBC

TCSM2

ABC
TCSM1

VAIL OWNED
LINE EXTENDS
TO BACKSIDE

PRIMARY-RESIDENTIAL
PRIMARY-COMMERCIAL
PRIMARY-LIFTS

XFMR A - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR B - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR C - SINGLE PHASE

LEGEND:

LJEXXX

THREE PHASE XFMR
LD J ENCLOSURE

XFMR UNK - SINGLE PHASEEQUIPMENT

SWITCH PRIMARY-VAIL OWNED
35kV LINE

DATEREV
CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

FILE NAME

DRAWNREVISIONS APV

DRAWING NUMBERSCALE

CHKDWN

PROJ CODE
CCE - Cortez

215 N. Linden St., Ste B
Cortez, CO  81321

KMPUD IN-VALLEY
ELECTRIC SYSTEM
FIELD INVESTIGATION NOTES

APPENDIX B2

MP-B2NONE

NRB

WEM

DHR

03-16-23

MP-A-B

KMPUD-1004

A ISSUE FOR REVIEW06-21-23 NRB WEM DHR

166

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 1



129

104

102

139Yarrow Place

516

517

515 514 513

512

W
intergreen W

ay

M
errill R

d.

3

2

11

10

9158

8

7

6 5
4

116

117

118 Fremont Ct
110 111

112

113114115

109

108
106

105

107

15
141312

121

511

120

124
125

126

130
131

123

119

141

122

127

128

140

155

154

24
25

52

49

48

47
20

21

22
23

19

18

17

46

103

51

50
16

65

57

Dangburg Dr.

70

71

69 68

72 73

67

45
44

43

66

74 75

42
41

555453 56

Fremont Rd.

133

134
135

136

137

132

97

98

99100

101

96

138

95

149

151

150

153

147
148

152

92

26 27 28

29 30

90

91

93
94

8889

39

64

76
77

63

62

78
79

80

61

40

59
58

60

156

144
145

146

86

142
143

84

85

33

38

31
32

87

37
36

34
35

82
83

81

157

Hawkweed Way
160

159

C

C

C-3S

A

B

AC

C

B

C

C

C

CA

B

B

A

B

A

C

A

A

B

C

A

C

A

A

B

B

KM
DLJE2

C

B

A

Kirkwood Meadows Dr.

C

C

25kva

25kva
75kva

25kva

25kva

25kva
25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva 50kva
50kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva
25kva

25kva

25kva25kva25kva25kva25kva

25kva

25kva 25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

45kvaTC603

TC604

TC601

TC604-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
3-2"C-PRIMARY

TC603-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
PRIMARY-?

TC601-4SERV
4-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2"/1-3"C PRIMARY

TCEL-1SERV
1-1/0 UGQX-2"C
2-PRIMARY-CIC

TCKMPUDEL-1SERV
1-2/0 UGQX-2"C
1-PRIMARY -DB

TC605-NO SERV
PRIMARY-?

TC506-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2"C-PRIMARY

25kva

2-2"C-PRIMARY

TCSCEF-1SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB
1-4"C- TO INN
PRIMARY
DB ACROSS
RD/MEADOW

TCSCEF

TCOMTCSCEF-2SERV
2-#2 UGTX-DB
ABANDONED IN PLACE

TC121

TC124

TC128

TC02

TC140

TC121-7SERV
7-2/0 UGTX-DB
1-#12 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC124-5SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-DB
3-2/0 UGTX-DB
PRIMARY DB

TC128-2SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB
1-350 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC129-5SERV
3-4/0 UGTX-DB?
2-2/0 UGTX-DB?
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC129

TC134

TC134-2SERV 1
RETIRED
1-4/0 UGTX-2"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2.5"C
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC140-4SERV
4-4/0 UGTX-1-3"C,
1-2.5C, 2-DB?
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC150

TC152
TC154

TC144
TC150-6SERV
5-4/0 UGTX-3-2.5"C,
1-DB
1-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC152-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-DB
1-1/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC154-5SERV
5-1/0 UGTX-1-3"C, 4-DB
1-3", 1-4"C PRIMARY TC144-3SERV

2-4/0 UGTX-DB
1-1/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC159-4SERV
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
PRIMARY ?

TC59
C

TC59-6SERV
3-4/0 UGTX-DB
3-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC57
C

TC57-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-Dirt?
1-1/0 UGTX-Dirt?
PRIMARY ?

TC55-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-3"C
1-2/0 UGTX-2"C
2-4"C PRIMARY

TC55

TC53-5SERV
5-1/0 UGTX-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

TC49-2SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-DB?
PRIMARY?
1-Buried, 1-Broken

TC53TC49

TC47

TC43

TCLMR2

TC39

TC37

TC34

TC32
TC29

TC90

TC24

TC98

TC93

TC100

TC004

TC08

TC47-4SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB
3-2/0 UGTX-1-3"C, 2-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

TC43-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-DB
1-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

25kva

TCLMR2-4SERV
4-2/0 UGTX-1-3"C, 3-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

TC39-3SERV
3-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

TC37-5SERV
3-4/0 UGTX-
1-4"C, 2-DB
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

TC34-4SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-
1-4"C,  2-DB
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

C
TC85

TC85-4SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
1-1/0 UGTX-DB
1-4"C, 1-DB PRIMARY

TC32-?SERV
UNABLE TO OPEN

TC29-3SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-3"C, 1-DB?
1-2/0 UGTX-DB?
PRIMARY DB, 1-4"
SPARE

TC90-5SERV
1-350MCM? DB
1-4/0 UGTX--DB
3-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC24-1SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-3"C
2-3"C PRIMARY
1-3" C Spare

TC93-3SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB?
2-1/0 UGTX-1-2"C, 1-DB
PRIMARY 1-4"C, 1-DB?

TC98-2SERV
1-250MCM UGTX-DB?
1-2/0 UGTX-DB?
PRIMARY DB? DIRT

TC21-3SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-2/0 UGTX-DB?
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC21

TC100-3SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB?
2-2/0 UGTX-DB?
PRIMARY DB? DIRT

TC104-3SERV
2-2/0 UGTX-DB?
1-1/0 UGTX-DB?
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC106
A

TC106-4SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-1-2"C, 1-DB
2-2/0 UGTX-1-2"C, 1-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC104
A

TC17-4SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-4"C-Lot 113
3-1/0 UGTX-DB?
2-3"C PRIMARY
TC13-4SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-3"C
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TC10-3SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-3"C, 1-DB
1-2/0 UGTX-DB
PRIMARY ? DIRT

C
TC10TC08-3SERV

2-2/0 UGTX-DB?
1-2/0 UGTX-DB?
PRIMARY ? DIRT

TC004-3SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB?
2-1/0 UGTX-DB?
PRIMARY ? DIRT

TC02-2SERV
1-2/0 UGTX-DB?
1-1/0 UGTX-DB?
2-3"C PRIMARY

2-6"C PRIMARY

TCSW2-2SERV
1-250MCM 1-3"C
1-3"C SPARE
2-4" C PRIMARY

LJEXXX

KM
DLJE1

LJE517

LJEXXX

C-NS
TC605

25kva
C

TC160

25kva

C
B

TCSW2

LJE517

UNK

TCKMPUDEL

ABC
TCELTCINN

C

ST
A
T
E
 R

O
U
T
E
 88

35KV
EXTEND TO
KM GREEN

SUBSTATION

25kva
50kva

PRIMARY-RESIDENTIAL
PRIMARY-COMMERCIAL
PRIMARY-LIFTS

XFMR A - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR B - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR C - SINGLE PHASE

LEGEND:

LJEXXX

THREE PHASE XFMR
LD J ENCLOSURE

XFMR UNK - SINGLE PHASEEQUIPMENT

SWITCH PRIMARY-VAIL OWNED
35kV LINE

DATEREV
CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

FILE NAME

DRAWNREVISIONS APV

DRAWING NUMBERSCALE

CHKDWN

PROJ CODE
CCE - Cortez

215 N. Linden St., Ste B
Cortez, CO  81321

KMPUD IN-VALLEY
ELECTRIC SYSTEM
FIELD INVESTIGATION NOTES

APPENDIX B3

MP-B3NONE

NRB

WEM

DHR

03-16-23

MP-A-B

VAIL-1001

A ISSUE FOR REPORT06-21-23 NRB WEM DHR

167



Dangburg Dr.

62

78
79

80

61

60

BULK
PROPANE
STORAGE

144

142
143

84

85

37
36

34
35

82
83

81

Hawkweed Way
160

159

A

C

A

KM
DLJE2

VSLS

C

Em
p. Hous.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9 10
11

12 13
14

15

16

17
18

19
20

21

22

23 24

25
26

27

28

293031

32

33

34

SKIWAY

SKI A

SKI B

Palisades Dr.

27

26

25

24 23
22

21
20

19
18

17

51
50

49

48

47
46

45
44

43

42

41

40

39
32

31

50kva

50kva

50kva

225kva

500kva

300kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

25kva

TC144

2-3"C PRIMARY

TC159-4SERV
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
PRIMARY ?

TC59
C

TC59-6SERV
3-4/0 UGTX-DB
3-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-3"C PRIMARY

TCLMR2

TC39

TC37

TC34

25kva

TC39-3SERV
3-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

TC37-5SERV
3-4/0 UGTX-
1-4"C, 2-DB
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

TC34-4SERV
2-4/0 UGTX-
1-4"C,  2-DB
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
2-4"C PRIMARY

C
TC85

TC85-4SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-DB
2-2/0 UGTX-DB
1-1/0 UGTX-DB
1-4"C, 1-DB PRIMARY

SE
N

TI
N

EL
S 

W
ES

T

FUTURE

TCP7

TCP9-NO SERV
1-4"C PRIMARY
2-3"C, 3-3"C SPARE

TCP8-NO SERV
2-4" C PRIMARY 2-3"C
SPARE
3-3"C SPARE

TCP7-NO SERV
2-4" C PRIMARY Not
Terminated
2-3"C SPARE
2-3"C SPARE

C
TCP6

A
TCP5

TCP6-2SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-3"C
1-2/0 UGTX-3"C
2-4"C PRIMARY
2-3" C Spare

TCP5-2SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-3"C
1-2/0 UGTX-3"C
2-4"C PRIMARY
2-3" C Spare

TCP4

TCP4-1SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-2"C
2-3"C PRIMARY

TCP3-3SERV
1-4/0 UGTX-4"C,1-?
2-2/0 UGTX-1-2"C,1-?
2-3"C PRIMARY

TCTC-1SERV
2-500MCMCU 2-3"C
1-4" C PRIMARY
1-4"C SPARE
1-2"C SPARE

TCC9-1SERV
1-500MCM 1-4"C
1-4" C PRIMARY
1-4"DB

TCSP-1SERV-CHAIR 7
3-300MCM 3-3"C
2-4" C PRIMARY

TCTH1-2SERV
2-2/0 UGTX-1-4"C
3-4" C Spare
1-4"C PRIMARY
1-4" C Spare

TCSW1-6SERV
1-250MCM 1-3"C
1-350MCM 1-3"C
2-4" C PRIMARY

TCSW2-2SERV
1-250MCM 1-3"C
1-3"C SPARE
2-4" C PRIMARY

TCSW3-6SERV
1-250MCM 1-3"C
1-350MCM 1-3"C
1-4" C PRIMARY

LJEXXX

KM
DLJE1

ABC
TCAS2

50kva

UNK
TCP9

50kva
TCP8

ABC
TCC7ABC

TCC9

ABC
TCTC

ABC
TCYH

C
TC160

TCTH1

TCSW3

TCSW1

TCSW2

UNK UNK

UNK

UNK

UNK
UNK

C
TCMM

TCVS

50kva

50kva

100kva

25kva

50kva

50kva50kva

PRIMARY-RESIDENTIAL
PRIMARY-COMMERCIAL
PRIMARY-LIFTS

XFMR A - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR B - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR C - SINGLE PHASE

LEGEND:

LJEXXX

THREE PHASE XFMR
LD J ENCLOSURE

XFMR UNK - SINGLE PHASEEQUIPMENT

SWITCH PRIMARY-VAIL OWNED
35kV LINE

DATEREV
CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

FILE NAME

DRAWNREVISIONS APV

DRAWING NUMBERSCALE

CHKDWN

PROJ CODE
CCE - Cortez

215 N. Linden St., Ste B
Cortez, CO  81321

KMPUD IN-VALLEY 
ELECTRIC SYSTEM
FIELD INVESTIGATION NOTES

APPENDIX B4

MP-B4NONE

NRB

WEM

DHR

03-16-23

MP-A-G

KMPUD-1004

A ISSUE FOR REPORT06-21-23 NRB WEM DHR

168

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lower Shop

AutoCAD SHX Text
Volcano

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
2+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
3+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
5+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
6+00



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 

KMPUD In Valley Electric System Feeder map 

 
  

169



Aster
 Ct.

Yarrow Place

Columbine Cir.

W
intergreen W

ay

M
errill R

d.

Fremont Ct

Sorrell Ct.

 RC
Lodge

Base Camp

Sun Meadows

E.M
ea

do
ws D

r.

He
at

he
r C

t.

Dangburg Dr.
Fremont Rd.

BULK
PROPANE
STORAGE

Hawkweed Way

Larkspur Dr.

Kirkw
ood Meadows D

r.

Loop Rd.

Edelwiess

C
ornice

C
t.

POWERHOUSE

Glove Rock Rd.

Meadows

The

Mountain ClubThe Lodge

Towers

Pump House 3

VSJR

KM
DLJE2

VSLS

LJE205

LJEJR

Kirkwood Meadows Dr.

East Meadows Dr.

Em
p. Hous.

Meadow Stone

Sn
ow

cr
es

t

Lost
Cabin

Thimblewood

A-House

Townhomes

Timber
Ridge

Alta Serra

Palisades Dr.

OSW2

SE
N

TI
N

EL
S 

W
ES

T

FUTURE

LJEP1

LJEXXX

KM
DLJE1

LJE517

LJEXXX

LJETR

LJEXXX

LJEXXX

LJE811

LJE517

OSLG

ST
A
T
E
 R

O
U
T
E
 88

VAIL OWNED
LINE EXTENDS
TO BACKSIDE

35KV
EXTEND TO
KM GREEN

SUBSTATION

PRIMARY-RESIDENTIAL
PRIMARY-COMMERCIAL
PRIMARY-LIFTS

XFMR A - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR B - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR C - SINGLE PHASE

LEGEND:

LJEXXX

THREE PHASE XFMR
LD J ENCLOSURE

XFMR UNK - SINGLE PHASEEQUIPMENT

SWITCH PRIMARY-VAIL OWNED
35kV LINE

DATEREV
CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

FILE NAME

DRAWNREVISIONS APV

DRAWING NUMBERSCALE

CHKDWN

PROJ CODE
CCE - Cortez

215 N. Linden St., Ste B
Cortez, CO  81321

KMPUD IN-VALLEY
ELECTRIC SYSTEM

FEEDER MAP
 APPENDIX C

MP-CNONE

NRB

WEM

DHR

06-21-23

MP-C

KMPUD-1004

A ISSUE FOR REPORT06-21-23 NRB WEM DHR

170

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lower Shop

AutoCAD SHX Text
Volcano

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
2+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
3+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
5+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
6+00



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX D 

KMPUD In Valley Electric System Map - Level 4 
EV Car Charging Locations 

  

171



Aster
 Ct.

Yarrow Place

Columbine Cir.

W
intergreen W

ay

M
errill R

d.

Fremont Ct

Sorrell Ct.

 RC
Lodge

Base Camp

Sun Meadows

E.M
ea

do
ws D

r.

He
at

he
r C

t.

Dangburg Dr.
Fremont Rd.

BULK
PROPANE
STORAGE

Hawkweed Way

Larkspur Dr.

Kirkw
ood Meadows D

r.

Loop Rd.

Edelwiess

C
ornice

C
t.

POWERHOUSE

Glove Rock Rd.

Meadows

The

Mountain ClubThe Lodge

Towers

Pump House 3

VSJR

KM
DLJE2

VSLS

LJE205

LJEJR

Kirkwood Meadows Dr.

East Meadows Dr.

Em
p. Hous.

Meadow Stone

Sn
ow

cr
es

t

Lost
Cabin

Thimblewood

A-House

Townhomes

Timber
Ridge

Alta Serra

Palisades Dr.

OSW2

SE
N

TI
N

EL
S 

W
ES

T

FUTURE

LJEP1

LJEXXX

KM
DLJE1

LJE517

LJEXXX

LJETR

LJEXXX

LJEXXX

LJE811

LJE517

OSLG

ST
A
T
E
 R

O
U
T
E
 88

VAIL OWNED
LINE EXTENDS
TO BACKSIDE

35KV
EXTEND TO
KM GREEN

SUBSTATION

PRIMARY-RESIDENTIAL
PRIMARY-COMMERCIAL
PRIMARY-LIFTS

XFMR A - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR B - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR C - SINGLE PHASE

LEGEND:

LJEXXX

THREE PHASE XFMR
LD J ENCLOSURE

XFMR UNK - SINGLE PHASEEQUIPMENT

SWITCH PRIMARY-VAIL OWNED
35kV LINE

AVAILABLE
LEVEL 4 EV  CAR
CHARGING LOCATIONS

DATEREV
CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

FILE NAME

DRAWNREVISIONS APV

DRAWING NUMBERSCALE

CHKDWN

PROJ CODE
CCE - Cortez

215 N. Linden St., Ste B
Cortez, CO  81321

KMPUD IN-VALLEY
ELECTRIC SYSTEM

LEVEL 4 EV CAR CHARGING LOCATIONS
 APPENDIX D

MP-DNONE

NRB

WEM

DHR

06-21-23

MP-D

KMPUD-1004

A ISSUE FOR REPORT06-21-23 NRB WEM DHR

172

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lower Shop

AutoCAD SHX Text
Volcano

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
2+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
3+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
5+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
6+00



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX E 

KMPUD In Valley Electric System Map - System 
Improvements 

  

173



Aster
 Ct.

Yarrow Place

Columbine Cir.

W
intergreen W

ay

M
errill R

d.

Fremont Ct

Sorrell Ct.

 RC
Lodge

Base Camp

Sun Meadows

E.M
ea

do
ws D

r.

He
at

he
r C

t.

Dangburg Dr.
Fremont Rd.

BULK
PROPANE
STORAGE

Hawkweed Way

Larkspur Dr.

Kirkw
ood Meadows D

r.

Loop Rd.

Edelwiess

C
ornice

C
t.

POWERHOUSE

Glove Rock Rd.

Meadows

The

Mountain ClubThe Lodge

Towers

Pump House 3

VSJR

KM
DLJE2

VSLS

LJE205

LJEJR

Kirkwood Meadows Dr.

East Meadows Dr.

Em
p. Hous.

Meadow Stone

Sn
ow

cr
es

t

Lost
Cabin

Thimblewood

A-House

Townhomes

Timber
Ridge

Alta Serra

Palisades Dr.

OSW2

SE
N

TI
N

EL
S 

W
ES

T

FUTURE

LJEP1

LJEXXX

KM
DLJE1

LJE517

LJEXXX

LJETR

LJEXXX

LJEXXX

LJE811

LJE517

OSLG

ST
A
T
E
 R

O
U
T
E
 88

VAIL OWNED
LINE EXTENDS
TO BACKSIDE

35KV
EXTEND TO
KM GREEN

SUBSTATION

UPGRADE
RELAYS IN

POWERHOUSE

REPLACE
SWITCH

REPLACE
THREE PHASE

DIRECT BURIED
LIFT FEEDER
IN MEADOW

NON-SITE SPECIFIC SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
REPLACEMENT OF SECTIONS OF DIRECT BURIED PRIMARY LINES
REPLACEMENT OF SECTIONS OF DIRECT BURIED SERVICE LINES
REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED LJEs
REPLACEMENT OF TRANFORMERS
METER REPLACEMENTS

CAPLES LAKE
TRANSFORMER OIL
CONTAINMENT

PRIMARY-RESIDENTIAL
PRIMARY-COMMERCIAL
PRIMARY-LIFTS

XFMR A - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR B - SINGLE PHASE
XFMR C - SINGLE PHASE

LEGEND:

LJEXXX

THREE PHASE XFMR
LD J ENCLOSURE

XFMR UNK - SINGLE PHASEEQUIPMENT

SWITCH PRIMARY-VAIL OWNED
35kV LINE

INDICATES RECOMMENDED
10-YEAR MASTER PLAN
SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

DATEREV
CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

FILE NAME

DRAWNREVISIONS APV

DRAWING NUMBERSCALE

CHKDWN

PROJ CODE
CCE - Cortez

215 N. Linden St., Ste B
Cortez, CO  81321

KMPUD IN-VALLEY
ELECTRIC SYSTEM

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
 APPENDIX E

MP-ENONE

NRB

WEM

DHR

06-21-23

MP-E

KMPUD-1004

A ISSUE FOR REPORT06-21-23 NRB WEM DHR

174

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lower Shop

AutoCAD SHX Text
Volcano

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
2+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
3+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
5+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
6+00



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX F 

Powerhouse One-Line Diagram 
  

175



176

dave.rightley
Text Box
KMPUD Master Plan ReportAppendix FPowerhouse One-Line Diagram



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX G 

KMPUD Electrical System One-Line Diagram 

177



34.5:12.47 kV
TRANSFORMER
WITH LTC

52-152-R

152 153
157

(PG&E)

34.5:115 kV
TRANSFORMER

35 kV
REACTOR

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

FE
ED

ER

24.8 MILES UNDERGROUND

DIRECT BURY AND CONDUIT

1.
7 

M
IL

ES

O
VE

R
H

EA
D

 3
5k

V

1.
4 

M
IL

ES

O
VE

R
H

EA
D

 1
15

kV

TO
SALT
SPRINGS
115 kV BUS

TO
TIGER

CREEK
115 kV BUS

PG&E
TAP

STRUCTURE

3-1Ø
SOLD-BLADE
CUTOUTS

52-
OVS2

3-1Ø
VTs

3-1Ø
VTs

52-
OVS1

52-
TIE

G
EN

 4

LI
FT

 F
EE

D
ER

G
EN

 3

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 F
EE

D
ER

G
EN

 2

SP
AR

E 
FE

ED
ER

G
EN

 1

3-1Ø
CCVTs

3-1Ø
METERING

TRANSFORMERS

3-1 Ø
VTs

AØ
VT

AØ
SST

52-K

3-1Ø
VTs

SA
22kV

MCOV

3-1Ø
VTs

POWERHOUSE
12.47kV

SWITCHGEAR

KM BLUE
34.5 kV SUBSTATION

KM GREEN
115 kV SUBSTATION

PG&E 115kV TRANSMISSION LINE

A

B

C

341

343
3-1Ø

HOOK STICK
SWITCHES

M

A

B

C

LEGEND:

CCVT    COUPLING CAPACITIVE VOLTAGE TRANSFORMER

  VT - VOLTAGE TRANSFORMER

  SA - SURGE ARRESTER

POWER CIRCUIT BREAKER

MANALLY OPERATED SWITCH

MOTOR OPERATED SWITCH

DISCONNECT SWITCH, GANG OPERATED

SST - STATION SERVICE TRANSFORMER

M

52

TRANSFORMER

342
3-1Ø

HOOK STICK
SWITCHES 3-1Ø

VTs

M

M

SA
22kV

MCOV

SA
70kV

MCOV

SA
22kV

MCOV

SA
22kV

MCOV

SA
10kV

MCOV

SA
10kV

MCOV

N.C. N.O.

DATEREV
CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

FILE NAME

DRAWNREVISIONS APV

DRAWING NUMBERSCALE

CHKDWN

PROJ CODE

215 N. Linden St., Ste B
Cortez, CO  81321

KMPUD IN-VALLEY
ELECTRIC SYSTEM

ELECTRICAL
ONE-LINE DIAGRAM

APPENDIX GNONE

NRB

DHR

DHR

04-04-23

APP G

KMPUD-1004

A ISSUE FOR REPORT06-21-23 NRB DHRDHR

178



Cross Canyon Engineering  June 18, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX H 

Recommended 10-Year Capital Plan 

  

179



APPENDIX H ‐Recommended 10‐Year Capital Plan

5 Yr Total Cycle Priority 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029 2029-2030 2030-2031 2031-2032 2032-2033

Capacity Component
Scale 1~5
1=Critical

0
0
0
0
0
0

Total Electric Capacity Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Replacement Component
Replace Direct Bury Primary Line (Lifts 
Feeder) in meadow

500,000 One Time 4 500,000

Miscellaneous Underground Cable 
Replacements

100,000 Two Years 3 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000

Miscellaneous Underground Service Line 
Replacements

20,000 Two Years 3 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

Replace switch at the Lodge 45,000 One Time 4 45,000
Replace damaged LJEs  In-Valley 40,000 Four Years 2 20,000 20,000
Fault indicators 12,500 One Time 4 12,500
Fault indicator wireless system 3,000 One Time 3,000
Transformer replacements 18,000 Four Years 1 6,000 6,000 6,000
Transformer Retaining Walls 6,000 One Time 1 6,000
Meter replacements 30,000 One Year 2 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Caples Lake transformer oil containment 20,000 One Time 3 20,000

Replace Damaged Out Valley Sectionalizing 
Cabinets

24,000 Four Years 8,000 8,000 8,000

Upgrade powerhouse relays OVS1 and 
OVS2

20,000 One Time 20,000

Total Electric Replacement Expense 838,500 49,000 521,000 43,000 62,500 82,000 7,000 23,000 21,000 23,000 7,000

Total Electric Capital Expense 838,500 49,000 521,000 43,000 62,500 82,000 7,000 23,000 21,000 23,000 7,000

180



KMPUD GM GOALS 
(Proposed beginning FY 2023-24) 

1) 30% - UAlity and Contract Service Levels – safe achievement for all uAliAes except snow 
removal is 100% service with the excepAons described below. Once we have 
measurements, in future year goals, we can add metrics related to those excepAons (i.e. 
% of downAme, number of incidents) 

a. Electricity   
i. Switchover Ame to KMPUD powerhouse due to out-valley unavailability 
ii. Planned  construcAon or maintenance 
iii. State, Local or Federal mandates 
iv. Natural disaster beyond KMPUD control 

b. Propane 
i. Planned construcAon or maintenance 

c. Wastewater 
        i.    Planned construcAon or maintenance 

d. Water 
i. Planned construcAon or maintenance 

e. Solid waste 
        i.    Wood chipping 

f. Snow removal 
i. Snow removal service level as defined by the executed snow removal 

contracts 
ii. All equipment arrives in a Amely fashion aWer purchase order issuance 

2) 30% - OperaAng Margin - meet or exceed operaAng margin as measured at the close of 
the Fiscal Year 

3) 10% - CommunicaAons 
a. Establish customer communicaAon policies for each uAlity and KMPUD service 

including 
i. Customer communicaAons of all changes, outages, warnings, 

maintenance including 
1. Issue descripAon 
2. Context staAng why the issue occurred or is planned, how is the 

District reacAng, Ameframe for resoluAon 
3. Use the communicaAons commiYee as appropriate 

b. Establishment of communicaAon policy for snow removal 
c. Adherence to policies 

4) 30% - GM ObjecAves established for fiscal year and long term

181



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9m. 

STAFF REPORT 

Needs Assessment 

Background: 

There are three relevant provisions in the Public Utilities Code (PUC) that provide direction to 

publicly owned utilities (POU) regarding the obligations for considering a low-income program; 

Section 385(a), 385(b), and 386. These provisions of the PUC identify (i) the categories of 

programs that qualify, (ii) the obligation to perform a needs assessment, and (iii) the minimum 

standards that must be ensured for low-income customers in the POU’s service territory. 

In October 2022, the Board directed Staff to retain a qualified professional to prepare a Needs 

Assessment that considers and complies with the aforementioned PUC codes. 

The District retained Stantec to review options available for completing a Needs Assessment and 

associated survey, which was reviewed by the Planning Committee. 

The Planning Committee reviewed the options and offers the following recommended 

answers/changes to the Stantec proposed methods and survey. 

• Only use water usage as a proxy for residency.  

o The residency days should be at least half the year, or 183 days.  

o The residency days should be calculated similar to Electric AMUs to address 

ownership changes. 

• Change 60% of median income to 100 or 120% of median income.  

• Add Question 5.2 (b) “[check if yes] You would agree to provide documentation to the 

District certifying household income or relevant program participation if the District 

creates a low-income program.”  

• Precede Questions 5.6, 5.7, and 5.8 with “These questions are to gauge potential areas in 

which the District could focus funding and your answers do not, in any way, impact 

eligibility.” 

• Eliminate Question 9. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The project is a budgeted item and currently within budget. 

Reviewed by Committee: 

Planning. 

  

182



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9m. 

CEQA: 

The General Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject 

to CEQA. 

Recommendations: 

Staff and Planning Committee recommend proceeding with the Needs Assessment and survey as 

modified above. 

Prepared By: 

Erik M. Christeson, P.E. 

183



 

  
 

 

Memo 

To: Eric M. Christenson 

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility 
District 

From: Mike Antos 

Click or tap here to enter text. 

Project/File: Kirkwood Meadows Date: June 20, 2023 

 

Re: Options to Assess the Likelihood that KMPUD Customers Would Benefit from Low-Income 

Energy Assistance 

Background 

California Public Utilities Code Sections 385 and 386 mandates local electric utilities to assess the need 

for an energy assistance program for low-income customers. On May 1, 2023, Stantec met with 

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utilities District (KMPUD) to discuss potential approaches to conduct a 

needs assessment for a low-income energy assistance program. Following that meeting, Stantec 

received residency and utility usage data for KMPUD customers, which was used to create a 

preliminary methodology for assessing the likelihood that any particular customer may benefit from an 

energy assistance program, which may include but is not limited to rate discounts, energy efficiency and 

weatherization services, and energy efficiency education.  

The impact of energy bills on a household budget can be both extremely personal, and unique to each 

household. Larger utilities can use broad census statistics about their service area to assess the impact 

of energy bills as they consider the need for low-income energy assistance programs and design 

assistance programs that can be advertised to customers and made opt-in. Summary data allows large 

utilities to derive a reasonable assumption about the extent to which an assistance program would be 

valuable and the potential ways that program can support low-income households. 

The nature of KMPUD’s small service area, relatively small population, and large percentage of part-

time residents requires a different set of methods than those available to larger utilities.  

Proposed Methods 

This memo describes two methods that would align with KMPUD’s unique attributes while also fulfilling 

the mandate to perform a needs assessment. Both methods prepare KMPUD to create a low-income 

energy assistance program if that becomes the desired next step. 

In general, the proposed methods share a theme: for KMPUD, the right way to determine if a household 

needs support is to engage directly with that household. The small size and existing relationships within 

Kirkwood Meadows allow for such direct engagement. However, a systematic and repeatable approach 

to evaluate the entire customer base will ensure that personal engagement and relationships, though 

powerful, do not leave anyone unaccounted for. 

The methods described below will allow repeatable and systematic evaluations of the customer base to 

identify households where a low-income energy assistance program may be valuable. The resulting 

subset of customers will be engaged directly to determine the need and types of support that may be 

effective in an assistance program. Ultimately, the results of the evaluation and direct engagement will 

be taken to the KMPUD Board of Directors to determine whether an assistance program should be 

implemented.  

184



May 16, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
Page 2 of 3  

Reference: N/A 

  
 

 

The two approaches proposed using available data to evaluate the likelihood of need within KMPUD 

customer base are Residency Days, and Property Value.  

Residency Days 

Energy usage data does not accurately reflect residence, as many part-time residents heat or cool their 

homes year-round. Water usage data can instead be used as a proxy to determine the number of full-

time residents living in Kirkwood Meadows. The assumption is that customers who use water for at least 

half of the year (180 days) in Kirkwood Meadows are more likely to be permanent residents. On the 

other hand, customers that use water less than 180 days are more likely to own non-primary homes in 

Kirkwood Meadows and are not likely candidates for energy assistance. Initial results from the analysis 

of 2022 water usage data demonstrate that 186 out of 663 listed properties (28%) used water for at 

least half of the year. This means that fewer than one in three customers likely live in Kirkwood 

Meadows for more than half of the year. When averaging across the last six years, only 174 properties 

used water for 180 days or more per year (26%). One shortcoming of this methodology is that it 

includes properties that might be used as short-term rentals such as Airbnb properties, who may not be 

likely candidates for energy assistance. However, if an energy assistance program were to be 

developed, the eligibility requirements could be designed such that customers who own short-term 

rentals are screened out. 

It is important to note that, in the data provided by KMPUD, the number of properties occupied for over 

100 days a year increased significantly during the Covid 19 pandemic. The lockdowns and shift to 

remote work arrangements meant that people with access to properties in Kirkwood Meadows chose to 

relocate and work from there, rather than use those spaces only as vacation destinations. For the three 

years preceding the pandemic, the number of properties using water for more than 100 days a year 

averaged 219. In 2020 that number jumped to 324. Since then, it has declined slightly, averaging 305 

properties in 2021 and 290 in 2022. Figure 1 below illustrates the change in the number of properties 

using water for at least 100 days in the last six years. Despite the increase in occupancy, the average 

number of water-usage days remained stable, falling between 170 and 179 for the years between 2017 

and 2022. This implies that while more people were spending more time in Kirkwood Meadows, they 

were still splitting their time between Kirkwood residence and their permanent residence.   

Property value 

Another approach is to use property value as a proxy for income. Parcel data from recent years can be 

used to provide estimated home value of all properties in Kirkwood Meadows. Properties valued at over 

$VALUE [to receive input from KMPUD] can be assumed to house high-income customers who are not 

likely candidates for energy 

assistance. However, this 

methodology may obscure a) 

high value properties that are 

rented to low-income tenants who 

may struggle to afford their water 

bills, or b) high value properties 

that are home to individuals living 

on a fixed income. Additional 

property data such as single vs. 

multi-family properties and rental 

vs owner-occupied units would 

further refine this analysis. In 

general, single family, owner-
Figure 1 Properties Using Water for >99 Days Per Year, from 2017 to 2022 

185



May 16, 2023 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District 
Page 3 of 3  

Reference: N/A 

  
 

 

occupied properties valued at over $VALUE are not likely to need energy assistance and can be 

removed from the database of customers to engage with. 

Combined 

The above methodologies can be combined to produce a smaller pool of customers potentially in need 

of assistance. Once a database of full-time residents is established, property value data can be used to 

determine whether any full-time residents are living in high-value homes. Full-time residents who live in 

a home below a certain threshold of property value can be considered the most likely pool of candidates 

in need of energy assistance. This combined methodology would produce a database in which the 

number of customers listed is large enough to conservatively encompass all those residents who could 

need assistance, while not being so large as to prevent effective outreach. 

Recommendations 

Stantec recommends using the combined methodology to determine the likelihood that customers 

would benefit from a low-income energy assistance program. As described above, this combined 

method would create a database of a smaller number of customers who are more likely to benefit from 

an energy assistance program.    

The generated database of customers would be used to conduct informed engagement with a targeted 

group of customers. We recommend using a mailed and/or internet survey be distributed to the 

customer subset to draw additional information about which specific customer addresses may benefit 

from an energy assistance program.  Attached is a preliminary draft of survey materials.  

Because “need” is actually a very complicated subject, Stantec proposes this methodology because it 

will be repeatable by KMPUD staff on a periodic basis.  KMPUD staff would use this information to 

develop relationships with specific customers that may benefit from an energy assistance program if 

one were to be established. In this step, periodically letters or surveys would be sent to (or included in a 

bill for) potentially eligible customers, who would directly indicate whether they are interested in an 

energy assistance program. If a program were to be established, eligibility criteria could be set based on 

Federal, State or County median household income thresholds (e.g., CA poverty level) and verified via 

interested customers’ tax returns or paystubs.  

Best regards, 

 
 
Mike Antos 
Principal 
mike.antos@stantec.com 

Attachment: KMPUD Sample Interest Survey Draft 

186



 

 

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utilities District (KMPUD)  

Low-Income Energy Assistance Program 

Interest Form 

For more information about the evaluation click here: 

https://www.kmpud.com/XXXXX   

Would I be Eligible? 

 

KMPUD is evaluating if an energy assistance program would benefit any members of the community it 

serves.  Eligibility for energy assistance services can vary depending on income, place of residence, and 

other factors.  

 

If an energy assistance program were established by KMPUD, your household would qualify if: 

• You receive service from KMPUD, and,    

• Your total household gross income (total earnings before taxes) is at or below 60% of the State 

Median Income (see table), or,  

• A household member is a current recipient of CalFresh, CalWORKs, or the Low-Income Home 

Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) 

To learn more about this evaluation or to offer comments to KMPUD, contact NAME/ EMAIL. 

2023 Proposed Income Eligibility1 
 

Persons In Household**  Monthly Income 

1 $2,700.17 

2  $3,531.00 

3 $4,361.83  

4  $5,192.75 

5 $6,023.59 

6 $6,854.43 

7 $7,010.21 

8 $7,166.00 

9 $7,321.78 

10* $7,477.56  

*For families/households with more than 10 persons, add $155.78 for each additional person.  

** Consistent with the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), the term "household" is 

defined as “any individual or group of individuals who are living together as one economic unit for whom 

residential energy is customarily purchased in common….” 
 

Would your household benefit from energy assistance? 

 

 
1 Based on 2023 LIHEAP Income Eligibility: https://www.csd.ca.gov/Pages/LIHEAP-Income-Eligibility.aspx  
 

187

https://www.kmpud.com/XXXXX
https://www.csd.ca.gov/Pages/LIHEAP-Income-Eligibility.aspx


 

 

Your answers to the following questions will be used by KMPUD to understand if and how many of their 

customers would benefit from an energy assistance program. Your answers will not be shared or made 

available to the public. 

Step 1: Participant Information 

1. Name 

2. Primary Phone  

3. Email Address 

4. Can we contact you at the phone and/or email address provided? [yes/no] 

Step 2: Place of KMPUD Service, your “household” (Physical Address)  

1. Address Line 1 

2. Address Line 2 

3. City/ Zip Code 

4. County/ State 

Step 4: Household Information 

1. Enter the total number of people in the household 

2. Enter the number of household members who are: 

a. 2 Years & Younger 

b. Age 3 to 5 

c. Age 6 to 18 

d. Age 19 to 59 

e. 60 or older 

f. Limited English 

g. [Collect additional information as needed] 

Step 5: Income & Energy Account Information 

1. Number of household members with income 

2. Total monthly gross household income 

a. [check if yes] There is a member of my household receiving CalFresh (Food Stamps), 

CalWORKs, or the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) 

3. Customer name on utility bill 

4. Account number:  

5. Main heating fuel [dropdown: electricity, gas, wood stove, other] 

6. Alternate sources of heat (select all that apply): 

a. [check if yes] I use electricity (i.e., space heaters) as an alternate source of heat 

b. [check if yes] I use gas as an alternate source of heat 

c. [check if yes] I use wood (in a fireplace or stove) as an alternate source of heat 

d. [check if yes] I do not have an alternate source of heat 

7. Home weatherization or energy efficiency measures (attic insulation, caulking, weatherstripping, 

or other measures to reduce air infiltration): 

a. I have performed all applicable home weatherization or energy efficiency measures on 

my home  

b. I have performed some home weatherization or energy efficiency measures on my 

home, but more is needed. 

c. I have not performed home weatherization or energy efficiency measures on my home  

8. In-home energy efficiency education: 

a. I know where to find detailed information about home weatherization energy efficiency 

measures 

188



 

 

b. I know where to find some information about home weatherization energy efficiency 

measures, but still need more information 

c. I do not know where to find information about home weatherization energy efficiency 

measures 

9. Since you selected Gas or Electric as your main heating fuel, please answer the following: 

a. [check if yes] In the past five years, I have received a Past Due Notice 

b. [check if yes] My gas/ electricity service is currently disconnected for non-payment 

189



Board Meeting: July 14, 2023   Agenda Item 9.n 

STAFF REPORT 

Ordinance 23-01 Revising Electric Rate Structure 

Background: 

At the December 9, 2022 meeting, the Board directed Staff to develop rules, forms, fees, and 

associated Ordinance for Average Monthly Usage calculation for “Unique, demonstrable 

circumstances [that] justify a change” and bring them back to the Board for review and possible 

adoption.  At the February 10, 2023 meeting, the Board requested some clarifying language and 

additional review from the Planning Committee. 

The requested changes from the Board and recommendations from the Planning Committee are 

included in the attached Ordinance 23-01, except as follows: 

Appeal Fee: The Fee requested covers estimated District costs associated with an appeal.  Some 

on the Planning Committee would like it eliminated. 

“Unique” vs. “Distinct”: District Counsel chose the word “unique” in drafting the Ordinance and 

Staff concurs.  Some on the Planning Committee would like to use the word “distinct” instead. 

Reviewed by Committee: 

Planning. 

Financial Impact: 

Yes, however it is an unquantifiable, detrimental impact to electric revenue as it is dependent 

upon number and significance of applications approved. 

Elimination of the Appeal Fee would also have a detrimental impact on electric revenue. 

CEQA: 

The General Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject 

to CEQA. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 23-01, associated fees, and form. 

Prepared By: 

Erik M. Christeson, P.E. 

190



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 23-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

REVISING ELECTRIC RATE STRUCTURE 
 
 
Section 1.  Purpose and Authority.  The purpose of this ordinance is to add Section 7.D to 
Ordinance 21-02 for customers that receive electric service from Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility 
District (“District”).  The District Board of Directors adopts this ordinance pursuant to Government 
Code section 66018, Public Utilities Code sections 16461 and 16467 through 16472, and other 
applicable laws. 
 
Section 2. Findings.  The District Board of Directors finds as follows: 
 
A) In 2007, the Alpine County Local Agency Formation Commission authorized the District to 

provide electric service within its service area.  In 2009, the District Board of Directors 
adopted Ordinance No. 09-02 authorizing the acquisition of Mountain Utilities’ (“MU”) electric 
and propane gas systems and approving an Asset Purchase Agreement with MU.  The 
District adopted Ordinances 11-01, 13-01, 14-04, 14-06, 16-01, 21-02, and 22-01 which 
each successively revised electric rates and rate structures. 

B) Per Ordinance 21-02, the District does not provide a method to petition the Board for an 
AMU reduction due to unique, demonstrable circumstances that may justify a change in 
AMU.  
 
The Board has determined that it is desirable to create an AMU appeal process for these 
situations. 

 
Section 3. Ordinance 21-02 Shall be Amended to Read as Follows: 
 
Section 7. EDU Calculation 
 
D) AMU Appeal Process 

1) The customer must present a unique, demonstrable, and quantifiable circumstance that, 
to a reasonable person, justifies a change in their currently assessed AMU. 

2) The customer must complete a Petition for Electric AMU Change form and pay the 
associated fees, which may be amended from time to time. 
i) The form shall permit the customer to recommence the three-year AMU calculation 

period beginning with a full AMU year. 
ii) The AMU calculation for the first year would utilize a new beginning year, selected by 

the customer, but no earlier than April 1, 2020, and after the date of the circumstance 
identified above. 
In each subsequent year the customer’s AMU will be calculated until there are three 
full years of usage at which time their EDU would be set as noted above. 

3) The General Manager shall review all petitions and make a determination on the request 
within 30 days of submission. 
i) Should the General Manager approve the Petition, the customer’s AMU shall be 

modified no later than the second subsequent regular electric billing cycle after 
approval. 

191



2 

ii) Should the General Manager reject the Petition, the customer may appeal to the Board 
of Directors.  An appeal shall be set for a public hearing at a regular Board meeting, 
within 60 days of rejection. 

iii) If the appeal is successful, the customer’s AMU shall be modified no later than the 
second subsequent regular electric billing cycle after successful appeal. 

iv) There shall be no remedy from an unsuccessful appeal to the Board of Directors. 
v) Resubmission of Petitions previously denied shall be summarily rejected. 

4) An AMU Change shall not entitle the customer to a refund of any District electric rates, 
charges, or fees already billed and/or collected prior to the approval of the AMU Change. 

5) A Petition for AMU Change may not be submitted more frequently than every 5 years per 
parcel. 

 
Section 4.  Effective Date. The changes set forth above shall take effect AugustApril 1, 2023.   
 
Section 5.  Posting. Within 23 days after the date of passage of this ordinance, the Secretary of 
the Board of Directors shall post a copy of this ordinance in at least three public places in the 
District.   
 
Section 6. Superseder. This ordinance adds Section 7.D to Ordinance 21-02.  
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Kirkwood Meadows Public 
Utility District on the 10th 14th day of FebruaryJuly, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  

_________________________________ 
       President, Board of Directors 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

192



3 

KIRKWOOD MEADOWS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
CUSTOMER PETITION FOR ELECTRIC AMU CHANGE 

($300 PETITION FEE / $150 APPEAL FEE) 
 

OWNER:             

PROPERTY ADDRESS:           

              

MAILING ADDRESS:            

              

PHONE NUMBER:      EMAIL:       

ASSESSOR PARCEL #:           

EXPLANATION OF REASON FOR REQUEST: (Your request should demonstrate an unique, 
demonstrable, and quantifiable circumstance that justifies a change in your current AMU. 
Please attach all pertinent back-up, calculations, invoices, etc. in support of you petition.) 

              

              

              

              

              

              

By signing this form, I represent that all assertions, claims, and supporting documents are correct 
and true to the best of my actual knowledge.  I understand that should my Petition be approved, it 
will not entitle me to a refund of any District electric rates, charges, or fees already billed and/or 
collected prior to the approval of the AMU Change and that my new AMU shall be modified no 
later than the second subsequent regular electric billing cycle after approval. 

SIGNATURE:          DATE:     

FOR DISTRICT USE ONLY 

Petition Fee Received: General Manager: Approved / Rejected  DATE: 

Appeal Fee Received:  

Board Appeal: Yes / No Board Action: Approved / Rejected  DATE: 

 

193



Major Projects

Description Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Hydrology Study / Test Wells
Master Plan - Electric (Complete)
Master Plan - Propane
Master Plan - Wastewater
Master Plan - Water
Needs Assessment
OGALS Park Project
Propane Service Line Replacement
Propane Tank & Roofs - Pre-design
Propane Tank & Roofs - CEQA
Propane Tank & Roofs - Design/Bid/Build

WWTP Repair & Rehabilitaiton

Planning
Design
Bid/Construction

Board Future Activities
Description Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Election of Directors
Propane Rate  Study (4)
Water/Waste Water Rate Study (1)
Electric Rate Study (2)
Fiscal Year Budget (3)

Notes:
(1) Nov ’24: consider residential min payment, re-assess financial and construction costs
(2) Sep ’25: consider capacity charge, all elec discount, Nov ’22: residential min payment
(3) Feb/Mar: Draft assumptions, Apr: EDU calculations, May: HOA Snow calc, Detailed Budget
(4) Oct '24: Consider revision to propane usage monthly correction.

2023 2024 2025 2026

2024 2025 2026

1/5/23

194



Planning Committee Report 
Meeting Date(s): June 21, 2023 
Attendees 

• KMPUD Board: Chair Doug Mitarotonda, Bertrand Perroud 

• KMPUD Staff: GM Erik Christeson, Assistant GM Rick Ansel 

• Community Committee Members: Anne-Flore Dwyer, Patrick O’Donnell, Eric Richert, 
Preston Roper 

 

1) Needs Assessment. Update. 
After considering and discussing the consultant’s report and included survey, the Planning 
Committee recommends the following:  

• Use water usage as a proxy for residency days as the first criteria filter. The Committee 
does not think property value is an appropriate criteria.  

• The residency days should be at least half the year, and therefore change to 183 days.  

• The residency days should be considered in a fashion similar to the way in which we 
consider electric AMU computations as a way to account for new ownership/lack of data. 

• The recommended 60% of median income is too low. The Committee thought a number 
more like 100-120% is a better reflection of Kirkwood costs, but the Board should make 
a decision based, in part, on what utilities similar to the District use.  

• Update Question 5.2 to have a (b) option stating something to the effect of, “[check if 
yes] You would agree to provide documentation to the KMPUD certifying household 
income or relevant program participation if the District creates a low-income program.”  

• Add a comment before Questions 5.6, 5.7, and 5.8 stating something to the effect of 
“These questions are to gauge potential areas in which the District could focus funding 
and your answers do not, in any way, impact eligibility.” 

• Eliminate Question 9. 
 
 
2) Future Topics 

The Planning Committee discussed topics for future discussion. As we move into a new Fiscal 
Year, we would like the Board’s direction on what, if any, of the below topics should be priorities 
for staff, and if so, in what order. Below are topics suggested by the Planning Committee. 
 
Previously Board-recommended items:  

• Standard AMU Discounts 

• Energy Efficiency Rebate Program 

• Fuel Switching Rebate Program 
New items to consider:  

• Offering all-electric customers a usage (kWh) discount on their electric rate. 

• Researching the potential for communal geothermal energy. 

195

https://www.kmpud.com/wp-content/uploads/Planning-Committee-AGENDA-06212023-FINAL.pdf

	1. Board AGENDA 07142023 final bm
	7 a. SPECIAL Board Meeting minutes 05.23.2023 DRAFT.EC
	7 b. Board Meeting minutes 06.9.2023 Final
	7 c. special board meeting 06.21.2023 Final
	7d. Consent for Claims
	7di. AP VOUCHERS 07.14.2023
	7e. Receivables-Shut Offs Report
	9a. Dane Wadle CSDA May-June_2023_Take_Action_Brief_5_22_23
	DRAFT May-June 2023 Take Action Brief 5.22.23
	5 - Key Budget Requests
	6 -2023 Advocacy Priorities
	7 - What are Special Districts
	8 - Special Districts Fit in Puzzle
	9 - Community Driven Future Focused
	DRAFT May-June 2023 Take Action Brief 5.22.23

	9bi. Overview and Budget Variances
	9bii. May Financials
	9biii. June Preliminaries
	9biv May Cash Flow
	9c. SR Investment Policy 07142023
	9ci. LAIF April Monthly Statement
	9cii. PMIA-LAIF_perform
	9d. SR Miscellaneous Fees 07142023
	9di. Miscellaneous Fees 07142023
	9dii. Schedule of Fees and Services July 1 2023
	9e.  Power Source Disclosure
	9e.  SR Power Source Disclosure
	9f. Gas Stipend 07142023
	9g. Performance Report Fiscal 22.23
	9gi. Aquifer Levels  Water Pumped June 2023
	9h.  Meter Shed Overview
	9i. SR WWTP Rehab 07142023
	9ii. let_kmpud_bid_rvw
	Bid Review Letter
	KG Walters Bid
	KGW Supplimental Bid Documents

	9j. SR Propane Master Plan 07142023
	9k. SR Electric Master Plan 07142023
	9ki. KMPUD System Assessment 06-18-23
	9l. KMPUD GM Goal Update - V4
	9m. SR Needs Assessment 07142023
	9mi. Kirkwood Meadows - Memo_061223
	9mii. KMPUD Sample Interest Survey_061223
	9n. SR AMU Reduction 06092023
	9ni. Ordinance 23-01  AMU Reduction 06092023
	10. Major Projects Schedule 07142023
	13. 2023.06.21 Planning Committee Report



